
 

 
Prif Weithredwr / Chief Executive  Mohammed Mehmet PhD BSc 

Prif Swyddfeydd Y Cyngor/Council Offices, Rhuthun/Ruthin, Sir Ddinbych/Denbighshire LL15 1YN.   
Ffôn/Tel (01824) 706234 Ffacs/Fax (01824) 707446 

 
 

At: Aelodau’r  Pwyllgor Llywodraethu 
Corfforaethol 

Dyddiad: 

 
Dydd Mawrth, 27 Awst 
2013 
 

 Rhif Union: 
 

01824712575 

 ebost: dcc_admin@denbighshire.gov.uk 

 
 
Annwyl Gynghorydd 
 
Fe’ch gwahoddir i fynychu cyfarfod y PWYLLGOR LLYWODRAETHU 
CORFFORAETHOL, DYDD MERCHER, 4 MEDI 2013 am 9.00 am yn YSTAFELL 
BWYLLGORA 1A, NEUADD Y SIR, RHUTHUN. 
 
Yn gywir iawn 
 
 
G Williams 
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd 
 
 
AGENDA 
 
RHAN 1 – GWAHODDIR Y WASG A’R CYHOEDD I FYNYCHU’R RHAN HON 
O’R CYFARFOD 
 
1 YMDDIHEURIADAU   

 

2 DATGAN CYSYLLTIAD   

 Dylai Aelodau ddatgan unrhyw gysylltiad personol neu gysylltiad sy’n 
rhagfarnu gydag unrhyw fater a nodwyd y dylid ei ystyried yn y cyfarfod hwn.   

 
 
 
 

Pecyn Dogfen Cyhoeddus



 
Prif Weithredwr / Chief Executive  Mohammed Mehmet PhD BSc 

Prif Swyddfeydd Y Cyngor/Council Offices, Rhuthun/Ruthin, Sir Ddinbych/Denbighshire LL15 1YN.   
Ffôn/Tel (01824) 706234 Ffacs/Fax (01824) 707446 

3 MATERION BRYS   

 Hysbysiad o eitemau y dylid, ym marn y Cadeirydd, eu hystyried yn y cyfarfod 
fel materion brys dan Adran 100B(4) Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972. 

 

4 COFNODION  (Tudalennau 5 - 12) 

 Derbyn cofnodion cyfarfod y Pwyllgor Llywodraethu Corfforaethol a 
gynhaliwyd ar 3 Gorffennaf 2013. 

 

5 HUNANASESIAD Y PWYLLGOR LLYWODRAETHU CORFFORAETHOL  
(Tudalennau 13 - 32) 

 Derbyn cyflwyniad gan y Pennaeth Archwilio Mewnol (copi ynghlwm) ar 
hunanasesiad o wybodaeth, sgiliau a phrofiad y Pwyllgor Llywodraethu 
Corfforaethol i gyflawni’i rôl yn effeithiol. 

 

6 DIWEDDARIAD CYLLIDEB  (Tudalennau 33 - 34) 

 Ystyried adroddiad gan y Pennaeth Cyllid ac Asedau (copi ynghlwm) sy’n 
rhoi’r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am y sefyllfa ddiweddaraf o ran proses pennu 
cyllideb y Cyngor ar gyfer 2014/15. 

 

7 ADOLYGIAD/DIWEDDARIAD RHEOLI TRYSORLYS 2012/13  (Tudalennau 
35 - 54) 

 Ystyried adroddiad gan y Pennaeth Cyllid ac Asedau (copi ynghlwm) am 
weithgareddau buddsoddi a benthyca’r Cyngor yn ystod 2012/13 a darparu 
manylion am weithgareddau Rheoli Trysorlys y Cyngor yn ystod 2013/14. 

 

8 ADRODDIAD CWYNION BLYNYDDOL  (Tudalennau 55 - 66) 

 Ystyried adroddiad gan y Pennaeth Cwsmeriaid ac Addysg (copi ynghlwm) a 
oedd yn darparu trosolwg o gŵynion, canmoliaethau ac adborth a gafwyd yn 
ystod y cyfnod rhwng 01.04.12 a 31.03.13. 

 

9 POLISI A PHANEL DIOGELU CORFFORAETHOL ARFAETHEDIG  
(Tudalennau 67 - 140) 

 Ystyried adroddiad gan Gyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol: Moderneiddio a Lles 
(copi ynghlwm).  Mae’r adroddiad yn cynnig mabwysiadu Polisi Diogelu 
Corfforaethol a sefydlu Panel Diogelu Corfforaethol aelodau/swyddogion ar y 
cyd. 

 

10 CYNLLUN GWEITHREDU FFRAMWAITH LLYWODRAETHU 
CORFFORAETHOL  (Tudalennau 141 - 146) 

 Ystyried adroddiad gan y Pennaeth Archwilio Mewnol (copi ynghlwm) ar y 
cynllun gweithredu a ddaeth o ganlyniad i’r adolygiad o Fframwaith 
Llywodraethu’r Cyngor a’r Datganiad Llywodraethu Blynyddol 2012/13. 
 
 

 



 
Prif Weithredwr / Chief Executive  Mohammed Mehmet PhD BSc 

Prif Swyddfeydd Y Cyngor/Council Offices, Rhuthun/Ruthin, Sir Ddinbych/Denbighshire LL15 1YN.   
Ffôn/Tel (01824) 706234 Ffacs/Fax (01824) 707446 

11 ADRODDIAD ARCHWILIO MEWNOL ADNODDAU DYNOL STRATEGOL  
(Tudalennau 147 - 158) 

 Ystyried adroddiad gan y Pennaeth Archwilio Mewnol (copi ynghlwm) sy’n 
rhoi'r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am gynnydd yn Adnoddau Dynol Strategol ar y 
cynllun gweithredu yn yr adroddiad Archwilio Mewnol o fis Hydref 2012. 

 

12 ADRODDIAD CYNNYDD ARCHWILIO MEWNOL  (Tudalennau 159 - 200) 

 Ystyried adroddiad gan y Pennaeth Archwilio Mewnol (copi ynghlwm) sy’n 
rhoi’r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am gynnydd diweddaraf y Gwasanaeth 
Archwilio Mewnol, o ran darparu’r gwasanaeth, darpariaeth sicrwydd, 
adolygiadau sydd wedi eu cwblhau, perfformiad ac effeithiolrwydd o ran 
gwelliannau.  

 

13 ADRODDIAD ARCHWILIO MEWNOL YSGOL CLAWDD OFFA  
(Tudalennau 201 - 224) 

 Ystyried adroddiad gan y Pennaeth Archwilio Mewnol (copi ynghlwm) a oedd 
yn cyflwyno’r adroddiad Archwilio Mewnol diweddar ar Ysgol Clawdd Offa, 
Prestatyn. 

 

14 ADBORTH O’R CYFARFOD CYDRADDOLDEB CORFFORAETHOL   

 Derbyn adroddiad llafar am y cyfarfod Cydraddoldeb Corfforaethol. 
 

15 RHAGLEN WAITH Y PWYLLGOR LLYWODRAETHU CORFFORAETHOL  
(Tudalennau 225 - 228) 

 Ystyried Rhaglen Gwaith i’r Dyfodol y Pwyllgor (copi ynghlwm). 

 
 
AELODAETH 
 
Y Cynghorwyr 
 
Brian Blakeley 
Stuart Davies 
Peter Duffy 
 

Martyn Holland 
Gwyneth Kensler 
Jason McLellan 
 

Aelod Lleyg 
 
Paul Whitham   

 
 
COPIAU I’R: 
 
Holl Gynghorwyr er gwybodaeth 
Y Wasg a’r Llyfrgelloedd 
Cynghorau Tref a Chymuned  



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



 

PWYLLGOR LLYWODRAETHU CORFFORAETHOL 
 
Cofnodion cyfarfod o’r Pwyllgor Llywodraethu Corfforaethol a gynhaliwyd yn Ystafell 
Bwyllgora 1a, Neuadd y Sir, Rhuthun, Dydd Mercher, 3 Gorffennaf 2013 am 9.30 am. 
 

YN BRESENNOL 
 

Y Cynghr. Brian Blakeley, Martyn Holland, Gwyneth Kensler (Is-Gadeirydd) a Jason 
McLellan (Cadeirydd) a Paul Whitham (Aelod Lleyg). 
 
Roedd y Cynghr. Julian Thompson-Hill, Aelod Arweiniol Cyllid ac Asedau, a Barbara 
Smith, Aelod Arweiniol Moderneiddio a Pherfformiad, hefyd yn bresennol. 
 

HEFYD YN BRESENNOL 

 
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd (GW); Pennaeth Gwasanaethau 
Archwilio Mewnol (IB); Rheolwr Archwilio (BS); Pennaeth AD Strategol (LA); Rheolwr 
Gwasanaethau AD (CR); Prif Gyfrifydd (RW); Rheolwr Tîm Gwelliannau Corfforaethol 
(TW); a Gweinyddwr Pwyllgorau (KEJ) ynghyd â Chynrychiolwyr o Swyddfa Archwilio 
Cymru (GB ac AV) 
 

 
PWYNT HYSBYSU 
 
Oherwydd nifer y busnes i’w drafod a chyfyngiadau amser aelodau pwyllgor, cytunwyd i 
ohirio Eitem Rhaglen 5 ‘Hunanasesiad y Pwyllgor’ i’r cyfarfod nesaf ac i amrywio trefn y 
rhaglen i ganiatáu’r newid hwnnw. 
 
1 YMDDIHEURIADAU  

 
Cynghorydd Stuart Davies 
 

2 DATGAN CYSYLLTIAD  
 
Ni chodwyd unrhyw ddatganiad personol neu gysylltiad sy’n rhagfarnu.  
 

3 MATERION BRYS  
 
Ni chodwyd unrhyw fater brys. 
 

4 COFNODION  
 
Cyflwynwyd cofnodion y Pwyllgor Llywodraethu Corfforaethol a gynhaliwyd 22 Mai 
2013. 
 
Materion yn Codi – Tudalen 8 Eitem Rhif 7 Adroddiad Gwella Blynyddol – 
Cynghorodd y Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd bod Grŵp 
Cadeiryddion ac Is Gadeiryddion Archwilio wedi cytuno cyflwyno’r Gofrestr Risg 
Gorfforaethol i’r pwyllgor dwywaith y flwyddyn yn dilyn adolygiad gan yr Uwch Dîm 
Gweithredol er mwyn darparu trosolwg strategol o’r trefniadau.  Ymdrinnir â 

Eitem Agenda 4

Tudalen 5



materion yn ymwneud â risgiau unigol sydd angen mwy o fanylder gan y pwyllgor 
archwilio priodol.  Gofynnodd y Cadeirydd bod cofnodion Grŵp Cadeiryddion ac Is 
Gadeiryddion Archwilio yn cael eu dosbarthu i aelodau’r pwyllgor er gwybodaeth.  
[KEJ i weithredu]  
 
Sylwodd y Cynghorydd Martyn Holland efallai na fyddai cyfeiriadau a wnaed yn y 
cofnodion yn cael eu deall yn rhwydd gan y rhai hynny nad oedd wedi bod yn 
bresennol yn y cyfarfod. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD derbyn a chymeradwyo cofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd 22 
Mai 2013 fel cofnod cywir. 
 

5 HUNANASESIAD Y PWYLLGOR  
 
Oherwydd nifer y busnes i’w drafod a’r cyfyngiadau amser  – 
 
PENDERFYNWYD gohirio sesiwn Hunanasesiad y Pwyllgor tan gyfarfod nesaf y 
pwyllgor 4 Medi 2013. 
 

6 ADRODDIAD CYNNYDD ARCHWILIO MEWNOL  
 
Cyflwynodd Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau Archwilio Mewnol (HIAS) adroddiad (a 
ddosbarthwyd yn flaenorol) yn diweddaru aelodau ar gynnydd diweddaraf y 
Gwasanaeth Archwilio Mewnol.  Amlygodd yr HIAS feysydd penodol o’r adroddiad 
fel a ganlyn – 
 

• cynnydd wrth ddarparu Cynllun Gweithredol Archwilio Mewnol 2013/14 

• adroddiadau archwilio mewnol diweddar a gyflwynwyd mewn perthynas â 
Menter Brecwast am Ddim Llywodraeth Cymru; Cyllid Myfyrwyr Addysg 
Uwch Llywodraeth Cymru; Systemau Ariannol - Rhuthun 2012/13; Rheoli 
Risg, ac Ysgol Clawdd Offa, Prestatyn 

• nid oedd unrhyw bryder yn weddill ynglŷn ag ymateb rheolwyr i’r materion a 
godwyd gydag eitem rhaglen ar wahân ar AD Strategol,  

• perfformiad Archwilio Mewnol a mesurau allweddol. 
 
Trafododd aelodau eu gofynion adrodd ar gyfer adroddiadau archwilio mewnol, a 
nodwyd bod adroddiadau’n cael eu cyflwyno yn dilyn dyddiad cau'r rhaglen mewn 
rhai achosion, ac felly nid wedi’u cynnwys i’w trafod yn y cyfarfod nesaf.  Roedd yr 
adroddiad archwilio a gyflwynwyd mewn perthynas ag Ysgol Clawdd Offa yn disgyn 
i’r categori hwnnw ac roedd yn destun pryder yn sgil y sgôr sicrwydd isel a 
roddwyd. Cytunwyd y dylid darparu adroddiad archwilio llawn i aelodau ar adeg y 
cyhoeddi a bod y rhai hynny sy’n destun sgôr oren/coch yn cael eu hystyried yng 
nghyfarfod nesaf y pwyllgor. [IB i weithredu]  Byddai aelodau hefyd yn cael y cyfle 
i godi materion ynglŷn ag adroddiadau archwilio eraill yn uniongyrchol gyda’r HIAS 
neu yn y cyfarfod.  Yn sgil pryderon aelodau ynglŷn ag Ysgol Clawdd Offa, 
rhoddodd yr HIAS ddiweddariad ar lafar a chytunodd y pwyllgor i dderbyn 
adroddiad manwl yn eu cyfarfod nesaf. [IB i weithredu]  Mewn ymateb i gwestiwn 
gan y Cynghorydd Gwyneth Kensler, cadarnhaodd y Pennaeth Gwasanaethau 
Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd y gellid gwahodd yr Aelod Arweiniol i fod yn bresennol. 
 

Tudalen 6



Ystyriodd yr aelodau ddadansoddiad o’r gwaith archwilio mewnol hefyd ar gyfer 
2013/14 ac fe gadarnhaodd yr HIAS faterion mewn ymateb i gwestiynau wedi 
hynny gan ddarparu diffiniadau ar gyfer nifer o feysydd gwaith a’r cylch gwaith 
archwilio i’w gynnal o fewn y meysydd hynny.  Mewn perthynas ag Archwiliadau 
Cronfa Ysgol, adroddodd yr HIAS ynghylch nifer o ymweliadau ysgol â thema ac fe 
gynghorodd ei fod wedi datblygu canllaw Saesneg clir i ysgolion a fyddai ar gael ym 
mis Medi.  

 
PENDERFYNWYD – 
 
(a)  yn destun gweithredu’r gofynion adrodd i’r pwyllgor fel y manylir uchod, 

derbyn a nodi’r adroddiad cynnydd ar y Gwasanaeth Archwilio Mewnol,  
 
(b)  cyflwyno adroddiad cynnydd ar Ysgol Clawdd Offa, Prestatyn yng nghyfarfod 

nesaf y pwyllgor 4 Medi 2013, a gwahodd yr Aelod Cabinet Arweiniol dros 
Addysg i fod yn bresennol. [IB i weithredu] 

 
7 ADRODDIAD ARCHWILIO MEWNOL STRATEGOL AD  

 
Cyflwynodd Rheolwr Gwasanaethau AD (HRSM) adroddiad (a ddosbarthwyd yn 
flaenorol) yn diweddaru aelodau ynghylch camau gweithredu a ganfuwyd fel rhan 
o’r adroddiad Archwilio Mewnol ar gyfer AD Strategol.  Yn sgil y sgôr sicrwydd isel a 
roddwyd ar gyfer darparu’r cynllun gweithredu archwilio a adroddwyd i’r pwyllgor yn 
Chwefror 2013, roedd aelodau wedi cytuno i adolygu cynnydd a gofynnwyd am 
ddiweddariad yn y cyfarfod hwn. 
 
Adroddodd yr HRSM ynghylch cynnydd y cynllun gweithredu a wnaed ers Chwefror 
ac fe fanylodd hefyd ynghylch gwaith pellach i’w gynnal gyda rhai terfynau amser 
diwygiedig.  Ymhelaethodd ynghylch nifer o feysydd gwaith sy’n weddill ac a 
grynhowyd yn yr adroddiad.  Cyfeiriwyd hefyd at gynnydd y Cynllun Gwella AD a 
ystyriwyd fel gwaith sylweddol. 
 
Gofynnodd aelodau am eglurhad ynghylch nifer o gamau i weithredu arnynt, cafwyd 
ymholiad ynghylch y rhesymau dros oedi wrth eu gweithredu ac fe ofynnwyd am 
sicrwydd ynghylch cynnydd yn y dyfodol.  Ymatebodd swyddogion fel a ganlyn –  
 

• adrodd ynghylch systemau TG a ddefnyddir ar hyn o bryd ar gyfer AD a 
gwaith yn parhau i gydweddu data o’r adran Gyflogau a Trent, ynghyd â 
chynlluniau i integreiddio’r systemau hynny i ganiatáu bod data’n cael ei 
gofnodi ar unwaith 

• ymhelaethwyd ynghylch adolygiadau gallu proffesiynol ar gyfer staff AD i 
fesur perfformiad a chanfod unrhyw fylchau datblygu 

• roedd fframwaith recriwtio newydd wedi’i gyflwyno i fynd i’r afael â’r 
problemau sy’n ymwneud â defnyddio geirdaon a dilysu cymwysterau, a 
byddai gwiriadau diogelwch yn cael eu cynnal i sicrhau cydymffurfiad 

• cytunwyd bod penderfynu ar fylchau gallu a chynllunio olyniaeth yn hanfodol 
yn sgil pwysau gweithlu, a chynghorwyd bod y broses hon wedi’i hymgorffori 
i’r arfer cynllunio gweithlu a gynhaliwyd yn flynyddol gyda gwasanaethau  

Tudalen 7



• cadarnhawyd oherwydd pwysau gwaith nid oedd yr adran Gyflogau wedi 
gallu mynd i gyfarfodydd gydag AD ond mae’n debygol y byddai cyfarfodydd 
misol yn ail ddechrau yng Ngorffennaf 

• cydnabuwyd y risg i enw da’r cyngor yn codi o gyflogi cyn weithwyr a 
gynhwyswyd o fewn y Polisi Tâl. 

 
Trafododd y pwyllgor gyda’r swyddogion hefyd yr angen am ddata gweithwyr cywir 
a theimlwyd y dylid gwneud mwy i fynd i’r afael â’r mater hwnnw.  Teimlodd y 
Cynghorydd Martyn Holland y dylai rheolwyr atebol gymryd mwy o gyfrifoldeb ac 
awgrymodd y dylid cyflwyno proses i reolwyr wirio cywirdeb data staff. [LA/CR i 
weithredu] 
 
Adroddodd Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau Archwilio Mewnol (HIAS) ar lafar ynghylch 
yr adolygiad dilynol a gynhaliwyd yn ystod yr wythnos flaenorol, gan gynghori ei fod 
yn dal i gael pryderon difrifol ynghylch darparu’r cynllun gweithredu archwilio a’r 
cynllun Gwella AD, a theimlodd nad oedd digon o gynnydd wedi’i wneud.  
Amlygodd mai 21 allan o’r 45 cam gweithredu gwreiddiol yn unig oedd wedi’u 
cwblhau ac roedd rhai terfynau amser wedi’u hymestyn fwy nag unwaith.  Teimlwyd 
bod y cynlluniau yn rhy uchelgeisiol o ran terfyn amser ac efallai nad oedd modd eu 
cyflawni.  Byddai’r adroddiad dilynol terfynol ar gael yn fuan a byddai dilyniad 
pellach yn debygol o gael ei gynnal yn Nhachwedd.  Cyfeiriodd y Pennaeth AD 
Strategol at bwysau ychwanegol ar y gwasanaeth o ganlyniad i’r hinsawdd gyfredol 
a’r blaenoriaethau sy’n newid ond darparodd rhywfaint o sicrwydd ynglŷn â darparu 
cynlluniau gweithredu o fewn terfynau amser, gan gynghori bod adnoddau penodol 
ychwanegol wedi’u darparu’n benodol at y diben hwnnw.  Cytunodd yr HRSM bod 
Cynllun Gwella AD yn uchelgeisiol ond roedd yn hyderus y byddai modd cwrdd â’r 
dyddiad cau yn Rhagfyr 2013 ar gyfer camau gweithredu penodol o fewn y cynllun 
gweithredu archwilio. 
 
Nododd yr aelodau farn yr archwiliad a mynegwyd hyder gan swyddogion AD y 
gellid cwrdd â’r terfynau amser.  Cytunodd y pwyllgor i barhau i fonitro cynnydd a 
derbyn diweddariad pellach yn eu cyfarfod nesaf. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD derbyn a nodi’r Adroddiad Archwilio Mewnol AD Strategol a 
chyflwyno adroddiad cynnydd pellach yng nghyfarfod nesaf y pwyllgor 4 Medi 2013. 
[IB/LA/CR i weithredu] 
 

8 DATGANIAD CYFRIFON DRAFFT 2012/13  
 
Cyflwynodd y Pen Gyfrifydd (CA) adroddiad (a ddosbarthwyd yn flaenorol) yn 
darparu trosolwg o’r Datganiad Cyfrifon Drafft 2012/13 a’r broses sy’n ei ategu.  
Roedd y cyfrifon drafft wedi’u hatodi i’r adroddiad a byddent ar gael yn ffurfiol i’r 
cyhoedd eu harchwilio yn Awst. 
 
Darparwyd diweddariad a throsolwg o’r cyfrifon drafft i aelodau a byddent yn derbyn 
y cyfrifol terfynol i’w cymeradwyo ym Medi 2013.  Wrth ddarparu manylion sefyllfa 
ariannol y cyngor, tynnodd y Pen Gyfrifydd sylw’r aelodau at y meysydd canlynol o 
fewn y cyfrifon – 
 

• sefyllfa refeniw ar gyfer y flwyddyn ac esboniad o’r addasiadau a wnaed  

Tudalen 8



• y sefyllfa alldro refeniw ar gyllidebau gwasanaeth a chorfforaethol yn dangos 
tanwariant o £1.525m 

• arenillion Treth y Cyngor yn uwch na’r hyn a amcangyfrifwyd o £265k 

• cyfraniadau at a gan gronfeydd a glustnodwyd 

• y fantolen yn dangos gwerth asedau a rhwymedigaethau a’r fethodoleg 
newydd ar gyfer cyfrifo gwerth stoc y tai cyngor 

• lwfansau aelodau a chydnabyddiaeth ariannol swyddogion 

• partïon cysylltiedig gan gynnwys aelodau etholedig, swyddogion a chwmnïau 

• y Datganiad Llywodraethu Blynyddol. 
 
Yn sgil natur gynhwysol a thechnegol y cyfrifon, cytunodd yr aelodau i graffu ar y 
ddogfen y tu allan i’r cyfarfod a chodi unrhyw gwestiwn yn uniongyrchol gyda’r 
swyddogion cyllid neu yng nghyfarfod 27 Medi pan gyflwynir y cyfrifon terfynol.  
Atgoffodd Mr Anthony Veale, Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru (WAO) yr aelodau bod y 
cyfrifon yn destun archwiliad gan Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru ond nad oedd unrhyw 
bryderon amlwg. 
 
Ymholodd y Cynghorydd Brian Blakeley ynghylch sefyllfa Clwyd Leisure Ltd (CLL).  
Ymatebodd y Pen Gyfrifydd nad oedd y cyfrifon a archwiliwyd ar gyfer 2012/13 ar 
gael eto ar gyfer unrhyw un o’r cwmnïau cysylltiedig, a chadarnhaodd bod materion 
ehangach yn ymwneud â CLL yn cael eu trafod gyda nhw ar lefel uwch. Mewn 
ymateb i gwestiwn gan y Cynghorydd Gwyneth Kenser, ymhelaethodd y Pen 
Gyfrifydd ynghylch proses y cyngor i ddelio â buddiannau dod â swydd i ben, ac â 
disgresiwn, a chadarnhaodd y byddai unrhyw gynnydd mewn pensiwn yn arwain at 
greu cost barhaus.  
 
PENDERFYNWYD nodi’r sefyllfa fel a gyflwynwyd yn y cyfrifon drafft. 
 

Gwahardd y wasg a'r cyhoedd 
 
PENDERFYNWYD dan ddarpariaethau Adran 100A Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972, 
gwahardd y Wasg a’r Cyhoedd o’r cyfarfod ar gyfer yr eitemau busnes canlynol ar y sail y 
byddai gwybodaeth eithriedig yn debygol o gael ei datgelu fel y’i diffinnir ym Mharagraffau 
14 Rhan 4 Atodlen 12A y Ddeddf. 
 
9 CYLLIDEB / CYNLLUN ARIANNOL TYMOR CANOLIG – Y DIWEDDARAF  

 
Cyflwynodd y Cynghorydd Julian Thompson-Hill, Arweinydd Arweiniol Cyllid ac 
Asedau, adroddiad cyfrinachol (a ddosbarthwyd yn flaenorol) yn diweddaru aelodau 
ynghylch  setliadau cyllideb refeniw posibl a’r effaith bosibl ar gynllunio ariannol y 
Cyngor. 
 
Yn sgil ansicrwydd ynghylch setliadau’r dyfodol, cytunwyd i ohirio diweddaru a 
chyhoeddi fersiwn 2013/16 o’r Cynllun Ariannol Tymor Canolig hyd nes y ceir 
eglurhad gan Lywodraeth Cymru.  Byddai effaith ariannol sylweddol ar draws y 
cyngor ac roedd amrywiaeth o oblygiadau posibl a sefyllfaoedd wedi’u modelu ar 
gyfer y tair blynedd nesaf wedi’u manylu o fewn yr adroddiad.  Roedd sesiwn briffio 
i’r cyngor a drefnwyd ar gyfer 15 Gorffennaf wedi’i chadw ar gyfer gweithdy cyllideb 
i roi briff i aelodau ar y sefyllfa ariannol wrth symud ymlaen a darparu cyfle i drafod.  

Tudalen 9



Byddai diweddariad pellach yn cael ei gyflwyno i’r pwyllgor 4 Medi.  Mewn ymateb i 
gwestiynau fe wnaeth y Pen Gyfrifydd – 
 

• ymhelaethu ynghylch effaith debygol Cyfrifiad 2011 ar arian grant cynnal 
refeniw y cyngor 

• esbonio’r rhesymeg y tu ôl i gyfradd gasglu Treth y Cyngor a 
amcangyfrifwyd, gyda’r dybiaeth y byddai unrhyw arian dros ben yn cael ei 
ddefnyddio i ddarparu’r Cynllun Corfforaethol 

• cytunwyd bod symud costau mewn gwasanaethau iechyd yn broblem a 
sefydlwyd dulliau i liniaru’r risg honno 

• byddai arian yn cael ei geisio gan Lywodraeth Cymru i fynd i’r afael â 
chanfyddiadau adroddiad yr ymchwilydd i lifogydd Tachwedd 2012. 

 
PENDERFYNWYD nodi’r sefyllfa fel a gyflwynir yn yr adroddiad a’r atodiadau. 
 

SESIWN AGORED 
 
Ar ôl cwblhau’r busnes uchod, parhaodd y cyfarfod mewn sesiwn agored. 
 
10 FFRAMWAITH RHEOLI RISG STRATEGOL  

 
Cyflwynodd Rheolwr Tîm Gwella Corfforaethol (CITM) adroddiad (a ddosbarthwyd 
yn flaenorol) ynglŷn â’r Fframwaith Rheoli Risg Strategol A lywodraethodd sut 
roedd y Cyngor yn rheoli risg ar lefel gorfforaethol a gwasanaeth.  Roedd manylion 
am y systemau ar waith er mwyn rheoli risg yn effeithiol wedi’u cynnwys yn yr 
adroddiad.  Gofynnwyd i’r aelodau ystyried a oedd angen unrhyw gamau pellach i 
ddarparu sicrwydd am y fframwaith rheoli risg. 
 
Gofynnodd yr Aelod Lleyg Paul Whitham am sicrwydd bod prosesau ar waith i 
ganfod risgiau yn gynnar i’w cynnwys o fewn y Gofrestr Risg Gorfforaethol (CRR).  
Esboniodd y CITM y dulliau ar gyfer canfod risgiau blaenllaw i’w hystyried gan yr 
Uwch Dîm Gweithredol (CET) ynghyd â gwaith y Swyddogion Gwella Corfforaethol 
a gwasanaethau unigol yn y cyswllt hwnnw.  Cadarnhaodd bod swyddogion yn 
ystyried y risgiau a fanylir o fewn adroddiadau pwyllgor safonol ond fe ganfuwyd y 
mwyafrif o risgiau yn ystod sgyrsiau gyda gwasanaethau unigol.  Cyfeiriodd y CITM 
at gyfrifoldebau CET fel perchnogion y gofrestr risg a rôl y Tîm Gwella Corfforaethol 
fel hwylusydd yn y broses honno. 
 
Cyfeiriodd y Cynghorydd Barbara Smith, Aelod Arweiniol Moderneiddio a 
Pherfformiad, at gyfrifoldebau’r swyddogion a’r aelodau etholedig i ganfod risg, gan 
gynnwys rôl y Pwyllgor Llywodraethu Corfforaethol yn y cyswllt hwnnw.  Cyfeiriodd 
at yr adroddiad Archwilio Mewnol diweddar ar y broses rheoli risg a’r argymhelliad i 
ymgysylltu’n well ag aelodau etholedig yn y broses honno.  Ymatebodd y CITM y 
byddai Aelodau Cabinet yn chwarae rhan i adolygu’r CRR yn y dyfodol ochr yn ochr 
â CET.  Mater arall a ddeilliodd o’r adroddiad archwilio oedd yr angen i rai 
gwasanaethau gynnwys rheolaeth risg ymhellach ac fe gynghorodd y CITM bod y 
Cyfarwyddwyr Corfforaethol yn chwarae rôl arweiniol yn y cyswllt hwnnw a 
adlewyrchwyd hefyd o fewn y broses herio gwasanaeth.  Ychwanegodd y Rheolwr 
Archwilio bod nifer o awgrymiadau i hwyluso’r integreiddiad o reoli risg o fewn 
gwasanaethau wedi’i drafod gyda’r Uwch Dîm Arweinyddiaeth. 

Tudalen 10



 
Yn sgil cyfrifoldebau’r aelodau etholedig o fewn y broses rheoli risg, amlygodd y 
Cadeirydd yr angen am hyfforddiant ac roedd yn awyddus i bob aelod gyfranogi.  
Cytunwyd y byddai’r CITM yn darparu sesiwn briffio risg i aelodau yng nghyfarfod 
Briffio nesaf y Cyngor 16 Medi. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD  – 

 
(a)  derbyn a nodi’r adroddiad yn manylu ynghylch Fframwaith Rheoli Risg 

Strategol, 
 

(b)  bod y Rheolwr Tîm Gwella Corfforaethol yn darparu Sesiwn Briffio Risg yn 
Sesiwn Briffio nesaf y Cyngor 16 Medi 2013. [TW i weithredu] 

 
Ar y pwynt hwn (11.40 a.m.) cymerodd y Cyngor egwyl am luniaeth.  
 

11 SWYDDFA ARCHWILIO CYMRU: GWAITH ARCHWILIO PERFFORMIAD A 
FFIOEDD 2013-14  
 
Cyflwynwyd adroddiad gan Reolwr Tîm Gwella Corfforaethol (a ddosbarthwyd yn 
flaenorol) yn cyflwyno rhaglen gwaith archwilio perfformiad i’w gynnal gan Swyddfa 
Archwilio Cymru (WAO) yng Nghyngor Sir Ddinbych yn ystod 2013 – 14 a’r ffi 
gysylltiedig am y gwaith hwnnw.  Ymhelaethodd Cynrychiolydd Swyddfa Archwilio 
Cymru, Mr Gwilym Bury, ynghylch elfennau penodol y gwaith ar gyfer Sir Ddinbych 
yn ymdrin â – 
 

• Diweddariad Asesiad Corfforaethol 

• Archwiliad Cynllun Gwella 

• Archwiliad Asesu Perfformiad 

• Adolygiad Ansawdd Data 

• Adolygiad Lleol 
 
Yn ogystal â hyn, byddai rhaglen gwella ac Astudiaethau Cenedlaethol Llywodraeth 
Leol yn cael ei chynnal mewn perthynas ag – 
 

• Astudiaeth gwella – Diogelu 

• Astudiaethau Cenedlaethol Llywodraeth Leol – Diwygio Lles a Darparu gyda 
llai – yr effaith ar wasanaethau a dinasyddion 

 
Cynghorwyd aelodau mai Sir Ddinbych oedd yr ail isaf gyda ffioedd perfformiad ar 
gyfer awdurdodau lleol yng Nghymru, a adlewyrchodd yn rhannol risg is y cyngor o’i 
gymharu ag ychydig o flynyddoedd yn ôl.  Ychwanegodd y Cynghorydd Julian 
Thompson-Hill bod hyn o ganlyniad i waith rhagweithiol a wnaed gan y cyngor dros 
y blynyddoedd diwethaf. 
 
Mewn ymateb i gwestiynau, darparodd Mr Bury rywfaint o derfynau amser dangosol 
ar gyfer pob darn o waith ar gyfer Sir Ddinbych.  O ran astudiaethau cenedlaethol, 
nid oedd unrhyw benderfyniad wedi’i wneud hyd yn hyn ynglŷn â pha awdurdodau 
fyddai’n cael eu dewis ar gyfer gwaith maes, ond byddai’r astudiaethau’n cael eu 
cynnal yn y flwyddyn ariannol gyfredol.  Byddai adroddiad cenedlaethol ar sefyllfa 

Tudalen 11



Cymru gyfan yn cael ei gynhyrchu ac mae’n debygol y byddai’r cynghorau a 
ddewiswyd ar gyfer yr astudiaeth hefyd yn derbyn adborth unigol. 
 
Roed y pwyllgor yn edrych ymlaen at dderbyn yr adroddiadau yn y dyfodol a – 
 
PENDERFYNWYD derbyn a nodi adroddiad Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru – Gwaith 
Archwilio Perfformiad a Ffioedd  2013 – 14. 
 

12 RHAGLEN WAITH Y PWYLLGOR LLYWODRAETHU CORFFORAETHOL  
 
Cyflwynwyd rhaglen waith y Pwyllgor Llywodraethu Corfforaethol (a ddosbarthwyd 
yn flaenorol) i’w hystyried. 
 
Yn ystod y drafodaeth, amlygodd y Cynghorydd Martyn Holland yr angen am ddull i 
gynrychiolwyr aelodau etholedig ar gyrff allanol i adrodd yn ôl i’r cyngor ar eu 
gweithgareddau.  Cytunodd y Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd 
(HLDS) ddarparu protocol drafft ar gyfer y diben hwnnw er ystyriaeth y pwyllgor.  Ar 
ôl trafodaeth bellach fe wnaeth y pwyllgor – 
 

• ail gadarnhau bod yr eitemau ychwanegol canlynol yn cael eu cynnwys er 
ystyriaeth yn y cyfarfod nesaf 4 Medi 2013 – 

 
-  Hunanasesiad Corfforaethol [IB i weithredu] 
-  Diweddariad Adroddiad Archwilio Mewnol AD Strategol [IB/LA/CR i 

weithredu] 
-  Adroddiad Archwilio Mewnol Ysgol Clawdd Offa [IB i weithredu] 

 

• cytuno yn sgil yr eitemau ychwanegol i’w hystyried uchod, bod cyfarfod nesaf 
y pwyllgor yn cael ei gynnal yn gynharach am 9.00 a.m. [KEJ i weithredu] 

• cytuno i dderbyn y Gofrestr Risg Gorfforaethol fel eitem fusnes bob chwe mis 
[TW i weithredu], a 

• gofynnir bod yr HLDS yn darparu protocol drafft i gynrychiolwyr ar gyrff 
allanol i adrodd yn ôl ynghylch eu gweithgareddau ar gyfer cyfarfod 
Tachwedd. [GW i weithredu] 

 
PENDERFYNWYD, yn destun y diwygiadau a’r cytundebau y cyfeirir atynt uchod, 
cymeradwyo’r rhaglen gwaith i’r dyfodol. 
 
Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 12.10 p.m. 
 

Tudalen 12



 
Adroddiad i’r:   Pwyllgor Llywodraethu Corfforaethol 
 
Dyddiad y Cyfarfod:  4 Medi 2013 
 
Awdur yr Adroddiad: Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Archwilio Mewnol 
 
Teitl: Hunan Asesiad y Pwyllgor Llywodraethu 

Corfforaethol 
 

 
1. Am beth mae’r adroddiad yn sôn?  

 Mae’r adroddiad yn cyd-fynd â chyflwyniad y Pennaeth Archwilio 
Mewnol ar hunan asesiad o wybodaeth, sgiliau a phrofiad y Pwyllgor 
Llywodraethu Corfforaethol i gyflawni ei rôl yn effeithiol. 

2. Beth yw’r rheswm dros lunio’r adroddiad hwn?  

 Yr arfer a argymhellir yw fod ‘pwyllgorau archwilio’ yn cynnal hunan 
asesiad blynyddol ac yn nodi unrhyw wendidau ac anghenion 
hyfforddiant a datblygu. Mae hyn yn rhan o Fframwaith Lywodraethu 
Corfforaethol y Cyngor i wneud yn siŵr fod ganddo ‘bwyllgor archwilio’ 
effeithiol. 

 Nid oedd ymgais y Pennaeth Archwilio Mewnol i gynnal hunan asesiad 
drwy holiadur yn llwyddiant; felly, bydd y cyflwyniad yn cynnwys y 
gofynion allweddol sydd angen ar gyfer ‘pwyllgor archwilio’ effeithiol ac 
unrhyw feysydd lle mae angen cynllun gweithredu gwelliannau lle bod 
angen. 

3. Beth yw’r Argymhellion? 

 Dylai’r Pwyllgor ystyried ei sgiliau, gwybodaeth a’i brofiad yn y 
meysydd allweddol sydd wedi’u cynnwys dan y cyflwyniad a nodi 
unrhyw anghenion hyfforddiant a datblygu i’w alluogi i gyflawni ei rôl yn 
effeithiol. 

 

 

 

 

Eitem Agenda 5

Tudalen 13



Tudalen 14

Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



Corporate Governance 

CommitteeCommittee

Self-assessment

September 2013

T
udalen 15



Assurance

What assurance do you need?

Where should you get assurance?

Are you getting enough assurance?

T
udalen 16



Governance Framework

What is the governance framework?

Are you involved enough in its Are you involved enough in its 
development?

Can you confidently challenge the 
content of the Annual Governance 
Statement?

T
udalen 17



Partnerships

How do you know 

how well our 

partnerships are partnerships are 

governed?

T
udalen 18



Internal Audit

What is IA’s role

Does IA provide enough assurance?

How do you know IA is effective?

T
udalen 19



Internal Audit

Does IA provide you with enough 
information in the right format?

Do you need more from IA?

Should you meet with the HIAS at least 
once a year in private?

T
udalen 20



Challenge

How well do you 

robustly challenge 

senior management senior management 

when needed?

T
udalen 21



Risk management

How well do you understand the risk 
management framework?

Do you know what the Council’s Do you know what the Council’s 
corporate risks are?

How confident are you that the Council 
is managing its corporate risks?

T
udalen 22



Risk management

What are this 

Committee’s/Performance 

Scrutiny’s roles relating to Scrutiny’s roles relating to 

risk management?

T
udalen 23



Fraud

How much do you know about fraud 
trends in the public sector?

What are the Councils key fraud risks?

What counter-fraud arrangements does 
the Council have in place?

T
udalen 24



Ethics

What arrangements are in place to 
ensure good ethical behaviour by 
officers and members?officers and members?

How confident are you that these 
arrangements work in practice?

T
udalen 25



Financial management

What financial risks does the Council 
face?

What are the specific risks relating to What are the specific risks relating to 
Treasury Management?

How well do you understand the 
Statement of Accounts?

T
udalen 26



Financial management

How well are you able 

to robustly challenge 

the Statement of the Statement of 

Accounts?

T
udalen 27



External audit

What is external audit’s role?

How does this differ from internal How does this differ from internal 
audit?

How do you know external audit is 
effective?

T
udalen 28



External audit

Does external audit provide you with 
enough information in the right format?

Do you need more from external Do you need more from external 
audit?

Should you meet with the external 
auditor at least once a year in private?

T
udalen 29



Committee knowledge

Is the Chair confident in his knowledge 
of finance, risk management, audit and 
the Council’s regulatory regime?

How well are you trained for your role?

Should new committee members have 
induction training in their new role?

T
udalen 30



Committee support

How well do officers support you in 
meetings and provide advice and 
guidance?

Are you adequately prepared for the Are you adequately prepared for the 
Committee meetings?

Can written/verbal reports to the 
committee be improved?

T
udalen 31



Committee effectiveness

Should the Chair 

report to Council 

annually on the annually on the 

committee’s work and 

performance?

T
udalen 32



 
Adroddiad i’r:    Pwyllgor Llywodraethu Corfforaethol  
 
Dyddiad y Cyfarfod:   4 Medi 2013 
 
Aelod / Swyddog Arweiniol:  Pennaeth Cyllid ac Asedau 
 
Awdur yr Adroddiad :  Prif Gyfrifydd  
 
Teitl:      Cyllideb 2014/15 - Diweddariad 
 

 
1. Am beth mae’r adroddiad yn sôn?    
 
Mae’r adroddiad yn rhoi diweddariad ynglŷn â'r sefyllfa ddiweddaraf o ran y 
broses o osod cyllideb y cyngor ar gyfer 2014/15. Bydd yr adroddiad hwn yn 
canolbwyntio ar roi ystyriaeth i adroddiad sydd i’w gyflwyno i’r Cyngor Sir ar 
10 Medi 2013 (Atodiad 1)   
 
2. Beth yw’r rheswm dros lunio’r adroddiad hwn?  
 
Mae gan y Pwyllgor Llywodraethu Corfforaethol swyddogaeth i gadw trosolwg 
o’r broses gyllidebu.  
  
3. Beth yw’r Argymhellion? 
 
Bod y Pwyllgor yn nodi’r sefyllfa ddiweddaraf a'r camau arfaethedig nesaf ac 
yn rhoi ystyriaeth i’r cynigion ar gyfer arbedion sy’n mynd ger bron y Cyngor 
Sir i’w cymeradwyo’n ffurfiol.  
 
4. Manylion am yr adroddiad  
 
Ym mis Mehefin 2013, cyflwynwyd adroddiad yn amlinellu’r rhagdybiaethau 
diweddaraf mewn perthynas â setliad posibl cyllideb refeniw’r cyngor a 
goblygiadau ariannol posibl hynny. Hyd nes y cyhoeddir fersiwn ddrafft y 
Setliad Llywodraeth Leol fis Hydref, ni fydd y sefyllfa’n eglur er bod pob 
arwydd y bydd y setliad yn un gwael. Mae Cymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol 
Cymru yn argymell fod cynghorau’n tybio y bydd gostyngiad o -4% yn 
2014/15. Bydd y cyngor hefyd yn dioddef effaith niweidiol newidiadau sy’n 
digwydd o ganlyniad i ddata’r cyfrifiad sydd wedi amlygu fod poblogaeth y 
cyngor yn llai nag oedd wedi ei amcangyfrif mewn amcangyfrifon poblogaeth 
cenedlaethol.   
 
Mewn ymateb i’r setliad gwael tebygol, mae pob gwasanaeth yn gwneud 
cynnydd wrth ddynodi cynigion ar gyfer arbedion gogyfer â’r tair blynedd 
nesaf. Hyd yma, mae cynigion newydd gogyfer ag arbedion sy’n dod i 
oddeutu £2.5m wedi cael eu dynodi ac mae tri gwasanaeth yn weddill i’w 
hadolygu. Caiff y cynigion hyn eu hystyried mewn rhagor o fanylder gydag 
aelodau arweiniol fis Medi cyn eu cyflwyno i aelodau etholedig mewn 
gweithdy fis Hydref.  

Eitem Agenda 6

Tudalen 33



  
Mae’r broses o herio gwasanaethau yn ystod 2012/13 a 2013/14 eisoes wedi 
dynodi arbedion posibl o oddeutu £1.7m gogyfer â 2014/15. Mae’r cynigion 
hynny wedi cael eu hystyried mewn manylder yn ystod yr amrywiol 
gyfarfodydd herio gwasanaethau a gynhaliwyd fel rhan o’r broses setlo 
cyllideb ar gyfer 2012/13 a 2013/14. Y bwriad felly yw mynd â’r arbedion sydd 
eisoes wedi eu dynodi ger bron y Cyngor Sir i’w cymeradwy’n ffurfiol yn 
gynnar fis Medi fel y gellir canolbwyntio ar arbedion newydd sydd wedi eu 
dynodi a chynigion er mwyn ymdopi ag unrhyw ddiffygion yng nghyllideb y 
flwyddyn nesaf.  
 
5. Sut mae’r penderfyniad yn cyfrannu at y Blaenoriaethau 
Corfforaethol? 
 
Mae’r gyllideb wrth wraidd cyflawniad pob un o flaenoriaethau a 
gwasanaethau'r cyngor.  
 
 
6. Faint fydd hyn yn ei gostio a sut bydd yn effeithio ar wasanaethau 
eraill? 
 
Mae’r adroddiad i’r cyngor wedi dynodi arbediad o £1.7m gyda £782k ohono 
wedi ei gynnig gan wasanaethau a £963k ohono yn arbedion corfforaethol. 
O’r arbedion corfforaethol hyn, bydd £663k yn cael eu cyflawni gan 
wasanaethau.   
 
7. Pa ymgynghori sydd wedi digwydd?  
 
Mae’r cynigion ar gyfer arbedion yn 2014/15 eisoes wedi cael eu hystyried 
mewn cyfarfodydd herio gwasanaethau yn 2011 ac yn 2012 a chawsant eu 
cynnwys yn rhan o’r targedau tair blynedd a ddynodwyd yn y Cynllun Ariannol 
Tymor Canolig.   
 
8. Datganiad y Prif Swyddog Cyllid 
 
Bydd cytundeb ffurfiol o’r arbedion sydd eisoes wedi eu dynodi yn caniatáu i 
ymdrechion gwleidyddol a chorfforaethol ganolbwyntio at y dasg heriol o osod 
gweddill y gyllideb gogyfer â 2014/15.   
 
9. Pa risgiau sy’n bodoli ac a oes unrhyw beth y gallwn ei wneud i’w 
lleihau? 
 
Rhaid i effaith y cynigion ar wasanaethau a’r effaith ariannol gael eu hystyried 
yn rhan o'r broses o osod y gyllideb.    
 
 

Tudalen 34



  

Report To:   County Council 
 
Date of Meeting:  10th September 2013 
 
Lead Member / Officer:  Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill /Paul McGrady 
 
Report Author: Richard Weigh, Chief Accountant  
 
Title:    Revenue Budget 2014/15  
 

 
1. What is the report about?  
 

The report provides an update of the latest position with regard to setting the 
council’s budget for 2014/15. The prime focus of this report is to approve an 
initial range of saving proposals for 2014/15. The saving proposals have 
emerged from the Service Challenge process over the past two years.  
 

2. What is the reason for making this report?  
 

To provide an update of the latest budget position for 2014/15 and to approve 
the saving proposals listed in Appendix 1.  

 
3. What are the Recommendations? 
 

To note the latest position with regard to the budget for 2014/15. 
 
To approve the savings proposals listed in Appendix 1.  

 
 
4. Report details 
 

The majority (around 78%) of the council’s funding comes from Welsh 
Government via the Revenue Support Grant and redistribution of NNDR. In 
2013/14, the final settlement for Denbighshire was £150.821m. The remainder 
of the council’s funding is provided though Council Tax (£40.7m budgeted in 
2013/14). Therefore the impact of movement on the settlement has a much 
more significant impact than movement on levels of Council Tax.  
 

The council is likely to face a challenging revenue budget settlement in 
2014/15 and beyond. Although the Draft Local Government Settlement isn’t 
due to be published until early October – where the position will be made 
clearer, all indications are that the settlement will be poor. A number of recent 
ministerial announcements and comments support this view. The WLGA are 
recommending that for planning purposes, councils assume a cash reduction 
of -4% in 2014/15. Every 1% reduction in the council’s revenue settlement 
equates to approximately £1.5m.  
 
It is unclear why reductions of such magnitude would be required in 2014/15 
or indeed in 2015/16, as the UK Government settlement to Wales does not 

Tudalen 35



  

reflect the need for such reductions. Recent announcements therefore about 
‘English style reductions to local government in Wales’ are likely to be as a 
consequence of Welsh Government policy to ‘protect’ services (i.e. divert 
resources) to areas such as health. 
 
In the past three years, Welsh Government has sought to influence local 
decision making by requiring school and social care budgets to be ‘protected’. 
This has been expressed as instructing councils to provide funding to those 
areas at a level that is 1% better than the settlement the Welsh Government 
receives from the UK Government (known as the Block Grant). This has 
meant that over half of the council’s revenue budget has been protected in this 
way. Continuing to impose protection to some services from a national level 
means that potential funding reductions would fall disproportionately on non-
protected areas and the council will have less flexibility to manage the impact.  
  
In addition to this, the council will also be adversely affected by changes 
resulting from census data which have highlighted that the council’s actual 
population is lower than had been estimated in national population estimates. 
Population is a key indicator used to distribute government funding and the 
results of the census in 2011 showed that, at a national level, the estimates of 
population growth had been overestimated. The financial impact of this 
change is likely to be around £3.1m but clarification is still awaited from Welsh 
Government about how the change might be implemented – particularly 
whether the impact may be spread over more than one year.  
 
The council will also face inflationary pressures in a number of areas such as 
pay, pensions, energy and service demand pressures.  
 
Taking all of the above into account, it is likely that a significant savings target 
will be required in 2014/15. There are still too many uncertainties to give a 
precise figure but if the reduction to the council’s revenue settlement is at the 
level of -4% and the impact of the census change is implemented in one year, 
then a planning assumption of a reduction of between £8-9m is not an 
unreasonable possibility.  
 
Services are currently modelling budget scenarios and identifying possible 
future savings. These will be presented to elected members for consideration 
at budget workshops scheduled for 21st October and 9th December. It is 
proposed that a report will be presented to County Council on 3rd December 
where savings supported by elected members can be agreed and more 
energy can be focussed on any remaining savings to be agreed before the 
final budget is agreed by Council on 4th February.   
 
In that context, the Service Challenge process in place as part of the budget 
setting process for 2012/13 and 201314 has already identified potential 
savings of £1.716m for 2014/15. These proposals have been considered in 
detail at the various service challenge meetings and have been confirmed at 
recent meetings with heads of service.  
 

Tudalen 36



  

The saving proposals are shown as Appendix 1 and are described as Phase 1 
of the process of achieving a potentially significant target for 2014/15. The 
Appendix shows the areas where savings are proposed and for context, 
shows the net revenue budget for each area for 2013/14 and the percentage 
of net budget savings achieved so far since 2010/11. Some services have a 
zero total as part of this phase but will be required to propose further savings 
in the coming weeks as the 2014/15 budget process continues.  
 
The corporate savings highlighted as Modernising the Council form part of a 
target to achieve approximately £3.0m of savings over the coming 3 years as 
projects are developed to deliver efficiency and to create capacity in services. 
A number of efficiency projects are in development, including investment in 
Electronic Document and Records Management (EDRMS) and Central Invoice 
Registration (a means to increase the number of invoices received and 
processed electronically) and other projects to widen the use of technology to 
allow savings to be delivered through reduced need to travel, greater flexibility 
and more efficient administration. Ultimately the modernisation saving targets 
will be delivered by services.  
 

 
5. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate Priorities? 
 

Effective management of the council’s revenue budget and delivery of the 
agreed budget strategy underpins activity in all areas, including corporate 
priorities. 

 

 
6. What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 

 
  The savings proposals identified in Appendix 1 total £1.716m.  
   
7. What are the main conclusions of the Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) 

undertaken on the decision?   
 
Individual services are responsible for carrying out impact assessments on 
their saving proposals contained within the budget. A summary EqIA is 
therefore enclosed in relation to the impact of the saving proposals.  

 

 
8. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny and others?  
 

The saving proposals for 2014/15 have previously been considered at Service 
Challenge meetings in 2011 and 2012 and were included as part of the three-
year targets identified in the Medium Term Financial Plan. The Service 
Challenges were held with each Head of Service and included representatives 
from scrutiny committees and Cabinet.  A copy of this report has been 
included on the agenda of the Corporate Governance Committee for 
consideration on 4th September 2013. 
 
 

Tudalen 37



  

9. Chief Finance Officer Statement 
 
 The next three years are likely to extremely challenging. There are many 

uncertainties and caveats but the likelihood is that a significant savings target 
will be required in 2014/15 and beyond.  Elected members will have a key role 
to play in determining the council’s response to the challenges ahead. 
Agreement to the proposals in this report will mean that more effort can be 
focussed on the remainder of the task ahead to ensure the council delivers a 
sustainable budget for 2014/15 and a robust Medium Term Financial Plan for 
the coming three years.  

 
10. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to reduce them? 

 
 This is potentially the most challenging financial period the council has faced. 

The proposals highlighted in this report and the impact on services has been 
assessed over two rounds of service challenges.  Failure to deliver the agreed 
budget strategy will put further pressure on services in the current and future 
financial years. Effective budget monitoring and control will help ensure that 
the financial strategy is achieved.  

   
11. Power to make the Decision 
 
.  Local authorities are required under Section 151 of the Local Government Act 

1972 to make arrangements for the proper administration of their financial 
affairs.   

 

Tudalen 38



MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 2014-15: SAVING PROPOSALS PHASE 1

Service Area Description Budget Savings Delivered

2013/14 2010/11-2013/14  2014/15

CORPORATE  EFFICIENCIES £k (% of 2010 Base) £k

Reduce Contingency for balances and impact of 

Recession 

Phase out budget provision over 3 years 300

Workfore Efficiencies Includes Removal of Essential Car User Allowance 363

Modernising the Council Agreed target as per the 2013/14 Budget only - further projects being 

developed and will be apportioned to Services

300

963

SERVICE EFFICIENCIES

 Communication, Marketing & Leisure               5,435 16.70%

Modernise Library Service Provision Better use of space eg Gallery, Museum, TIC, location and suitability of 

some buildings etc

30

Scala Reduced Council subsidy 12

Clwyd Leisure Reduced Council subsidy 50

ECTARC Reduced Council subsidy 10

Ruthin Craft Centre Reduce Council's financial support 20

Llangollen Pavilion Reduce Council's financial support 25

147

Highways & Environmental Services             20,140 10.04%

Renegotiate recyclate and disposal contracts Contracts  being tendered - increased competition likely to drive down 

prices

27

Environmental Services Other Small savings 10

WAG Waste Target Pressures Increase in Landfill Tax, costs of collection etc -50

Countryside - AONB Additional staffing resource to extend the boundary of the AONB -20

Reduced subsidy of School Meal Service Increased take up of meals removes reliance on subsidy 50

17

 Planning and Regulatory Services               2,531 18.34%

Review Pest Control Staffing reduction - only carry out the statutory part of function 20

Review Development Control Staffing reduction 10

Review of Planning Policy Service Management restructure 20

Review of Pollution Control Review of staffing structure 10

60

Adults & Business  Services             33,299 7.91%

Cefndy Healthcare Planned reduction in Council subsidy 31

Impact of investment in reablement Reduced need for care services as more people are able to live 

independently for longer

75

Residential Care - Impact of Extra Care Less people needing residential care due to preventative services and 

more independent living opportunities

150

Reablement Intervention Reduce need for care services through targetted intervention 13

Telecare Regional partnership will reduce running costs 10

Systems Thinking and Vacancy Control Process improvements to reduce admin and other costs 90

Social Care Regional Board - Procurement Hub Better commissioning of high cost placements 18

387

School Improvement & Inclusion               4,859 11.55%

0

0

Customers & Education Support 1,960              1.38%

0

0

Children's Services               8,797 4.75%

Staffing

Reduction in Independent (external) Placement 

Provision

Currently exceptionally high due to type of placements. These will 

change as certain individuals become adults

64

West Rhyl Young Peoples Project Reduce / remove grant funding 41

Social Care Regional Board - Procurement Hub Better commissioning of high cost placements 17

122

Housing & Community Development               1,753 14.06%

Review of Regeneration Review of Management Structure 20

20

Finance & Assets               7,018 12.78%

0

HR                  901 13.54%

0

Legal & Democratic Services               1,513 18.22%

0

Business Planning & Performance               1,430 0.72%

0

Schools             63,839 0%

Schools  

0

Total Service Savings - Phase 1 753

Total Council Savings - Phase 1 1,716

Savings Proposed

Tudalen 39



Tudalen 40

Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



Appendix 2 Summary of Efficiency Programme Phase 1 2014-15 EqIA       
 

Page 1 of 4 

Corporate Proposed Saving: Reduce Contingency for Balances/Impact of Recession 

Change to service provided? No 

Potential Impacts None – provision has not been committed 

Conclusion/Recommendation No Further Action 

 

Corporate Proposed Saving: Workforce Cost Review 

Change to service provided? No 

Potential Impacts Removal of Essential Car User Allowance 

Conclusion/Recommendation HR have completed a detailed EqIA for this. 

 
 

Corporate Proposed Saving: Modernising the Council 

Change to service provided? Possibly – these are targets and each project will need an EqIA as it develops. 

Potential Impacts Would be assessed on a project by project basis 

Conclusion/Recommendation  

 
 

CML Proposed Saving: Modernisation of Library Service Provision  

Change to service provided? No change proposed. The efficiency target has been achieved without changing current provision 

Potential Impacts The service is confident that this will not impact on the level of service provided. The efficiencies are not associated with 
any front-line provision. Does not impact directly on the workforce. 

Conclusion/Recommendation None - The service has adopted a policy commitment which ensures front line provision will not be affected, until a clear 
strategy and service model has been determined for Libraries in Denbighshire. 

 

 
 

Environment Proposed Saving: Renegotiate Recyclate and disposal contracts 

Change to service provided? No 

T
udalen 41



Appendix 2 Summary of Efficiency Programme Phase 1 2014-15 EqIA       
 

Page 2 of 4 

Potential Impacts The saving will be achieved through the renegotiation of a contract.  The service is confident that this will not impact on 
the level of service and that no-one with a protected characteristic would experience any negative impact. 

Conclusion/Recommendation No further action required 

 

Environment Proposed Saving: Regional Waste project procurement budget 

Change to service provided? No 

Potential Impacts A budget set aside for procurement in the regional waste project is no longer required for this purpose and the project will 
proceed as planned. The service is confident that this will not impact on the level of service and that no-one with a 
protected characteristic would experience any negative impact. 

Conclusion/Recommendation No further action required 

 
 

Planning & Regulatory Proposed Saving: Service Restructures 

Change to service provided? Savings targets. 

Potential Impacts  

Conclusion/Recommendation All restructuring proposals would be subject to an EqIA as they develop.  

 

Adult Social Care Proposed Saving: Cefndy Heath Care 

Change to service provided? Yes 

Potential Impacts The Saving will be achieved via a reduction of council subsidy based on a revised business plan for the enterprise.  This 
new plan sets more ambitious targets than had previously been the case, particularly in relation to increased volume of 
sales. The service believes there will be no negative impact on service users or staff with any protected characteristics. 

Conclusion/Recommendation No further action required 

 
 

Adult Social Care Proposed Saving: Re-ablement (older people) 

Change to service provided? Yes 

Potential Impacts The savings will be achieved by reducing the need for longer-term care packages by instead providing re-ablement which 
allows the older person to attain independence and therefore cease to require care support or elements of care support.  

T
udalen 42



Appendix 2 Summary of Efficiency Programme Phase 1 2014-15 EqIA       
 

Page 3 of 4 

The service believes that the impact on service users will be positive.  

Conclusion/Recommendation No further action required 

 

Adult Social Care Proposed Saving: Residential Care - Impact of Extra-Care 

Change to service provided? Yes 

Potential Impacts The saving will be achieved through the development of Extra Care provision which is expected to result in a reduction in 
demand for other services.  This will reduce the financial burden which these other services would otherwise place on the 
council.  The service believes that the impact on service users will be positive because Extra-Care provision provides 
greater independence for the service user. 

Conclusion/Recommendation No further action required 

 
 

Adult Social Care Proposed Saving: Re-ablement (Physical Impairment) 

Change to service provided? Yes 

Potential Impacts The savings will be achieved by reducing the need for longer-term care packages by instead providing re-ablement which 
allows the physically impaired person to attain independence and therefore cease to require care support or elements of 
care support.  The service believes that the impact on service users will be positive.  

Conclusion/Recommendation No further action required 

 

Adult Social Care Proposed Saving: Telecare 

Change to service provided? No 

Potential Impacts The Savings will be achieved through the development of a wider partnership (involving 5 rather than 2 local authorities), 
which is expected to deliver savings without any reduction in provision.  However, the service is aware that changes 
affecting staff can have negative equality impacts.   

Conclusion/Recommendation HR policies in relation to early voluntary retirement, redundancy, and redeployment are Equality Impact Assessed. 

 

Adult Social Care Proposed Saving: Systems Thinking and Vacancy Control 

Change to service provided? Potential 

Potential Impacts The savings will be achieved via a reduction in staffing costs across the service as identified by systems thinking 

T
udalen 43



Appendix 2 Summary of Efficiency Programme Phase 1 2014-15 EqIA       
 

Page 4 of 4 

exercises and vacancy control.  The service believes there will be no reduction in service provision and that no service 
user with any of the protected characteristics will experience a negative impact. However, the service is aware that 
changes affecting staff can have negative equality impacts.   

Conclusion/Recommendation HR policies in relation to early voluntary retirement, redundancy, and redeployment are Equality Impact Assessed. 

 
 

Children & Families Proposed Saving: Reduction in Independent Placement Provision 

Change to service provided? Yes 

Potential Impacts We will still be seeking to provide the most appropriate accommodation to meet needs however changes to provision such 
as that detailed above and the impact of the hub provide an opportunity to achieve this with a smaller resource commitment 
without detriment to end users. 

Conclusion/Recommendation Review on case by case basis.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
udalen 44



  

 
Adroddiad i’r:   Pwyllgor Llywodraethu Corfforaethol 
 
Dyddiad y Cyfarfod:  4 Medi 2013 
 
Aelod / Swyddog Arweiniol: Cyng. Julian Thompson-Hill 
 
Awdur yr Adroddiad:   Pennaeth Cyllid ac Asedau 
                                                             
Teitl: 1. Adroddiad Blynyddol Rheoli Trysorlys (RhT) 

2012/13 (Atodiad 1)   
2. Adroddiad Diweddaru RhT 2013/14 (Atodiad 2)  

 
1 Am beth mae’r adroddiad yn sôn? 
 

1.1  Mae Adroddiad RhT Blynyddol 2012/13 (Atodiad 1) yn sôn am weithgarwch 
buddsoddi a benthyca’r Cyngor yn ystod 2012/13.  Mae hefyd yn rhoi 
manylion am yr hinsawdd economaidd dros y cyfnod hwnnw ac yn dangos 
sut mae’r Cyngor wedi cydymffurfio â’i Ddangosyddion Darbodus. Mae’r 
Adroddiad Diweddaru RhT (Atodiad 2) yn rhoi manylion gweithgarwch RhT 
y Cyngor yn ystod 2013/14.   

 
1.2 Mae’r term ‘rheoli trysorlys’ yn cynnwys rheoli benthyca, buddsoddiadau a llif 

arian y cyngor. Mae oddeutu £0.5bn yn mynd drwy gyfrifon banc y cyngor bob 
blwyddyn. Benthyca dros ben y cyngor yw £133.26m gyda chyfradd llog 
flynyddol gyfartalog o 5.77% ac ar unrhyw bryd yn ystod y flwyddyn, bydd gan y 
cyngor rhwng £20-£35m i’w fuddsoddi sy’n ennill 0.80% ar hyn o bryd.     

 
2 Beth yw’r rheswm dros lunio’r adroddiad hwn?   
 
2.1 Cytunodd y Cyngor ar 27 Hydref 2009 y byddai’r broses o lywodraethu’r RhT 

yn cael ei archwilio gan y Pwyllgor Llywodraethu Corfforaethol. Rhan o’r rôl 
hon yw derbyn diweddariad ar weithgarwch y RhT ddwywaith y flwyddyn ac 
adolygu’r Adroddiad RhT Blynyddol amgaeedig ar gyfer 2012/13. 

2.2  Rôl y Pwyllgor Llywodraethu Corfforaethol 

2.2.1 Bydd y tîm RhT yn darparu adroddiadau a hyfforddiant i’r Pwyllgor 
Llywodraethu Corfforaethol yn unol â’r amserlen isod: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Eitem Agenda 7

Tudalen 45



  

Pwyllgor Dyddiad Teitl yr Adroddiad Cynnwys yr 
Adroddiad 

Llywodraethu 
Corfforaethol 

Ionawr Diweddariad RhT / 
Sesiwn Hyfforddiant 

- Amgylchedd allanol 
- Risgiau 
- Gweithgaredd 
- Rheolaeth 
- Gweithgarwch yn y 
dyfodol 

Llywodraethu 
Corfforaethol 

Ionawr Strategaeth RhT - Polisi 
- Strategaeth 
- Dangosyddion 
darbodus 

Y Cyngor Chwefror Strategaeth RhT Fel yr uchod 

Llywodraethu 
Corfforaethol 

Medi Diweddariad RhT Fel y Diweddariad RhT 
uchod 

Llywodraethu 
Corfforaethol 

Medi Adolygiad RhT - Adolygu 
gweithgarwch RhT yn 
ystod y flwyddyn 
flaenorol 
- Cyflawni swyddogaeth 
RhT 

Cabinet Medi Adolygiad RhT Fel yr uchod 

   

2.2.2 Mae RhT yn faes cymhleth sy’n cymryd amser i’w ddeall yn llawn a darperir 
diweddariadau rheolaidd. Credwyd felly fod y Pwyllgor Llywodraethu 
Corfforaethol yn fwy priodol na’r Cyngor i dderbyn y diweddariadau hyn fel y 
gellid neilltuo’r amser a’r ymrwymiad priodol i’r maes hwn. 

2.2.3 Mae angen i’r Pwyllgor feddu ar lefel penodol o ddealltwriaeth yn y maes hwn 
a chyflawnir hyn drwy ddiweddariadau a sesiynau hyfforddiant rheolaidd. 

2.2.4 Mae rôl y Pwyllgor yn cynnwys y canlynol: 

• Deall y Dangosyddion Darbodus 

• Deall effaith benthyca ar y sefyllfa refeniw 

• Deall y cymhellion ehangach sy’n effeithio ar weithgarwch RhT y Cyngor 

• Sicrhau bod y Cyngor bob amser yn gweithredu mewn modd darbodus 
mewn perthynas â’i weithgarwch RhT 

3 Beth yw’r Argymhellion? 
 
3.1 Dylai aelodau nodi perfformiad swyddogaeth Rheoli Trysorlys y Cyngor yn 

ystod 2012/13 a’i gydymffurfiad â’r Dangosyddion Darbodus gofynnol fel yr 
adroddwyd yn Adroddiad RhT Blynyddol 2012/13 (Atodiad 1). 

 
3.2 Dylai aelodau nodi’r adroddiad diweddaru RhT (Atodiad 2). 
 
 
 

Tudalen 46



  

 
 
 
4 Manylion yr adroddiad 
 
4.1 Pwrpas yr Adroddiad RhT Blynyddol (Atodiad 1) yw: 
 

• cyflwyno manylion ariannu cyfalaf, benthyca, ad-drefnu dyledion a 
throsglwyddiadau buddsoddi yn 2012/13;  

• adrodd ar oblygiadau risg penderfyniadau a throsglwyddiadau trysorlys; 

• cadarnhau cydymffurfiad gyda therfynau trysorlys a Dangosyddion 
Darbodus. 

 
4.3 Mae’r adroddiad diweddaru RhT (Atodiad 2) yn rhoi manylion ar y canlynol: 
 

• Amgylchedd economaidd allanol 

• Risgiau 

• Gweithgarwch 

• Rheolaeth 

• Gweithgarwch yn y dyfodol 
 
5 Sut mae’r penderfyniad yn cyfrannu at y Blaenoriaethau Corfforaethol? 
 
5.1 Mae penderfyniadau buddsoddi a benthyca da yn caniatáu cyfeirio adnoddau 

atodol ar wasanaethau eraill y Cyngor. 
 
6         Beth fydd yn ei gostio a sut bydd yn effeithio ar wasanaethau eraill? 
 
6.1 Amherthnasol. 
 
7 Pa ymgynghoriadau a gynhaliwyd? 
 
7.1 Mae’r Cyngor wedi ymgynghori â’i ymgynghorwyr trysorlys, Arlingclose Ltd. 
 
8 Pa risgiau sy’n bodoli ac a oes unrhyw beth y gallwn ei wneud i’w 

lleihau? 
 
8.1  Mae Rheoli Trysorlys yn cynnwys risgiau cynhenid ond mae’r Cyngor yn 

monitro ac yn rheoli’r risgiau hyn fel yr amlinellir yn y prif adroddiad. Fodd 
bynnag, nid oed modd dileu’r risgiau hyn yn llwyr. Mae strategaeth a threfnau 
rheoli trysorlys y cyngor yn cael eu harchwilio yn flynyddol ac roedd yr 
adolygiad archwilio mewnol diweddaraf yn bositif ac ni chodwyd unrhyw 
faterion o bwys.  

 
9       Pŵer i wneud y Penderfyniad  
 
9.1 Mae Rheoliadau Awdurdodau Lleol (Cyllid Cyfalaf a Chyfrifeg) (Cymru) yn 

ei gwneud yn ofynnol i awdurdodau lleol roi ystyriaeth i God Ymarfer y 
Sefydliad Siartredig Cyllid Cyhoeddus a Chyfrifeg ar Reoli Trysorlys sy’n 
pennu’r gofyniad ar y Cyngor i baratoi diweddariadau RhT rheolaidd ac 
adroddiad blynyddol ar weithgarwch trysorlys ar gyfer y flwyddyn ariannol 
flaenorol. 

Tudalen 47



Tudalen 48

Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



 

   Page 1 

 
 

 
 

Appendix 1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 
 
 
 

ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT 

REPORT 

2012/13 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Paul McGrady 
Head of Finance & Assets 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 49



 

   Page 2 

CONTENTS 
 
Section Title 
 
   
1  Background 
 
2  Economic Background 
 
3   Borrowing Activity 
 
4  Investment Activity 
 
5  Compliance with Prudential Indicators 
 
6  Money Laundering Update  
   
  Appendix A - PWLB borrowing rates and UK Money Market rates 
 
  Appendix B – Compliance with Prudential Indicators 2012/13 
 
   
 
    
 
   
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 50



 

   Page 3 

1. Background 
 
The Council’s treasury management activity is underpinned by CIPFA’s Code of 
Practice on Treasury Management (“the Code”), which requires local authorities to 
produce annually Prudential Indicators and a Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement on the likely financing and investment activity. The Code also 
recommends that members are informed of treasury management activities at least 
twice a year.  Reports are made twice a year to the Corporate Governance 
Committee which is the committee with responsibility for the scrutiny of the 
Council’s treasury policy, strategy and activity, as well as the annual report made to 
cabinet and the report to full council for approval of the annual treasury strategy.     
 
Treasury management is defined as: “The management of the local authority’s 
investments and cash flows, its banking, money market and capital market 
transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those activities; and 
the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks.”  
 
Overall responsibility for treasury management remains with the Council.  No 
treasury management activity is without risk; the effective identification and 
management of risk are integral to the Council’s treasury management objectives.   

 
2. Economic Background 
 
The global outlook stabilised mainly due to central banks maintaining low interest 
rates for an extended period. The economy shrank in the first, second and fourth 
quarters of the calendar year 2012.  It was the impressive 0.9% growth in the third 
quarter, aided by the summer Olympic Games, which allowed growth to register 
0.2% over the calendar year 2012. The expected boost to net trade from the fall in 
the value of sterling did not materialise, but raised the price of imports, especially 
low margin goods such as food and energy.  
 
Household financial conditions and purchasing power were constrained as wage 
growth remained subdued at 1.2% and was outstripped by inflation. Annual CPI 
dipped below 3%, falling to 2.4% in June before ticking up to 2.8% in February 
2013. Higher food and energy prices and higher transport costs were some of the 
principal contributors to inflation remaining above the Bank of England’s 2% CPI 
target.    
 
The lack of growth and the fall in inflation were persuasive enough for the Bank of 
England to maintain the Bank Rate at 0.5% and also sanction additional £50 billion 
asset purchases (QE) in July, taking total QE to £375 billion. The possibility of a 
rate cut was discussed at some of the Bank’s Monetary Policy Committee 
meetings, but was not implemented as the potential drawbacks outweighed the 
benefits of a reduction in the Bank Rate.  
 

Tudalen 51



 

   Page 4 

3. Borrowing Activity 
 
The table below shows the level of the Council’s PWLB borrowing at the start and 
the end of the year. 
 

 

Balance at 
01/4/2012 

£000 

Maturing 
loans  
£000 

Premature 
repayments 

£000 

New 
Borrowing 

£000 

Balance at 
31/3/2013 

£000 

Fixed rate loans – 
Public Works Loan 
Board (PWLB) 134,890 1,621 0 0 133,269 

Total borrowing  134,890 1,621 0 0 133,269 

 
The strategy in 2012/13 was to use internal resources instead of external borrowing 
as the most cost effective means of funding capital expenditure. This was 
sustainable during 2012/13 because the Council had sufficient reserves and 
balances to avoid the need for external borrowing.   
 
As a result of maturities during the year, the average rate on the Council’s debt 
increased from 5.74% at 1 April 2012 to 5.77% at 31 March 2013.   
 
Appendix A shows how interest rates for borrowing have moved over the course of 
the year. 
 
4. Investment Activity 

 
The Council held average cash balances of £26m during the year. These represent 
the Council’s Balances and Reserves, working cash balances and also where 
money has been borrowed before capital expenditure is incurred.  
 
The Welsh Government’s Investment Guidance requires local authorities to focus 
on security (keeping the money safe) and liquidity (making sure we never run out of 
cash) as the primary objectives of a prudent investment policy.  The Council’s aim 
was to achieve a return on investments in line with these principles.  The return is 
important but is a secondary consideration and the priority is the security of the 
sums invested.   
 
The table below shows the level of the Council’s investments at the start and the 
end of the year. 
 

 

Balance at 
01/4/2012 

£000 

Investments 
Raised 
£000 

Investments 
Repaid 
 £000 

Balance at 
31/3/2013 

£000 

Investments 21,000 192,000 202,000 11,000 

 
The Council’s investment income for the year was £0.239m compared to £0.408m 
in 11/12 which meant that the low interest rates available in the market continued to 
have a significant impact on the investment return earned by the Council.  
 

Tudalen 52



 

   Page 5 

Security of capital remained the Council’s main investment objective.  This was 
maintained by following the Council’s counterparty policy as set out in its Treasury 
Management Strategy Statement for 2012/13. Investments during the year 
included:  
� Deposits with the Debt Management Office 
� Call accounts and deposits with Banks and Building Societies   

 
Credit risk:  
 
Counterparty credit quality was assessed and monitored with reference to the 
following: 
 

• credit ratings (minimum long-term counterparty rating of A- / A- / A3 across 
rating agencies Fitch / S&P / Moody’s); 

• credit default swaps   

• GDP of the country in which the institution operates;  

• the country’s net debt as a percentage of GDP;  

• any potential support mechanisms; 

• share price. 
 
In June Moody’s downgraded a swathe of banks with global capital market 
operations, including the UK banks on the Council’s lending list (Barclays, HSBC, 
Royal Bank of Scotland/Natwest, Lloyds TSB Bank/Bank of Scotland, Santander 
UK plc) as well as several non UK banks, but none of the ratings fell below the 
Council’s minimum A- / A3 credit rating threshold.   
 
Liquidity:  
 
In keeping with the WG’s Guidance on Investments, the Council maintained a 
sufficient level of liquidity through the use of overnight deposits and instant access 
call accounts.   
 
Yield:  
 
The Council sought to achieve the best return balanced against its objectives of 
security and liquidity.  The UK Bank Rate was maintained at 0.5% through the year.   
 
The Council considered an appropriate risk management response to uncertain 
and deteriorating credit conditions in Europe was to shorten maturities for new 
investments. Short term money market rates also remained at very low levels 
which had a significant impact on investment income. 
 
All investments made during the year complied with the Council’s agreed Treasury 
Management Strategy, Prudential Indicators, Treasury Management Practices and 
prescribed limits.  Maturing investments were repaid to the Council in full and in a 
timely manner.   
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 53



 

   Page 6 

5. Compliance with Prudential Indicators 
  
The Council can confirm that it has complied with its Prudential Indicators for 
2012/13, which were set in February 2012 as part of the Council’s Treasury 
Management Strategy Statement.  Details can be found in Appendix B. 
 
In compliance with the requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice this report 
provides members with a summary report of the treasury management activity 
during 2012/13. None of the Prudential Indicators have been breached and a 
prudent approach has been taken in relation to investment activity with priority 
being given to security and liquidity over yield. 
        
6. Money Laundering Update 
  
The Council is alert to the possibility that it may become the subject of an attempt 
to involve it in a transaction involving the laundering of money.  Accordingly, it 
maintains procedures for verifying and recording the identity of counterparties and 
reporting suspicions, and will ensure that relevant staff are properly trained. 
 
The Head of Finance and Assets has been appointed as the Money Laundering 
Reporting Officer.  There haven’t been any cases of money laundering reported 
since the start of Denbighshire to date and we consider the risk to the Council to be 
minimal.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 54



 

   Page 7 

Appendix A 
 
Interest Rates 2012/13 
 
Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) borrowing rates and UK Money Market rates 
during the year were: 
 
Example PWLB Borrowing rates % (The rate at which the Council could borrow 
money from the Government) 
 

Start Date  
Length of 
Loan  

 1yr 19½-20 yrs 49½-50 yrs 

02-Apr-12 1.29 4.22 4.41 

28-Sep-12 1.15 3.71 4.14 

28-Mar-13 1.13 3.87 4.22 

 
Example Bank Rate, Money Market rates (The rate at which the Council could 
invest with banks) 
 

Date 

Bank 
Rate 
% 

7-day 
Investment 
Rates % 

1-month 
Investment 
Rates % 

6-month 
Investment 
Rates % 

01-Apr-12 0.50 0.55 0.61 1.33 

30-Sep-12 0.50 0.52 0.40 0.66 

31-Mar-13 0.50 0.40 0.40 0.51 

        
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 55



 

   Page 8 

Appendix B 
 
Compliance with Prudential Indicators 2012/13 
 
1 Estimated and Actual Capital Expenditure  

 
This indicator is set to ensure that the level of proposed investment in capital 
assets remains within sustainable limits and, in particular, to consider the 
impact on the Council Tax and in the case of the HRA, housing rent levels.   
 

Capital Expenditure 

2012/13 
Estimated 
Feb 12 
£000 

2012/13 
Revised 
Feb 13 
£000 

2012/13 
Outturn 
Mar 13 
£000 

Non-HRA 34,779 32,813 31,883 

HRA 7,452 7,452 6,462 

Total 42,231 40,265 38,345 

  
2  Estimated and Actual Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream 

 
This is an indicator of affordability and demonstrates the revenue 
implications of capital investment decisions by highlighting the proportion of 
the revenue budget required to meet the borrowing costs associated with 
capital spending.  The financing costs include existing and proposed capital 
commitments. 
 

Ratio of Financing 
Costs to Net Revenue 
Stream 

2012/13 
Estimated  
Feb 12 
£000 

2012/13 
Revised 
Feb 13   
£000 

2012/13 
Outturn  
Mar 13 
£000 

Financing Costs 12,257 12,285 12,656 

Net Revenue Stream 177,379 188,795 188,795 

Non-HRA Ratio 6.91% 6.51% 6.70% 

Financing Costs 2,649 2,666 2,700 

Net Revenue Stream 11,874 11,865 11,865 

HRA Ratio 22.31% 22.47% 22.76% 

   
3 Capital Financing Requirement 
 
3.1 The Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) measures the Council’s 

underlying need to borrow for a capital purpose.  In order to ensure that over 
the medium term net borrowing will only be for a capital purpose, the Council 
ensures that net external borrowing does not, except in the short term, 
exceed the CFR in the preceding year plus the estimates of any additional 
CFR for the current and next two financial years.  This is demonstrated in 
the following table: 

 
 
 
 

Tudalen 56



 

   Page 9 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
NB  The outturn figures are taken from the pre-audited Statement of Accounts 

2012/13 so they may be subject to change. 
 
  Note that the projected debt level at 31/03/13 was originally estimated in 

February 2012 to be £25m higher than the revised estimate because the 
original estimate was based on the capital expenditure in the Capital Plan to 
be funded by borrowing for 2012/13. In practice, the Council internally 
borrowed during the year as discussed earlier in the report and did not 
undertake any external borrowing in 2012/13.   

  
4 Authorised Limit and Operational Boundary for External Debt  
 
 Summary Table: 
 

2012/13 Feb 13 
£000 

External Borrowing  133,269 

Internal Borrowing 35,556 

Operational Boundary 150,000 

Authorised Limit 155,000 

 
4.1 Operational Boundary: This limit is set to reflect the Council’s best view of 

the most likely prudent (i.e. not worst case) levels of borrowing activity and 
was set originally at £175m in Feb 12 and revised downwards to £150m in 
Feb 13 for the reasons outlined above. 

 
4.2 Authorised Limit: This is the maximum amount of external debt that can be 

outstanding at one time during the financial year. The limit, which is 
expressed gross of investments, is consistent with the Council’s existing 
commitments, proposals for capital expenditure and financing and with its 
approved treasury policy and strategy and also provides headroom over and 
above for unusual cash movements. This limit was set originally at £180m in 
Feb 12 and revised downwards to £155m in Feb 13 for the reasons outlined 
above.    

  
4.3 The levels of debt are measured on an ongoing basis during the year for 

compliance with the Authorised Limit and the Operational Boundary.  The 
Council maintained its total external borrowing and other long-term liabilities 
within both limits; at its peak this figure was £134.9m.  In addition to external 
borrowing, the Council uses its own reserves and balances to fund capital 
expenditure and this is known as internal borrowing as shown in the table 
above.     

Capital Financing 
Requirement -
Non-PFI Basis 

31/3/13 
Estimated  
Feb 12 
£000 

31/3/13 
Revised 
Feb 13  
 £000 

31/3/13 
Outturn  
Mar 13 
£000 

Non-HRA 151,245 141,732 140,660 

HRA 28,696 29,212 28,165 

Total 179,941 170,944 168,825 

Borrowing 158,197 133,269 133,269 

PFI Liability  10,676 10,638 10,638 

Tudalen 57



 

   Page 10 

5 Upper Limits for Fixed Interest Rate Exposure and Variable Interest 
Rate Exposure 

  
5.1 These indicators allow the Council to manage the extent to which it is 

exposed to changes in interest rates.  The exposures are calculated on a net 
basis i.e. fixed rate debt net of fixed rate investments.  The upper limit for 
variable rate exposure allows for the use of variable rate debt to offset 
exposure to changes in short-term rates on our portfolio of investments.   

  

 2012/13 
Estimated 

 
% 

2012/13 
Actual 

Peak Exposure 
% 

Upper Limit for Fixed Rate 
Exposure 

100 100 

Upper Limit for Variable 
Rate Exposure 

40 0 

 
6 Maturity Structure of Fixed Rate borrowing  
 
6.1 This indicator is to limit large concentrations of fixed rate debt needing to be 

replaced at times of uncertainty over interest rates and is designed to protect 
against excessive exposures to interest rate changes in any one period, in 
particular in the course of the next ten years.   

 
6.2 It is calculated as the amount of projected borrowing that is fixed rate 

maturing in each period as a percentage of total projected borrowing that is 
fixed rate.  

Maturity structure of 
fixed rate borrowing 

Upper 
limit 
 
 
% 

Lower 
limit 
 
 
% 

Actual 
Borrowing 

as at 
 31/3/2013 

£000 

Percentage 
of total 
as at  

31/3/2013 
% 

under 12 months  5 0 1,621 1.22 

12 months and within 24 
months 

5 0 6,091 
4.57 

24 months and within 5 
years 

20 0 8,634 
6.47 

5 years and within 10 
years 

25 0 11,232 
8.43 

10 years and above 100 50 105,691 79.31 

Total   133,269 100 

  
7 Total principal sums invested for periods longer than 364 days 

 
This indicator is set in order to allow the Council to manage the risk inherent 
in investments longer than 364 days.  For 2012/13 this limit was set at £6m.  
The Council did not have any investments which exceeded 364 days during 

Tudalen 58



 

   Page 11 

2012/13 because the policy was to limit investments to a shorter period than 
1 year. 
 

8 Adoption of the CIPFA Treasury Management Code 
  
 The Council confirms its adoption of the CIPFA Code of Treasury 

Management at its Council meeting on 26 March 2002. 
 

 The Council has incorporated the changes from the revised CIPFA Code of 
Practice into its treasury policies, procedures and practices. 

Tudalen 59



Tudalen 60

Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



         Appendix 2 
 
Treasury Management Update Report 
 
1 Changes in the external environment 
 
1.1 Economic Outlook 
 

Financial markets have begun to stabilise in recent times with many 
financial institutions showing signs of stabilisation and, in some cases, 
considerable improvement. This has resulted in an extension in the 
duration limits with a number of the Council’s investment counterparties  
 
Although the economic outlook in the UK remains challenging, stronger 
than expected economic data has been encouraging. Some progress 
has also been made towards addressing the Eurozone’s sovereign 
debt crisis. The Council is however continuing to be cautious in relation 
to our current investment strategy and this is likely to continue for the 
medium term until we see stronger signs of economic growth.  

 
2 Investment Strategy 
 
2.1 Our current investment time limits with the banks which we invest with 

are as follows: 
  

• Royal Bank of Scotland (RBS) and National Westminster Bank 
for a maximum period of overnight, 
 

• Close Brothers for a maximum period of 100 days, 
 

• Lloyds TSB and Bank of Scotland for a maximum period of 6 
months;  

 

• Nationwide BS and Barclays for a maximum period of 12 
months. 

 
2.2 In practice, there is no gain to be had by taking advantage of the 6 

month investment term with Lloyds TSB and Bank of Scotland because 
we are able to achieve the same rate in an instant access account.  We 
are however investing with Barclays Bank for 12 months in order to 
achieve a higher rate of return.  We also have a 1 month notice 
account with Close Brothers which is paying a very good rate of return. 

 
2.3 The Council is also able to invest with the UK Government’s Debt 

Management Office which is currently paying a rate of 0.25%.  We 
have also opened a safe custody account which enables us to 
purchase Treasury Bills from the Government and these pay a similar 
rate of return.  These options are used as a last resort if safe limits 
have been reached with financial institutions. 

 

Tudalen 61



2.4 We only take advantage of the longer investment terms where it makes 
financial sense to do so and we also use instant access call accounts 
which give greater flexibility to reduce our investment cash without the 
need for borrowing. 

 
2.5 In view of the limited number of banks which are available now for new 

investments, the Council intends to reduce its investment balances and 
to use temporary borrowing as a means of funding short term cash flow 
requirements. 

 
3 Borrowing Strategy 
 
3.1 The strategy outlined above is likely to continue in the medium term 

which means that we will continue to reduce our investment balances 
and rely on internal borrowing as much as possible instead of external 
borrowing. This is sustainable while the Council has sufficient balances 
and reserves to avoid the need for external borrowing but this will be 
monitored throughout the year with a view to externalising borrowing if 
required. 

 
4 Controls 
 
4.1 Prudential Indicators 
 
 The Council sets prudential indicators which set boundaries within 

which our treasury management activity operates. The indicators are 
calculated to demonstrate that the Council’s borrowing is affordable 
and include measures that show the impact of capital and borrowing 
decisions over the medium term. The Council has remained within all 
of its borrowing and investment limits for 2013/14 agreed by Council in 
February 2013.  The Council has not deviated from the Capital related 
indicators either.   

 
4.2 Audit Reviews 
 

The Internal Audit review undertaken in February 2013 concluded that 
TM continues to be very well managed.  The report listed the following 
key areas which are managed well: 
 

• The Council has a treasury management strategy and policy 
that County Council has approved. 

• Treasury management activity is closely scrutinised and 
reported regularly at elected member level. 

• Treasury management processes and procedures are robust, 
well established and followed meticulously.  

• Key risks are effectively managed, with only a few minor 
improvements necessary. 

 
 

Tudalen 62



5 Future   
 
5.1 TM Strategy for next six months 
 

As stated above, the Council intends to reduce its investment balances 
and to use temporary borrowing as a means of funding short term cash 
flow requirements.   

 
5.2 Reports 
 

The next report will be the Treasury Management Strategy Statement 
and Prudential Indicators 2014/15 which will be reported to the 
Corporate Governance Committee in January and to Council in 
February. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Tudalen 63



Tudalen 64

Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



  

Adroddiad i’r:    Pwyllgor Llywodraethu Corfforaethol 
 
Dyddiad y Cyfarfod:   4 Medi 2013 
 
Aelod / Swyddog Arweiniol:  Jackie Walley, Pennaeth Cefnogi Cwsmeriaid ac 

Addysg 
 
Awdur yr Adroddiad:  Swyddog Cwynion Corfforaethol 
 
Teitl:  Adroddiad blynyddol ar bolisi cwynion, 

canmoliaethau ac adborth - ‘Eich Llais’ 2012/13 
 
 

1. Am beth mae’r adroddiad yn sôn?  
 

Mae’r adroddiad yn cynnig trosolwg o gwynion, canmoliaethau ac adborth a 
dderbyniwyd gan Gyngor Sir Ddinbych, yn ystod y cyfnod 01.04.12 – 31.03.13. 
 
Mae’r polisi yn cael ei hyrwyddo a’i gyhoeddi dan yr enw ‘Eich Llais’ 
 

2. Beth yw’r rheswm dros lunio’r adroddiad hwn?  
 

Cynnig trosolwg i’r Pwyllgor o’r nifer y sylwadau a’r mathau o adborth a dderbyniwyd 
yn ystod 2012/13.  

 

Rhoi gwybodaeth i’r Pwyllgor ynglŷn ag adroddiad blynyddol a llythyr eglurhaol 
Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru.  
 

Rhoi manylion i’r Pwyllgor ar ddatblygiad polisïau i’r dyfodol a fydd yn effeithio ar 
‘Eich Llais’.  
 

3. Beth yw’r Argymhellion? 
 

Dylai’r Pwyllgor nodi a gwneud sylw ar berfformiad gwasanaethau. 
 
Dylai’r Pwyllgor nodi newidiadau yn arwain at y polisi cwynion, canmoliaethau ac 
adborth diwygiedig - ‘Eich Llais’. 

 

4. Manylion yr adroddiad 
 

Penawdau ar gyfer 2012/13 (gweler atodiad 1 i gael rhagor o fanylion). 
 

• Cynyddodd y nifer o sylwadau adborth a gofnodwyd o’i gymharu â 2011/12: 
 

� cwynion o 12% (o 587 i 660) 
� canmoliaethau o 88% (o 436 i 820) 
� nid oedd newid o ran awgrymiadau (ar 16) 

 

• Cynyddodd y nifer o gwynion y deliwyd â nhw yn llwyddiannus ar gam 1 i 
94.2% (2.6% yn uwch na’r llynedd). 

 

• Parhawyd â’r gwelliant i’r nifer o gwynion a ddeliwyd â nhw o fewn y terfynau 
amser gan gyrraedd 91%, er na chyflawnwyd y targed corfforaethol o 95%. 

 

• Cadarnhawyd 51% o gwynion yn llawn neu’n rhannol (i fyny 13% ers llynedd). 

Eitem Agenda 8

Tudalen 65



  

 
Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru  
 

Gwnaed 38 o gwynion i’r Ombwdsmon yn ystod 2012/13.  Mae hyn yn uwch na 
chyfartaledd awdurdodau lleol Cymru o 25. Gweler atodiad 2 i gael rhagor o fanylion. 
 

Cyhoeddwyd tri adroddiad adran 21. Mae’r Ombwdsmon yn cyhoeddi adroddiadau 
adran 21 pan fod corff cyhoeddus yn cytuno i weithredu unrhyw argymhellion a wneir 
iddo, ac yn cadarnhau ei fod yn fodlon nad yw lles y cyhoedd yn ystyriaeth. Mae 
crynodebau o’r adroddiadau wedi’u cynnwys yn atodiad 3. 
 

Derbyniwyd llai o gwynion fod Aelodau yn mynd yn groes i’w cod ymarfer – 4 yn 
2012/13, 9 yn 2011/12. 
 
Diwygio’r polisi cwynion, canmoliaethau ac adborth – ‘Eich Llais’ 
 
Mae atodiad 4 yn rhoi manylion y newidiadau bwriedig i ‘Eich Llais’. 
 
5. Sut mae’r penderfyniad yn cyfrannu at y Blaenoriaethau Corfforaethol? 

 

Mae ‘Eich Llais’ yn cyfrannu’n uniongyrchol at y nod corfforaethol: cyngor 
ardderchog, yn agos at y gymuned. 
 

6. Beth fydd yn ei gostio a sut bydd yn effeithio ar wasanaethau eraill? 
 
Caiff pob cost yn ymwneud ag ‘Eich Llais’ eu talu o fewn cyllidebau presennol. 

 
7. Beth yw prif gasgliadau’r Asesiad o Effaith ar Gydraddoldeb a 

gynhaliwyd am y penderfyniad? Dylid cynnwys yr Asesiad o Effaith ar 
Gydraddoldeb a gwblhawyd fel atodiad i’r adroddiad. 

 

Amherthnasol. 
 

8. Pa ymgynghoriadau a gynhaliwyd gydag Archwilio ac eraill?  
 
Adroddiadau misol i’r Uwch Dîm Arweinyddiaeth.  
Adroddiadau bob chwarter blwyddyn i’r Pwyllgor Archwilio Perfformiad. 
Adroddiadau blynyddol i’r Pwyllgor Llywodraethu Corfforaethol. 
Ymgynghori â’r Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a swyddogion cwynion gwasanaeth ynglŷn 
â’r newidiadau i ‘Eich Llais’. 
 

9. Datganiad y Prif Swyddog Cyllid 
 
Dim sylw. 
 
10. Pa risgiau sy’n bodoli ac a oes unrhyw beth y gallwn ei wneud i’w 

lleihau? 
 
Amherthnasol. 
 
11. Pŵer i wneud y Penderfyniad 
 
Papur er gwybodaeth yw hwn, yn hytrach nac ar gyfer gwneud penderfyniad. 

Tudalen 66



  

Appendix 1 
 

Table 1: complaints by service including timescale performance for 2012/13 
 

  2012-2013   

Service Area  Recd Within % Status 

Social Services Adults  44 36 82% ▲ O 

Social Services Children  48 39 81% ▲ O 

Business Planning and Performance  0 0 n/a – – 

Legal and Democratic Services  3 3 100% ▲ G 

Customers and Education Support  25 24 96% ▲ G 

Environment  201 198 99% ▲ G 

Finance and Assets  24 19 79% ▼ R 

Housing and Community Development  86 75 87% ▲ O 

Regeneration  4 4 100% – – 

Planning and Public Protection  66 65 98% ▲ G 

Highways and Infrastructure  100 84 84% ▲ O 

Communication, Marketing and Leisure  45 44 98% ▲ G 

School Improvement  1 1 100% ▲ G 

Other  5 2 40% – – 

TOTAL  660 600 91% ▲ Y 

 
Table 2: timescale performance at each complaint stage for 2012/13 
 
YTD Count Within  % 

Stage 1 602 545 91 

Stage 2 35 33 94 

Stage 3 18 17 94 

PSOW* 5 5 100 

 TOTAL 660 600 91 

*Public Services Ombudsman for Wales 
 
 
Table 3: compliments received during 2012/13 
 
Service Area Number 

Social Services Adults 355 

Social Services Children 49 

Business Planning and Performance 0 

Legal and Democratic Services 2 

Customers and Education Support 19 

Environment 212 

Finance and Assets 1 

Housing and Community Development 56 

Regeneration 2 

Planning and Public Protection 25 

Highways and Infrastructure 75 

Communication, Marketing and Leisure 24 

School Improvement 0 

Other 0 

TOTAL 820 

 

Tudalen 67



Tudalen 68

Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



  

Appendix 2 

 
Public Services Ombudsman for Wales – complaints data 
 
Table 4: summary of complaints made to the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales 

 
Subject  2012/13  2011/12  

 
2010/11 

Adult Social Services  1  2  2 
Benefits Administration  3  2  4 
Children’s Social Services  4  0  3 
Community facilities, recreation and leisure  1  0  0 
Education  2  2  4 
Environment and Environmental Health  2  3  1 
Finance and Taxation  2  1  0 
Housing  7  9  3 
Planning and building control  6  11  12 
Roads and Transport  1  2  0 
Agriculture and Fisheries  0  1  0 
Various Other  9  5  2 
Total  38  38  31 

 
 

Chart 1: comparison of complaint outcomes with average outcomes, adjusted for  

population distribution 

 
 

Tudalen 69



Tudalen 70

Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



  

Appendix 3 
Planning and Building Control  
Upheld – December 2012 
 

Mr A complained that Denbighshire County Council (“the Council”) had provided him 
with conflicting planning advice relating to the development of a Coach House at the 
rear of his property, the erection of a fence at the side of his property and a piece of 
land at the side of his property. Mr A also complained that the Council’s complaint 
procedure was ineffective.  
Having conducted an investigation, it was found that on the three occasions that Mr A 
had requested planning advice from the Council about the development of the Coach 
House, clear advice was provided. Furthermore, the Council’s decision to issue 
“Requisition for Information” documents to Mr A in order to seek further information 
about the development was one that the Council was entitled to make.  
 

With respect to the erection of the fence at the side of Mr A’s property it was found 
that the Council initially undertook enforcement action on the basis that the fence 
being erected next to a highway. This information was incorrect and the Council 
withdrew the action. Finally it was found that the Council failed to meet the 
timescales set out in its own complaints procedure  
Mr A’s complaint was partly upheld and it was recommended that the Council 
apologise for the failings identified, pay Mr A £50 in recognition of the time and 
trouble taken in pursuing this complaint and review its enforcement procedures to 
ensure that appropriate checks are made before enforcement action is undertaken. 
The Ombudsman was pleased to note, however, that in its response to the draft 
report, the Council confirmed that it would be implementing the Welsh Government’s 
Model Concerns and Complaints Policy in which it planned to have in place by 
February 2013.  
Case reference 201102872  
 
 

Agriculture and Fisheries  
Denbighshire County Council & Welsh Government 
Upheld – January 2013  
Mr and Mrs J (and their son) owned agricultural land in the Council’s area, and had 
complained about the actions of Denbighshire County Council and the Welsh 
Government in relation to the preparation of the statutory local development plan 
(LDP). They complained that they were not notified of an intended survey of their 
land or of the outcome, namely the “downgrading” of the agricultural quality of their 
land from Grade 2 (“very good”) to Grade 3b (“moderate quality”). They complained 
further that they were not afforded an opportunity to appeal against the regarding of 
the agricultural classification of their land, and that the Council acted wrongly when it 
sent a copy of their own privately commissioned survey report to the Welsh 
Government. They also complained that the Council failed to send them an internal 
audit report relating to their concerns and to provide a satisfactory response to their 
complaint. They claimed that as a consequence they were prevented from making 
adequate representations in respect of the LDP and that the market value of their 
farm was adversely affected.  
 

Their complaint against the Council was not upheld. The Council had acted 
reasonably, and in accordance with statutory guidance in including their land in its 
broad area of search for possible sites for future housing and employment 

Tudalen 71



  

development, and in seeking information from the Welsh Government about its 
agricultural quality. The Council was not under any statutory or other obligation to 
notify them of the survey or of its results, this being a matter for the Welsh 
Government. The Council also had not acted unreasonably in disclosing their survey 
report to the Welsh Government, given that this was to be placed in the public 
domain as part of the LDP process. The Council had also provided a reasonable 
response to their complaint, and had sent them a copy of the internal auditor’s report 
by email.  
 

Their complaint against the Welsh Government was partially upheld. The letter of 
notification was not sent by recorded delivery. However, there was evidence to 
indicate that Welsh Government officials had contacted the complainants by 
telephone prior to conducting the survey. Nevertheless, and contrary to its 
established (but unwritten) protocol, the notification letter failed to inform the 
complainants that the results of the survey would be discussed with them if they 
wished. As a consequence, the complainants did not become aware of the survey 
results for 2 years. However, the complainants were not prevented from submitting 
representations in respect of the LDP. The role of the agricultural land classification 
system is not concerned with valuation matters, but to inform the planning process, 
and the absence of a mechanism by which the findings of an agricultural land survey 
can be challenged outside the LDP process is not maladministration. Moreover, the 
Welsh Government’s offer to have a technical discussion with the Complainant’s 
surveyor regarding the respective survey results was not unreasonable.  
 
The Welsh Government agreed to apologise to the complainants for the error 
identified in this report, and to incorporate its procedures for contacting landowners 
into its existing written procedures for conducting agricultural land surveys.  
Case reference 201100420 & 201100421  
 
 

Other  
Upheld – March 2013  
 

Mr J complained about the way in which Denbighshire County Council (“the Council”) 
managed the council tax account for his late mother’s property. The Council issued a 
summons for non payment of council tax, against the Executors of her estate. Mr J 
was a joint Executor with a local based firm of Solicitors. Mr J made a payment to the 
council to clear the liability from his personal account.  
 

Mr J later became aware that the new registered occupier of the property had 
become liable for the charges. He wrote to the Council to request a refund in respect 
of the monies he had paid. Mr J did not receive an acknowledgement of his request 
and had to chase the Council for a response. Mr J raised additional concerns about 
the actions taken by the Council following his request for a refund in seeking the 
consent of his fellow Executor prior to issuing the refund and the manner in which he 
felt he was treated by the Council’s staff. Mr J received a refund from the Council 
some 4 months later.  
 

Having considered all of the evidence available the Ombudsman concluded that the 
Council’s management of the council tax account for the property was reasonable in 
the main. However, the Ombudsman did identify that the Council’s service did not 
meet the required standard for dealing with Mr J’s written request for a refund. In 

Tudalen 72



  

addition the Ombudsman felt that the Council should also, at the very least, have 
advised Mr J of the steps that it had to take to seek the consent of his fellow Executor 
before it could issue the refund to him. The Council agreed to the Ombudsman’s 
recommendations to apologise to Mr J and to make a payment of £100 in respect of 
the failings identified and time and trouble taken to pursue the complaint.  
Case reference 201201315 

Tudalen 73



Tudalen 74

Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



  

Appendix 4 
 

Briefing paper – Complaints, compliments and feedback policy – ‘Your Voice’ 
revision 

 
1 Introduction 
 
1.1 This briefing paper has been produced to highlight the changes to the 

council’s complaints, compliments and feedback policy – ‘Your Voice’. 
 
 
2 Background 
 
2.1 ‘Your Voice’ was launched in 2009 with the aim of encouraging customer 

feedback, giving people an opportunity to: 
 

• complain about our services;  

• compliment us on our work; and 

• make suggestions regarding our services. 
 

2.2  ‘Your Voice’ amalgamated the authority’s existing complaints policies and 
 procedures for social services, schools and corporate services resulting in a 
 unified policy and common approach to complaints handling across all council 
 services. 

 
 

3  Policy revision 
 
3.1 The authority has adopted the Welsh Government’s ‘Model Concerns and 

Complaints Policy’ (as recommended by the Public Services Ombudsman for 
Wales).  

 
3.2 The model policy applies to most council services, with the exception of social 

services and schools.  Social services and school complaints procedures are 
currently under review and will ultimately have their own policy. Their 
performance in terms of dealing with customer feedback however will continue 
to be included in the corporate report.   

 
3.3 Key amendments include: 

• adoption of a two stage process (formerly three stages); and 

• adjustments to response timescales at stage 2 – from 25 to 20 
working days. 

 
4  Recommendations 

 
4.1 Committee note the changes to the complaints, compliments and feedback 

policy – ‘Your Voice’. 

Tudalen 75



Tudalen 76

Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



Adroddiad i’r:  Pwyllgor Llywodraethu Corfforaethol/Cabinet 
 
Dyddiad y Cyfarfod: 4 Medi 2013 a 24 Medi 2013 
 
Awdur yr Adroddiad Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol, Moderneiddio a Lles  
 
Teitl    Polisi a Phanel Diogelu Corfforaethol Arfaethedig 
 
1 Am beth mae’r adroddiad yn sôn?   
 
Mae’r adroddiad yn cynnig mabwysiadu Polisi Diogelu Corfforaethol a sefydlu 
Panel Diogelu Corfforaethol aelodau/swyddogion ar y cyd. 
 
2 Beth yw’r rheswm dros lunio’r adroddiad hwn? 
 
Mae Sir Ddinbych wedi ceisio mabwysiadu agwedd ragweithiol tuag at sicrhau 
cydymffurfiaeth gyda’i gyfrifoldebau diogelu, gan gefnogi’r Cyfarwyddwr 
Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol statudol, sy’n bennaf gyfrifol am hyn. Ond, er 
ymdrin â hyn mewn amryw o wahanol ffyrdd, ni allwn fod yn hyderus bod arfer 
diogelu cadarn wedi’i chynnwys yn holl swyddogaethau’r Cyngor.  Hefyd, bydd 
swyddogaethau Bwrdd Diogelu amlasiantaeth, gan gynnwys swyddogaethau 
craffu, yn cael eu cynnal yn amlach ar lefelau isranbarthol a rhanbarthol. Bydd 
hyn, yn ei dro, yn rhoi rhagor o gyfrifoldeb ar y Cyngor i sicrhau bod ei systemau 
mewnol yn gweithio yn dda. 
 
3 Beth yw’r Argymhellion? 
 
Dylai’r Cabinet  
 
3.1 gytuno i fabwysiadu’r Polisi Diogelu Corfforaethol (wedi’i atodi) a 
3.2 sefydlu Panel Diogelu Corfforaethol gyda’r cylch gorchwyl a ddisgrifiwyd yn 
Atodiad 8. 
 
4 Manylion am yr adroddiad  
 
Cyflwyniad 
 
4.1 Yn draddodiadol, mae diogelu wedi’i ystyried fel cyfrifoldeb y gwasanaethau 
cymdeithasol yn bennaf, ond gan gydnabod swyddogaeth bwysig Addysg. Mae 
sicrhau bod gan y Cyngor fesurau diogelu effeithiol i amddiffyn pobl yn parhau i 
fod yn un o gyfrifoldebau craidd y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol, 
sydd â “chyfrifoldeb terfynol ac anrhanadwy am faterion diogelu” yn y Cyngor 
(Canllawiau Statudol ar Swyddogaethau a Chyfrifoldebau Cyfarwyddwr y 
Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol 2009). 
 

Eitem Agenda 9

Tudalen 77



4.2 Mae’r esboniad ynglŷn â sut y bydd y cyfrifoldeb hwn yn cael ei gyflawni, 
mewn sefydliad amlswyddogaeth gymhleth, wedi bod yn llai clir, ac nid yw 
swyddogaeth gorfforaethol erioed wedi’i sicrhau ar wahân. Mae adroddiadau 
awdurdodol olynol yn ystod y 10 mlynedd diwethaf (Waterhouse, Laming, 
Pembrokeshire, gan enwi dim ond rhai)- yn ei gwneud yn hollol glir bod heriau i 
gadernid trefniadau diogelu yn codi mewn amryw o wahanol lefydd, a bod rhaid i 
ddiogelu fod yn "Fater i Bawb”. Ond, er ein bod yn gynyddol ymwybodol o’r 
cyfrifoldebau sydd gan Benaethiaid Gwasanaeth ac aelodau – o ran rheoli 
gwybodaeth neu iechyd a diogelwch, nid yw hyn yn wir mewn perthynas â 
diogelu.  Ni fydd llawer yn dod ar draws materion yn aml iawn. Ond, gall effaith 
gweithredu yn anghywir fod yn llawer uwch ac mae'r posibilrwydd o ddod ar 
draws mater diogelu yn cynyddu gyda phoblogaeth sy'n heneiddio a gwell 
mynediad at y rhyngrwyd a chyfryngau cymdeithasol. 
 
4.3 Mae enghreifftiau o lle mae materion diogelu byw (achosion penodol neu 
faterion polisi) wedi codi yn Sir Ddinbych yn y 12 mis diwethaf yn cynnwys AD, 
mewn perthynas â phrosesau cyflogaeth diogel, trefnau a sicrwydd, ysgolion, 
cludiant ysgol, trwyddedu, y wasg a chysylltiadau cyhoeddus (defnyddio 
delweddau), y gwasanaethau hamdden, yn ogystal â’r Gwasanaethau Oedolion 
a Phlant. Ac nid yw ein cyfrifoldebau yn gorffen gyda’n gwasanaethau ein hunain 
– mae hefyd yn gyfrifoldeb arnom i wybod y gallwn fod â hyder yn nhrefniadau 
diogelu'r sefydliad y byddwn yn comisiynu, caffael trefnau diogelu ganddynt 
neu'n rhannu cyfrifoldebau diogelu â nhw, a chyfrifoldeb cyhoeddus i wneud 
rhywbeth am sefydliadau rydym yn gwybod sy’n darparu gwasanaethau, ond 
rydym yn amau sydd ddim wedi sefydlu trefniadau cadarn.   
 
4.4 Yn Sir Ddinbych, yn ystod y 10 mlynedd diwethaf, rydym wedi datblygu sawl 
agwedd at gynnal proffil corfforaethol a throsolwg ar gyfer materion diogelu, fel a 
ganlyn:  
 

- Yn 2004, cytunodd y Cabinet ar Fframwaith Atebolrwydd Corfforaethol, ôl 
Climbie/Laming, oedd yn nodi cyfrifoldebau unigol ar gyfer diogelu plant. 
Mae hwn wedi’i ddiweddaru wedi hyn, a gofynnwyd i’r Penaethiaid 
Gwasanaeth a’r Aelodau Arweiniol ganfod bylchau ac arfer da. Er ei fod 
yn ddefnyddiol, ychydig o dystiolaeth sydd ei fod wedi bod yn ddogfen fyw 
sydd wedi cymell arferion. 

- Mae’r Tîm Rheoli Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol ac Addysg (SSEMT), sydd 
wedi’i sefydlu ers sawl blwyddyn, wedi cadw golwg yn ar faterion diogelu, 
ar ran yr Uwch Dîm Arweiniol. 

- Ers 2009, mae Bwrdd Lleol Diogelu Plant Sir Ddinbych wedi ei gwneud yn 
ofynnol i bartneriaid gwblhau “archwiliadau a28” blynyddol (o’r 
dyletswyddau a nodwyd yn a28 Deddf Plant 2004). Ar gyfer Sir Ddinbych, 
mae hwn wedi cynnwys y Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol, Addysg, y 
Gwasanaeth Ieuenctid a Thai - ond nid, er enghraifft, AD neu’r 
Gwasanaethau Hamdden 

Tudalen 78



- Mae rhaglen barhaus o hyfforddiant ymwybyddiaeth diogelu plant ac 
oedolion corfforaethol wedi’i chynnal ers 2009. Mae hyfforddiant Aelodau 
wedi bod yn orfodol ers 2012, ond nid oes cydymffurfiaeth 100% wedi bod 
â’r hyfforddiant hwn. 

- Ar ôl cyhoeddi adroddiadau AGGCC/Estyn ar y cyd ar y trefniadau diogelu 
yng Nghyngor Sir Penfro yn 2011, datblygwyd Cynllun Gweithredu 
Diogelu Corfforaethol sy’n parhau i gael ei fonitro gan SSEMT. Mae hwn 
wedi bod yn ymbarél ar gyfer gwaith da iawn yn Sir Ddinbych, gan 
gynnwys gweithredu archwiliadau hunanasesu mewn ysgolion, datblygu 
dull hunanasesu ar gyfer contractau sector gwirfoddol, adolygu trefniadau 
ar gyfer cyfarfodydd rhan IV (honiadau o gamdriniaeth proffesiynol), 
adolygiad diogelu sylweddol, cludiant i’r ysgol a threfniadau trwyddedu 
tacsis, a rhaglen waith fanwl iawn ar bolisïau, trefnau a chydymffurfiaeth 
AD (parhaus)  

 
4.5 Mae elfen dameidiog ac elfen o oportiwnistiaeth am y gwaith hwn, a theimlir 
bod angen i ni fabwysiadu agwedd fwy systematig a strwythuredig. 

 
Cynnig 

 
4.6 Wedi’i atodi mae fersiwn drafft Polisi Diogelu Corfforaethol a Chanllawiau yn 
seiliedig yn helaeth ar yr un a fabwysiadwyd yn ddiweddar yng Ngwynedd.  Mae 
agwedd debyg a fabwysiadwyd yn Ynys Môn yn ddiweddar hefyd wedi’i ystyried. 
Mabwysiadwyd y polisi yng Ngwynedd yn dilyn yr arolwg Estyn ac o ganlyniad i’r 
gofynion a nodwyd gan yr Arolygiaeth.  
 
4.7 Mae’r cynnig yn cael ei gyflwyno oherwydd y byddai’r agwedd yn darparu 
datblygiad rhesymegol i’r gwaith rydym wedi’i wneud eisoes gyda’r Fframwaith 
Atebolrwydd Corfforaethol ac ar y Cynllun Gweithredu Diogelu Corfforaethol.  
 
4.8 Nod y polisi a’r canllawiau yw sefydlu dull strwythuredig ar gyfer sicrhau bod 
diogelu yn fater sy’n cael ei ystyried gan bob gwasanaeth yn y Cyngor, yn 
ogystal â gan bob aelod etholedig.  
 
4.9 Agweddau allweddol y polisi a’r canllawiau yw: 
 
- mae’n cynnwys plant ac oedolion 
- mae’n seiliedig ar ddiogelu, ac nid amddiffyn yn unig  
- mae’n cynnwys y syniad bod Rheolwyr Dynodedig ym mhob gwasanaeth yn 
ymdrin â materion diogelu (ar ôl cael yr hyfforddiant priodol) 
- daw Rheolwyr Dynodedig ynghyd gydag uwch swyddogion ac aelodau 
arweiniol i ffurfio Panel Diogelu Corfforaethol sy’n atebol i’r Cabinet. Disgwylir i’r 
Panel Corfforaethol lunio Adroddiad Blynyddol ar gyfer rhoi gwybod yn fewnol a 
rhoi gwybod i’r BLlDP. 
- disgwylir i bob gwasanaeth sefydlu polisïau a threfnau diogelu sy’n ymdrin â’u 
maes busnes nhw.  

Tudalen 79



- mae’n ymdrin â chyfrifoldebau aelodau etholedig  
- mae’n cynnwys data craidd i bwrpasau rhoi gwybod. Mae hyn yn cynnwys rhai 
o’r Dangosyddion Perfformiad arferol, ond hefyd data AD allweddol (gwiriadau 
CRB, cydymffurfio â geirdaon) a % y cynghorwyr sydd wedi bod i hyfforddiant 
diogelu). Bydd peth gorgyffwrdd yma gyda rhoi gwybod am y Cynllun 
Corfforaethol a bydd angen i’r data ddatblygu i sicrhau ei fod yn ychwanegu 
gwerth at drefnau rhoi gwybod presennol. 
 
4.10 Mae’r atodiadau hefyd yn darparu 
 
- gwybodaeth sylfaenol am arwyddion o gamdriniaeth a llwybrau atgyfeirio – sy’n 
cysylltu â threfnau diogelu plant ac oedolion 
- adran ddefnyddiol ar y Cod Ymddygiad a threfnau gwaith diogel 
- adran sy’n nodi’r gefnogaeth hyfforddiant i’w rhoi i ddechrau.  Byddai angen 
datblygu hyn dros amser hefyd 
- croesgyfeirio gyda’n Polisïau Recriwtio Diogel (AD) 
- canllawiau ar gyfer cynghorwyr ar gyswllt diogel 
- ymdrin â honiadau o gamdriniaeth broffesiynol (hefyd yn cysylltu â threfnau 
diogelu plant ac oedolion) 
 
4.11 Er bod hyn yn creu dogfen sylweddol, mae’r pecyn yn darparu agwedd 
gredadwy tuag at sicrhau bod diogelu yn bryder corfforaethol. Byddai’r pecyn yn 
meithrin cysondeb agweddau ac atebolrwydd ac yn cael ei deilwra i’r materion 
sy’n wynebu gwasanaethau penodol.   
 
5 Sut mae’r penderfyniad yn cyfrannu at y Blaenoriaethau Corfforaethol? 
 
Un o flaenoriaethau corfforaethol Sir Ddinbych yw sicrhau bod pobl ddiamddiffyn 
yn cael eu diogelu ac y gallant fyw mor annibynnol ag sy’n bosibl. 
 
6 Faint fydd hyn yn ei gostio a sut bydd yn effeithio ar wasanaethau eraill? 
 
Bydd y prif oblygiadau o ran cost wedi’u rhannu yn dri – amser swyddogion i 
wneud gwaith y Rheolwr Dynodedig a hyfforddi Rheolwyr Dynodedig, cefnogaeth 
weinyddol ar gyfer y Panel Diogelu Corfforaethol ac arian ar gyfer hyfforddiant i 
sicrhau y gall staff ac aelodau etholedig fynd i hyfforddiant ar lefel briodol i 
ddiwallu eu swyddogaeth a’u gofynion. Mae eisoes adnoddau yn y system sy’n 
ymateb i faterion diogelu pan fyddant yn codi.  Yn y rhan fwyaf o achosion, bydd 
y trefniadau arfaethedig yn golygu ailganolbwyntio ymdrechion yn hytrach na 
chreu gwaith cwbl newydd. Mae’r Gwasanaethau Plant wedi cytuno i roi 
cefnogaeth ar gyfer gweithredu Panel Diogelu Corfforaethol. 
 
7 Beth yw prif gasgliadau’r Asesiad o Effaith ar Gydraddoldeb a gynhaliwyd 
am y penderfyniad? 
 

Tudalen 80



Gall fabwysiadu’r polisi a’r trefniadau panel gael effaith gadarnhaol, yn enwedig 
ar gyfer pobl hŷn a phobl anabl. Dim effeithiau negyddol wedi’u nodi. 
 
8 Pa ymgynghori a gynhaliwyd gyda’r Pwyllgorau Archwilio ac eraill? 
 
Bydd yr adroddiad yn cael ei ystyried gan y Pwyllgor Llywodraethu Corfforaethol 
ar 4 Medi. 
 
9 Datganiad y Prif Swyddog Cyllid. 
 
Ni ddylai mabwysiadu’r Polisi a chreu’r Panel greu costau ychwanegol sylweddol, 
ond bydd rhaid ariannu unrhyw gostau ychwanegol o adnoddau presennol.  
 
10 Pa risgiau sy’n bodoli ac a oes unrhyw beth y gallwn ei wneud i’w 
lleihau? 
 
Y brif risg gyda’r cynnig yw ei fod yn ymarfer biwrocrataidd mewn cydymffurfio. 
Ond, y risg fel arall yw nad oes gennym agwedd systematig at sicrhau bod 
gofynion diogelu wedi’u hystyried ar gyfer bob maes gwasanaeth yn y Cyngor. 
Gellir lliniaru’r risg o or-fiwrocratiaeth trwy ganolbwyntio ar drefnau ac arferion 
rhoi gwybod sy’n fedrus ac yn ychwanegu gwerth ar gyfer gwasanaethau, yn 
ogystal â sicrhau gwell atebolrwydd. 
 

11 Pŵer i wneud y Penderfyniad 
 
a. 28 Deddf Plant 2004 
a.17 Deddf Trosedd ac Anrhefn 1998  
a.111 Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 

Tudalen 81



Tudalen 82

Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



1  

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Denbighshire 

County Council 

 

 

Policy and 

Guidelines 
Safeguarding Children & Adults 

 
 
 

 
 

 

Draft  

-  

Septem

ber 

2013 

 
 
 
 

 

Tudalen 83



2 

Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding Children and Adults – 
Draft Version 

 

 

 
1.  INTRODUCTION 

 
1.1.      One of Denbighshire Council’s corporate priorities is to ensure that vulnerable 

people are protected and are able to l ive as independently as 

possible. 
 
1.2. As a Council, we believe that every child and adult has a right to be safe from 

harm. 
The Council acknowledges its role and responsibilities to provide definite 
guidance for staff, Councillors, partners and those people whom we serve in this 
key field. 

 
1.3.      “Safeguarding” is everybody’s business in every Service within the Council.   Whilst 

Social Services is the Lead Service for dealing with enquiries regarding allegations / 

concerns that children and adults may be suffering significant harm, everyone has 

a responsibility to safeguard the welfare of children, young people and adults, 

whatever the role of the individual. 
 
1.4.     “Safeguarding” is a wider concept than the protection of children and adults and 

deals with the promoting of: 

 
• physical, emotional and mental health; 

• protection from harm and neglect; 

• education, training and leisure; 

• contribution to society; 

• social and economic well-being. 

 
 
1.6.      Although every organisation working with children, young people and adults 

should be committed to safeguarding and promoting their welfare, a number 

of organisations have statutory roles or duties: 

 
• under Section 28 of the Children Act 2004, Denbighshire Council has a duty 

to ensure that it undertakes its functions in a way that safeguards and 
promotes the welfare of children; 

• under Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998, it is Denbighshire 

Council’s duty to ensure that every reasonable step is taken to protect 

adults and prevent crime and disorder when it undertakes its functions. 

 

Welsh Government also proposes to strengthen duties relating to adult protection 

in the forthcoming Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Bill. 
 

 
 

2.  PURPOSE OF THIS DOCUMENT 
 

The  purpose  of  this  document  is  to  introduce  the  Council’s  “Policy  and  

Guidelines  for 

Safeguarding Children and Adults”. 

Tudalen 84



3 

Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding Children and Adults – 
Draft Version 

 

 

 
This document will be submitted to the Denbighshire Council Cabinet on 24th 
September, 2013. Every member of staff of the Council and every Councillor will 
then receive a copy of this document. 

 
2.1.  Objectives and Principles of the Policy and Guidelines 

 
2.1.1 The following are the objectives of the Safeguarding Policy and Guidelines: 

 
• to highlight how Denbighshire Council undertakes its legal commitments in 

the field of safeguarding children and adults; 

• to give assurance to members of the public, service users, councillors, 

employees and people working on behalf of the Council that there are 

clear arrangements in place to safeguard and protect children and adults; 

• that Council staff and councillors have clear guidelines for  when a child 

or adult may be at risk of harm. 

 
2.1.2    As a Council we believe that it is always unacceptable for a child or an adult 

to be abused or harmed in any way. This is reflected in the following principles 
which form the basis of the Policy and Guidelines: 

 
• Every child and adult (whatever their background, culture, age, disability, 

gender, ethnicity, religious belief) has a right to participate in a safe society 
without any violence, fear, abuse, bullying and discrimination; 

•       Every child and adult has the right to be protected from harm, 

exploitation and abuse; 

• we as a Council will put the welfare of children and adults centrally in our 
policies and procedures; 

• As a Council we will work closely in partnership with children, their parents, 
carers and adults and other agencies to safeguard and promote the 
welfare of children and adults; 

• Respect the rights, wishes, feelings and privacy of children and adults by 

listening to them and minimising any risks that may affect them; 

• Invest in preventative work and early intervention and try to avoid situations 

where abuse or allegations of abuse or harm may occur. 

 
2.2.  Outcomes 

 
2.2.1    This Policy and Guidelines reflect the Council’s commitment to safeguard 

children and adults and to protect them from being abused when they receive 

services arranged and provided by or on behalf of the Council. 
 
2.2.2    When the Guidelines are introduced, we will measure the impact  regularly 

i n  o r d e r  t o achieve the following high level outcomes: 

 
• a clear understanding amongst staff, councillors and those working on 

behalf of the Council of the policies and guidelines for safeguarding 

children and adults; 

• robust corporate and departmental procedures in place to ensure 

compliance with the Policies and Guidelines introduced here; 

• clear  and  access ib le   communication  arrangements  in  place  across  

the organisation, including information about the key officers in each 

Service who are responsible for children and adult safeguarding issues; 

• consistency between these guidelines and the procedures which are 

operational on an all- Wales basis and associated protocols for 

safeguarding children and adults ; 
Tudalen 85



4 

Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding Children and Adults – 
Draft Version 

 

 

• that staff and councillors receive information and training regarding the 

guidelines and that this is a continuous and permanent arrangement within 

the organisation. 

Tudalen 86



5 

Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding Children and Adults – 
Draft Version 

 

 

 

 
 

3.  RESPONSIBILITES AND DUTIES 
 
3.1.      Every Councillor, every member of staff, every volunteer and every contracted 

service provider has a responsibility to adhere to the procedures and guidance set 
out in this policy. 

 
3.2.     By following the correct procedures and guidance, it is possible to ensure that the 

appropriate steps are implemented to deal with any allegation or concern, 
services are planned and delivered in a way which safeguards children and 
adults and staff are able to conduct themselves safely. 

 
3.3.      Every member of staff, councillor, volunteer and service provider has a 

responsibility in the field of safeguarding. It is very important to highlight this. 
 
3.4.      This means that every Service within the Council has a key role to play and 

has to take full ownership of the safeguarding field. It follows that there is a 

need to ensure that there are clear arrangements and procedures in place 

within each Service in the Council to ensure that investigations into allegations / 

concerns that children and adults may be suffering substantial harm receive due 

consideration. In addition, every service needs to understand where safeguarding 

issues are most likely to arise in their particular service and ensure they have 

appropriate policies, procedures and guidance in place to manage these well. 

 
3.5.      This document draws together the corporate policies and guidelines in the field 

of safeguarding children and adults and it will operate as a framework for the 
procedures of every Service in the Council. 

 
 

4.  FUNCTIONS OF KEY OFFICERS AND MEMBERS 
 

The Chief Executive has the general responsibility for ensuring that there is an 
effective safeguarding policy and procedures for children and adults in place and 
that they are implemented. 

 
He is also responsible for the development of effective corporate governance and 

satisfying all the statutory  requirements  However,  there  are  some  Key  Officers  

who  are  worth  highlighting because of their responsibilities in the safeguarding 

field: 
 

4.1.  Statutory Director (Social Services) Current Post 
Holder: Sally Ellis  

 
 

4.1.1    The Statutory Director (Social Services) has the final and indivisible responsibility for 

safeguarding issues. She is responsible for ensuring that the Council has 

appropriate safeguarding measures to protect children and young people, adults 

and vulnerable older people and she is responsible for reporting at a corporate 

level to councillors on their effectiveness. 
 
4.1.2 The Director is responsible for the following: 

 
• supervising the process of implementing, monitoring and improving the 

safeguarding and protection procedures for children and adults; 

• ensuring that there are robust reporting arrangements and processes for 
safeguarding children and adults and to report at corporate level and to 
Members; 

•       ensuring the effectiveness of the Local Safeguarding Tudalen 87



6 

Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding Children and Adults – 
Draft Version 

 

 

Children Board; 

• ensuring that lessons are learned as a result of serious case reviews and 

that they are applied  as  necessary  by   every   agency,  

acknowledging  that  the   effectiveness  of arrangements are dependent 

on the quality of the contribution of every agency; 

Tudalen 88



7 

Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding Children and Adults – 
Draft Version 

 

 

 
• raising the profile, supporting the policy and ensuring that the Council 

complies fully with the Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding Children and 
Adults; 

• ensuring that every member of staff of Social Services understands and 
implements high standards in terms of identifying risks and safeguarding 
practices; 

• promoting more awareness amongst the public of issues relating to 
safeguarding children and adults and ensuring social work practices evolve 
in light of appropriate research; 

• raising standards in social work practice by means of professional 
supervision, training and other opportunities to learn and reflect so that staff 
working in the safeguarding field are supported appropriately; 

• submitting  observations,  in  her  statutory  role,  on  Cabinet  reports  
dealing  with  the safeguarding field. 

 
4.1.3    Whilst every member of staff has a responsibility to safeguard and promote 

the welfare of children and adults, the Statutory Director is the Senior Officer in the 

Council with the final and indivisible accountability for this. 
 
4.2.  Lead Director for Children and Young People 

Current Post Holder: H y w y n  W i l l i am s   
 
4 .2.1    The Children Act (2004) places a responsibility on every local authority in 
Wales to appoint a lead director for children and young people services and to 
appoint a specified lead member for children and young people services. The role 
of the Lead Director in Wales does not change the arrangements of an executive 
authority or change accountability for services. The Lead Director for Children and 
Young People’s Services in Wales has three main roles: 

 
• Firstly, the Lead Director will be responsible for promoting partnership when 

planning for children and young people corporately across the 

departments of the local authority and across the authority and its partners; 

• Secondly, the Lead Director will offer the required leadership to ensure that 

a high profile is given within the local authority to planning in partnership 

thereby promoting strategic change for children and young people in the 

field; 

• Thirdly, the Lead Director is responsible for ensuring that the local authority 
implements the United Nations’ Convention on the Rights of the Child. 

 
4.2.2    This responsibility is in addition to, but independent of any executive 

responsibility the Lead Director has for a specific service or a group of services 
that could be associated with any appropriate Director within the Corporate 
Executive Team. 

 
4.3.  Designated Managers within Every Service 

 
4.3.1   Every Service within the Council will be required to nominate a “Designated 

Manager” for dealing with safeguarding children and adults issues. 
 
4.3.2 The Designated Managers are responsible for: 

 
• Acting as a key  source  of advice and support for other staff in the 

Service on all safeguarding issues; 

• Being familiar with Denbighshire Council’s Co rpo ra te  Policy and 

Guidelines for Safeguarding Children and Adults along with the All Wales 

Child Protection Procedures and the Policy and Proecdure for the Protection 

Tudalen 89



8 

Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding Children and Adults – 
Draft Version 

 

 

of Vulnerable Adults; 

• ensuring that there are effective internal procedures to deal with 

concerns within the 

Service by working closely with Social Services to achieve this; 

• representing the Service on the Council’s Corporate Panel for Safeguarding 

Children and Adults; 

Tudalen 90



9 

Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding Children and Adults – 
Draft Version 

 

 

 
• ensuring that the process of complying with this Policy and Guidelines is 

monitored by reporting regularly to the Corporate Safeguarding Panel; 

• attending the relevant training for “Designated Managers”. 

 
4.3.3. Any member of staff with concerns regarding the behaviour of a colleague 

towards children or an adult should contact the Designated Manager within the 
Service immediately. 

 
4.3.4 The Designated Managers for each Service are as follows: 

 
Department Contact 

School Improvement Wayne Wheatley  

Customers and Education Support Wayne Wheatley 

Human Resources tbc 

Finance and Assets tbc 

Legal and Democratic Services tbc 

Housing and Regeneration tbc 

Communications, Marketing and 
Leisure 

Roger Ellerton 

Social Services (Adults) Nerys Tompsett 

Social Services (Children) Sue Trehearn 

Business Planning and Performance tbc 

Tudalen 91



10 

Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding Children and Adults – 
Draft Version 

 

 

Environment and Highways tbc 

Planning and Public Protection tbc 

Business Transformation and ICT tbc 

 
 

4.3.5 If allegations are made against a “Designated Manager”, the individual should refer 

their concerns to the line manager of the Designated Manager. 
 
4.4.  All Heads of Service 

 
4.4.1    All Heads of Service – through their Management Teams – will be jointly 

responsible for ensuring that all the statutory requirements in terms of safeguarding 

and promoting the welfare of children and adults receive due consideration. This 

includes the quality, content and frequency of training provided and maintaining 

sufficient staff training records. 
 
4.4.2    All Heads of Service must ensure that their staff are a p p r o p r i a t e l y  

checked through the D i s c l o s u r e  a n d  B a r r i n g  S e r v i c e  and the 

Independent Safeguarding Authority procedures and that their staff conform to 

the  Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding Children and Adults. All Heads of 

Service must establish arrangements to ensure that they comply with the 

requirements of this policy and the Council’s Criminal Records Policy. All Heads of 

Service must ensure that records are kept of every check that is made by the 

Disclosure and Barring Service and the Independent Safeguarding Authority. 
 
4.4.3    All Heads of Service  are  expected to co-ordinate the process of preparing 

a Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding Children and Adults in their Service. It is 

expected that this Policy is prepared in order to highlight the Service’s 

arrangements for responding to issues that could arise in the safeguarding field. It 

will be a requirement for the Policy to fully comply with the Corporate Policy 

and Guidelines.  Every Service Policy and Guidelines will be in place by the end of 

March 2014.               
 
4.4.4    It will be a requirement for every Service in the Council to report on their 

Safeguarding Policies and Guidelines to the Corporate Panel for Safeguarding 
Children and Adults. 

 
4.4.5   The Council’s Senior Leadership Team meets on a fortnightly basis. At these 

meetings, any member can raise safeguarding issues.  
 

4.5.  Every  Line  Manager 
 
4.5.1    Every  Line Manager is responsible for ensuring that the staff for which they are 

responsible receive the training which they need, proportionate to their 

responsibilities. A refreshed Training Strategy will be prepared setting out which 

members of staff should receive safeguarding training and to what level. A priority 

will be the training of Designated Safeguarding Managers in each service.  
 Tudalen 92



11 

Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding Children and Adults – 
Draft Version 

 

 

4.6.  Every Member of Staff and Volunteers (including school governors) 
 
4.6.1    Every member of staff and volunteers are responsible for undertaking their 

duties in a manner which safeguards and promotes the welfare of children and 

adults. They must also act in a way which protects them against false allegations of 

abuse as far as possible and in accordance with this policy. They must bring issues 

of concern regarding the safety and welfare of children and adults to the 

attention of the Designated Manager in their Service. 
 
4.7.  Contractors, Sub-contractors  or  Other   Organisations funded by  or  on  

behalf of 

Denbighshire Council 
 
4.7.1    Contractors, sub-contractors or other organisations funded by or on behalf of 

the Council are responsible for arranging checks through the Disclosure and 

Barring Service and the Independent Safeguarding Authority and for ensuring that 

their staff comply with regulatory and contractual arrangements relating to 

safeguarding children and adults. Some organizations are also required to 

undertake an annual self assessment of safeguarding arrangements, and to 

report outcomes, as part of contract monitoring arrangements. It is expected 

that this will apply to more organizations over time. Contractors are also 

responsible for informing relevant managers of the Council about any concerns 

they may have and to refer protection issues. 
 
4.8.  Detailed Guidelines 

 
4.8.1 A copy of “Signs of Abuse” is attached at Appendix 1 and the “Code of 

Conduct and Safe 
Working Practices” at 

Appendix 2. 
 
4.8.2.   Also, in Appendix 3, a statement is attached of the Council’s commitment to 

train staff (and Councillors) in the field of safeguarding. Appendix 4  cross 
refers to the Council’s detailed guidelines in relation to “Safe Recruitment”. 

 
5.  ROLE OF ELECTED MEMBERS 

 
5.1. Elected Members will receive the following information in the field of safeguarding: 

 
• The Lead Member for Social Care and Children’s Services and the Lead 

Member for Education will be standing members of the Corporate 

Panel for Safeguarding Children and Adults. This Panel will receive 

information regarding the working practices and procedures of every 

Service in the Council, providing assurance that the Services are meeting 

their duties in accordance with the Corporate Safeguarding Policy and 

Guidelines. In addition, the Panel will receive information regarding the 

performance management arrangements of every Service, in order to show 

that they are discharging their duties in a manner which safeguards children 

and adults. 

 
Members of the Panel will have an important role in challenging information 

regarding the results of the performance management process across 

services from the perspective of safeguarding children and adults. It is also 

the duty of Members of this Panel to ensure that effective corporate policies 

and procedures are developed across the organisation. 
 

• The Lead Member for Social Care and Children’s Services and the Lead 
Tudalen 93



12 

Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding Children and Adults – 
Draft Version 

 

 

Member for Education, will report on the work of the Corporate Panel to all 

Cabinet Members on an annual basis. Every Cabinet Member will receive 

assurance from the Lead Member for Social Care and Children’s Services 

and the Lead Member for Education, that a clear work programme is in 

place and that the Council’s policies and procedures are robust in the 

safeguarding field. In addition, it must be reported that appropriate 

arrangements are in place to monitor the performance of every Service 

regarding reviewing and evaluating policies. In  the  Annual  Report,  there  

will  also  be  an  opportunity for  both L e a d  M e m b e r s  serving on the 

Corporate Panel to highlight any obstacles or concerns they may have in 

terms of the response or performance of any Service in the Council. 

 
Any lessons from Serious Case Reviews will also be identified to Cabinet as 
part of the Annual Report. 

 
• Members of the Pe r fo rmance  Scrutiny Committee will receive 
information regarding the work of the Corporate Safeguarding Panel 

through the Annual Report. This will provide an opportunity for Members to 

scrutinise and challenge Members of the Corporate Panel. Members of the 

Scrutiny Committee will receive information regarding the work programme 

of the Co rpo ra te  Panel, the progress against this work programme 

and the main messages stemming from the performance management 

arrangements. The observations of the Scrutiny Committee will steer and 

influence the priorities of the Corporate Panel’s work programme. 

 
• It i s  a  r e q u i r e m e n t  that every Councillor attends training in the 

field of safeguarding children and adults.  A register will be kept of those 

attending and this will be reported as part of the performance monitoring 

arrangements co-ordinated by the Co rpo ra te  Panel. The training will 

raise awareness amongst Denbighshire Councillors of this Policy and 

Guidelines and increase their understanding of the safeguarding 

procedures which exist within the Council. 

 
5.2. A copy of the "Good Practice Guidelines for Councillors - Safe Contact with 

Children and 
Vulnerable Adults" is in Appendix 5. 

 

 
 

6.  CLARITY REGARDING THE REFERRAL PROCESS 
 
6.1.      Any member of staff with concerns regarding the safety of an individual, or the 

behaviour of a colleague towards children or an adult should contact the 
Designated Manager within the Service immediately. 

 
6.2       If a Councillor (or any member of the public) has concerns regarding the 

safety of an individual,   then  the  First Contact Team  (Social  Services)  

should  be   contacted immediately on 01824 712 900 during office hours 

(8.30am to 5pm Monday to Thursday, 8.30 am to 4.30 pm Friday). 

 
6.3. The Social Services Out-of-Hours Team should be  contacted on 0 8 4 5  

0 5 3  3 1 1 6  i f the issue arises after 5.00pm, Monday to Friday and on 

weekends and Bank Holidays. 

 

6.4. The Police must be contacted immediately if the child or adult is in danger. 
 
6.5.  If the Designated Manager is unavailable, then the matter must be referred to 

the F i r s t  C o n t a c t Team (details as noted  above). It is crucial not to delay. Tudalen 94



13 

Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding Children and Adults – 
Draft Version 

 

 

 
6.6.      A copy of the “Referral Procedure” is in Appendix 6. Also, a copy of the 

detailed guidelines in relation to “Dealing with Allegations of Professional Abuse” is 

in Appendix 7. 
 

 
 

7.  CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS 
 
7.1.  Corporate Panel for Safeguarding Children and Adults 

 
7.1.1    On a corporate level, the responsibility for undertaking an overview of the 

children and adults safeguarding arrangements has been delegated to the 
Corporate Panel for Safeguarding Children and Adults by Cabinet. 

 
7.1.2    The main responsibilities of the Panel are to ensure that robust arrangements for 

safeguarding children and adults are in place within Denbighshire Council. 
 
7.1.3 The Panel will act on a Strategic level in order to: 

 
• assure relevant Lead Members that the Council’s procedures are robust 

where matters of safeguarding children and adults are in question; 

• Bring together interdepartmental work in the safeguarding field and 
ensure effective corporate communication; 

• Support the functions and duties of the Statutory Director within the Council; 

• Resolve  any  possible  barriers  that  could  prevent  having  effective  
and  successful procedures in place; 

• Receive and consider information about trends in relation to allegations 
of professional abuse, and adopt action plans to respond should the need 
arise; 

• Receive  and  challenge  information  about  the  progress  against  work  

programmes commissioned  

• Consider and understand the implications of Serious Case Reviews and 

ensure that the 

Council responds effectively to recommendations within 

such reviews; 

• Accept and challenge the Annual Report of the Statutory Director; 

• Approve the Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding of every Service in the 

Council. 

 
7.1.4    The Panel has a key role to play in ensuring that every Service undertakes its duties 

in accordance with the Council’s Safeguarding Policy and Guidelines.  The Panel 

also ensures that every Service has a performance management system in place 

to show that they are undertaking their functions in a manner which safeguards 

children and adults. 
 
7.1.5 The Panel meets on a quarterly basis. The  Membership  of  the Panel  includes  

Designated  Managers  for  the  field  of safeguarding children and adults in every 

Service within the Council.  The Panel is a key method of ensuring that the 

Designated Managers collaborate and share information across the Council. 

They also deal with identifying any gaps in the Council’s procedures in the 

safeguarding field along with submitting recommendations to the Corporate 

Panel regarding updating or amending the Council’s Policy in this field. A copy of 

the Panel’s terms of reference is in Appendix 8. The Panel is serviced by Children 

and Family Services. 
 
7.1.6   Cabinet receives an annual report from this Panel. The Corporate Executive Team 

also receives the annual report, with more frequent reporting on an as required Tudalen 95



14 

Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding Children and Adults – 
Draft Version 

 

 

basis. This provides assurance to the Chief Executive that safeguarding is receiving 

its due attention within the Council. 
 

7.1.7 The Panel complements the role of the Local Safeguarding Children Board and the Denbighshire 

Adult Protection Committee. These focus on ensuring that robust multi-agency arrangements are in 

place to safeguard children and vulnerable adults and that key partners have appropriate 

safeguarding systems in place. The role of the Denbighshire Corporate  Panel for Safeguarding 

Children and Adults is to ensure effective oversight of  safeguarding across the wide range of services 

which the Council provides and commissions. On their own, the current multi- agency arrangements 

for children and adults cannot provide sufficient depth of assurance to meet the needs of complex 

organisations, especially given increased public expectations and expectations from regulators.  

 
7.3.  Denbighshire Council’s Performance Scrutiny Committee 

 
7.3.1   The Council’s Performance Scrutiny Committee wi l l  have the ro le of  

scrutinising and challenging the work and performance of the Corporate Panel for 

Safeguarding Children and Adults on an annual basis. It is considered that this is 

crucial so that Committee Members gain experience and understanding in the 

field and become completely aware of the breadth and depth of the Panel’s 

work and the corporate arrangements. 
 
7.4.  The Council's Corporate Plan 2012 - 2017 

 
7.4.1    The Council’s Corporate Plan sets out the strategic direction for the Council’s 

work over the n e x t  f i v e  years and identifies clear priorities and actions to 

respond to these priorities. An Annual Delivery Plan is also produced to enable 

monitoring on regular basis. 
 
7.4.2    O n e  o f  t h e  p r i o r i t i e s  w i t h i n  t h e  P l a n  i s  t h a t  “ V u l n e r a b l e  

P e o p l e  a r e  p r o t e c t e d  a n d  a b l e  t o  l i v e  a s  i n d e p e n d e n t l y  

a s  p o s s i b l e . ”  R e g u l a r  p r o g r e s s  r e p o r t s  a r e  s u bm i t t e d  t o  

C a b i n e t  a n d  a  s e t  o f  h i g h  l e v e l  i n d i c a t o r s  h a s  a l s o  b e e n  

a g r e e d . T h e s e  a r r a n g em e n t s  w i l l  c omp l em e n t  r e p o r t i n g  t o  

t h e  C o r p o r a t e  Panel for Safeguarding Children and Adults.. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

8.  REPORTING, MONITORING AND REVIEWING 
 
8.1.      The Corporate Panel for Safeguarding Children and Adults’ Annual Report will 

draw attention to the Council’s performance in complying with the Corporate 

Policy and Guidelines. The Annual Report will be submitted to the Corporate 

Executive Team, the Cabinet and to the  Performance Scrut iny 

Committee. In addition, on behalf of the Council as a whole, the 

Safeguarding Panel will report to the Conwy and Denbighshi re Local 

Safeguarding Children Board as part of requirements under s28 of the Children Act 

2004. 
 
8.2.      It is proposed to submit the Annual Report every June. Specific attention will be 

given initially to the following Performance Indicators. It is anticipated that this 

dataset will evolve over time to better capture the breadth of safeguarding activity: 
# POVA referrals completed in the period 

# child protection referrals in the period 

% of staff commencing in post with two references and a DBS check 

Tudalen 96



15 

Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding Children and Adults – 
Draft Version 

 

 

% of staff receiving safeguarding training as they receive induction 

% of Child referrals during the year where a decision is made within one working day 

(SCC/006) 

% of initial assessments completed during the year with evidence that a Social Worker has 

seen the child 
(SCC/011a) 

% of child protection reviews held within the statutory timetable during the year (SCC/034) 

% of initial assessments completed within 7 working days (SCC/042a) 

% of adult clients with a care plan on 31 March whose care plans should have been 

reviewed that were reviewed during the year (SCA/007) 

% of Councillors attending safeguarding training 

% of adult protection referrals completed during the year, the percentage where the 

risk has been managed (SCA/019) 

% of referrals re-referred within 12 months  

 

 
 

8.3.      The Corporate Panel for Safeguarding Children and Adults will receive a quarterly 

report noting the performance of indicators in the safeguarding field and work 

programme progress. The Local Safeguarding Children Board already receives 

core data on a regular basis. Any concerns regarding underperformance/slippage 

will require a clear action plan to respond to the concerns. Safeguarding will also 

be a potential “line of enquiry” in service challenges. 
 
8.4.      This Safeguarding Policy will be reviewed annually or if any amendments occur in 

legislation or in consideration of changes in working practices which may stem 

from incidents or allegations. 
 
8.5.      Further details are included in Appendix 9 regarding the method the Council will 

use to measure impact and monitor effectiveness. 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendices 
 

Appendix 1 – Signs of Abuse 
Appendix 2 – Code of Conduct and Safe Working Practices 

Appendix 3 – Safeguarding Training 
Appendix 4 – Safe Recruitment 
Appendix 5 – Good Practice Guidelines for Councillors: Safe Contact with Children 
and 

Vulnerable 

Adults 
Appendix 6 – The  Referral Process 
Appendix 7 – Dealing with Allegations of Professional Abuse 

Appendix 8 – C o r p o r a t e  Panel for Safeguarding Children and Adults Terms of 

Reference 
Appendix 9 – Measuring Impact and Monitoring 

Tudalen 97



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 1 
 

Signs of Abuse 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 98



 

 

 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 1 
 

Signs of Abuse 

 

 

This policy relates to both children and adults.  They both have their individual codes of practice and 

relevant staff need to be familiar with these documents. 

 

Children in Need 

 

Abuse and neglect are forms of maltreatment of a child.  Somebody may abuse or neglect a child either 

directly by inflicting harm, or indirectly, by failing to act to prevent harm.  Children may be abused in a 

family or in an institutional or community setting; by those known to them; or, more rarely, by a stranger.  

They may be abused by an adult or adults, or another child or children. 

 

There are four types of child abuse.  They are defined in the All Wales Child Protection Procedures and 

Welsh Government guidance Safeguarding Children: Working Together Under the Children Act 2004 as 

follows: 

 

Physical abuse 

Physical abuse may involve hitting, shaking, throwing, poisoning, burning or scalding, drowning, suffocating, 

or otherwise causing physical harm to a child. Physical harm may also be caused when a parent or carer 

fabricates the symptoms of, or deliberately induces, illness in a child. 

 

The physical signs of abuse may include: 

 

• unexplained bruising, marks or injuries on any part of the body 

• multiple bruises- in clusters, often on the upper arm, outside of the thigh  

• cigarette burns  

• human bite marks 

• broken bones  

• scalds, with upward splash marks 

• multiple burns with a clearly demarcated edge. 

 

N.B. Most children will collect cuts and bruises as part of the rough-and-tumble of daily life.  Injuries should 

always be interpreted in light of the child’s medical and social history, developmental stage and the 

explanation given.  Most accidental bruises are seen over bony parts of the body, e.g. elbows, knees, shins, 

and are often on the front of the body.  Important indicators of physical abuse are bruises or injuries that 

are either unexplained or inconsistent with the explanation given, or visible on the ‘soft’ parts of the body 

where accidental injuries are unlikely, e g, cheeks, abdomen, back and buttocks. 

 
Tudalen 99



 

 

Changes in behaviour that can also indicate physical abuse: 

 

• fear of parents being approached for an explanation 

• aggressive behaviour or severe temper outbursts 

• flinching when approached or touched 

• reluctance to get changed, for example in hot weather  

• depression or withdrawn behaviour 

• running away from home. 

 

Emotional Abuse 

Emotional abuse is the persistent emotional maltreatment of a child such as to cause severe and persistent 

adverse effects on the child’s emotional development.  It may involve conveying to children that they are 

worthless or unloved, inadequate, or valued only insofar as they meet the needs of another person.  It may 

feature age or developmentally inappropriate expectations being imposed on children.  It may involve 

causing children frequently to feel frightened or in danger, or the exploitation or corruption of children.  

Some level of emotional abuse is involved in all types of maltreatment of a child, though it may occur alone. 

 

Changes in behaviour which can indicate emotional abuse include: 

 

• neurotic behaviour e.g. sulking, hair twisting, rocking 

• being unable to play 

• fear of making mistakes 

• sudden speech disorders 

• self-harm 

• fear of parent being approached regarding their behaviour 

• developmental delay in terms of emotional progress 

 

Sexual Abuse 

Sexual abuse involves forcing or enticing a child or young person to take part in sexual activities, not 

necessarily involving a high level of violence, whether or not the child is aware of what is happening.  The 

activities may involve physical contact, including assault by penetration (for example, rape or oral sex) or 

non-penetrative acts such as masturbation, kissing, rubbing and touching outside of clothing.  They may also 

include non-contact activities, such as involving children in looking at, or in the production of, sexual images, 

watching sexual activities, encouraging children to behave in sexually inappropriate ways, or grooming a 

child in preparation for abuse (including via the internet). 

 

The physical signs of sexual abuse may include: 

 

• pain or itching in the genital area 

• bruising or bleeding near genital area 

• sexually transmitted disease 

• vaginal discharge or infection 

• stomach pains Tudalen 100



 

 

• discomfort when walking or sitting down 

• Pregnancy 

 

Changes in behaviour which can also indicate sexual abuse include: 

 

• sudden or unexplained changes in behaviour e.g. becoming aggressive or withdrawn 

• fear of being left with a specific person or group of people 

• having nightmares 

• running away from home 

• sexual knowledge which is beyond their age, or developmental level 

• sexual drawings or language 

• bedwetting 

• eating problems such as overeating or anorexia 

• self-harm or mutilation, sometimes leading to suicide attempts 

• saying they have secrets they cannot tell anyone about 

• substance or drug abuse 

• suddenly having unexplained sources of money 

• not allowed to have friends (particularly in adolescence) 

• acting in a sexually explicit way towards adults 

 

Neglect 

Neglect is the persistent failure to meet a child’s basic physical and/or psychological needs, likely to result in 

the serious impairment of the child’s health or development.  It may involve a parent or carer failing to 

provide adequate food, shelter and clothing, failing to protect a child from physical harm or danger, or the 

failure to ensure access to appropriate medical care or treatment. It may also include neglect of, or 

unresponsiveness to, a child’s basic emotional needs. 

 

The physical signs of neglect may include: 

 

• constant hunger, sometimes stealing food from other children 

• constantly dirty or ‘smelly’ 

• loss of weight, or being constantly underweight 

• inappropriate clothing for the conditions. 

 

Changes in behaviour which can also indicate neglect may include: 

 

• complaining of being tired all the time 

• not requesting medical assistance and/or failing to attend appointments  

• having few friends 

• mentioning being left alone or unsupervised 

 

These definitions and indicators are not meant to be definitive, but only serve as a guide to assist you.  It is 

important too, to remember that many children may exhibit some of these indicators at some time, and that 
Tudalen 101



 

 

the presence of one or more should not be taken as proof that abuse is occurring.  There may well be other 

reasons for changes in behaviour such as a death or the birth of a new baby in the family or relationship 

problems between parents/carers.  In assessing whether indicators are related to abuse or not, Social 

Services will always want to understand them in relation to the child’s development and context. 

 

Adults in Need of Protection 

 

Categories of Abuse 

There are many ways in which a vulnerable person may be abused.  It is not unusual for an abused adult to 

suffer more than one kind of abuse.  Accordingly, the impact of abuse and its seriousness for the individual 

must be evaluated in every case. 

 

In safe Hands identifies five main categories of abuse: 

• Physical 

• Sexual 

• Financial 

• Emotional or Physiological 

• Neglect 

 

Physical Abuse 

Physical abuse is the unnecessary infliction of any physical pain, suffering or injury by a person who has 

responsibility, charge, care or custody of, or who stands in a position of or expectation of trust to, a 

vulnerable person.  Physical abuse may also be perpetrated by on vulnerable adult upon another. 

 

Sexual Abuse 

Adult sexual abuse refers to the direct or indirect involvement of a vulnerable adult in sexual activity to 

which they are unwilling or unable to give informed consent, or which they do not fully comprehend, or 

which violates the social taboos of family roles, such as incest.  Sexual abuse may also be perpetrated by one 

vulnerable adult upon another. 

 

Any sexual activity that is not freely consenting is criminal.  Where there is an abuse of trust, sexual activity 

may appear to be with consent, but is unacceptable because of the differences in power and influence 

between the people involved. 

 

Sexual abuse includes the involvement in prostitution or ‘sex trafficking’ of vulnerable adults who do not 

have the capacity to consent. 

 

Emotional or Psychological Abuse 

Emotional or psychological abuse is the infliction of mental suffering by a person in a position or expectation 

of trust upon a vulnerable person.  Emotional / psychological abuse may also be perpetrated by one 

vulnerable adult upon another. 

 

Emotional and psychological abuse includes bullying, which is typically deliberate, hurtful behavior repeated 
Tudalen 102



 

 

over time, which can include physical abuse but often is verbal (name-calling and threats).  It can undermine 

self-confidence, may cause the victim to become more isolated and sometimes leads to self-harm. 

 

Emotional and psychological abuse, including bullying and harassment, can be very subtle, for example 

taking the form of ignoring or excluding the victim.  Such abuse may be direct, such as by not responding to 

the person, or indirect, such as by giving unfair preference to another person.  Emotional and psychological 

abuse may be cumulative, possibly building up over months or even years.  It may involve one or more 

person and may be part of the culture within any institution, organization or service. 

 

Another example of psychological abuse is when a vulnerable adult is incited, induced or exploited to 

commit a crime or abuse.  Examples of this include inciting to steal, to perform acts of violence and commit 

sexual crimes.  There have also been examples of vulnerable adults being exploited to commit acts of radical 

extremism. 

 

In determining whether emotional and psychological abuse has taken place, it is the impact on the 

vulnerable adult that counts.  Individual actions may not seem significant and may even be a one-off, but if 

they are part of a wider pattern of abuse experienced by the vulnerable adult the impact on them may be 

significant.  Therefore, the wider context in which action is experienced by the vulnerable adult must always 

be considered in determining whether or not abuse has occurred. 

Financial or Material Abuse 

Financial or material abuse is any theft or misuse of a person’s money, property or resources by a person in 

a position of, or expectation of, trust to a vulnerable person.  Common forms of financial abuse are misuse 

by others of a vulnerable adult’s state benefits or undue pressure to change wills.  Financial / material abuse 

may also be perpetrated by one vulnerable adult upon another. 

 

Neglect 

Neglect is the failure of any person for whom there is an expectation of trust and /or the responsibility, 

charge, care or custody of a vulnerable person to provide that degree of care which a reasonable person in a 

like position would provide. 

 

Neglect may be criminal or non-criminal.  It may also be as a result of intentional or non-intentional acts or 

omissions. 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 103



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 2 
 

Code of Conduct and Safe Working Practices 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 17 

Tudalen 104



18 

 

 

 
CODE OF CONDUCT AND SAFE WORKING PRACTICES 

 

 

 

1. This code of conduct is a statement and is a description of the professional 
standards of practice that are required from all Council staff when undertaking 
their day-to-day duties. 

 
2. The code of conduct reflects current practice and it is expected that 

employees can identify the following standards as those which they aim to 
emulate daily. 

 

3. It is anticipated that this code of conduct provides a better understanding for 

members of the public using Council services of what is expected of the 

Council’s staff and the manner in which the employer supports its staff to 

undertake work effectively and in a manner respectful of the needs of individuals. 
 

4. Every member of staff should give a good example in terms of behaviour to 

ensure that children and adults are protected and safeguarded.  The following 

guidelines provide details of examples of good practice which must be used, 

along with specific codes of conduct (e.g. Denbighshire Council’s codes of 

conduct), which could be relevant to roles, activities or specific events. 

 
� You should always be open for the public to scrutinise you when working 

with children and adults and you should avoid situations where a Councillor, 
member of staff, volunteer or service provider is with a child or children or 
vulnerable adult alone without anyone else to observe him or her; 

� You should follow the required process for reporting incidents, e.g. an 
incident of health and safety importance; 

� Children and adults have a right to privacy, equality, respect and dignity 
and a safe and positive environment; 

� Councillors, staff, volunteers and contracted service providers must give 
priority to the welfare and safety of the child or adult before concerns for 
performance; 

� If a child or adult arrives at an activity or service exhibiting signs or symptoms 
which cause you concern, you must act appropriately and follow the 
procedures outlined in the policy; 

� Be aware of the need to ensure safe practices when meeting children and 

adults. 

 
YOU SHOULD 

 

� Work in accordance with this safeguarding policy.   If in doubt, contact 

the Designated 
Safeguarding Manager in your Department; 

� Work in an open environment (e.g. you should avoid private situations or 
those which cannot be observed and encourage an open environment, i.e. 
no secrets); 

� Treat every child and adult fairly with respect and dignity; 

� Put the welfare of each child and adult first; 

� Ensure a safe and appropriate distance with participants (e.g. it is not 
appropriate to have a close relationship with a child or an adult); 

� Create an equal relationship based on trust which empowers children and 
adults to share in the decision making process; 

� Get the most current information about training and safeguarding issues; 

� Be an excellent example – this includes not smoking, drinking alcohol or 

swearing in the company of children and adults; Tudalen 105



19 

 

 

� Make sure that photographic or filming equipment is used appropriately 

and a parent or carer of the participants has given their permission; 

� Keep a record in writing of any injury which is sustained, along with 

any treatment administered in accordance with Council policy; 

Tudalen 106



20 

 

 

 
YOU SHOULD NOT 

 

� Touch or allow inappropriate touching in any way, use force or 
inappropriate language or make suggestive sexual comments; 

� Make a child cry as a means of controlling him / her, or use any 
behaviour control techniques not authorised by the Council’s policy and 
procedures; 

� Ignore allegations made by a child or adult.  All allegations or disclosures of 

abuse by a child       or vulnerable adult should be reported immediately to 

Social Services or the Police.  

� Undertake tasks of a personal nature for children or adults which they 
could do for themselves; 

� Invite or permit children or an adult to come to your home where they will 

be alone with you; 

� Enter areas that have been specifically set-aside for the other sex; 

� Use the internet, an electronic device or a phone to access child 

pornography sites; 

 
5. An employee who breaches any condition of the above code of conduct will 

face an investigation and could face disciplinary steps which could lead to 
dismissal and the possibility of a criminal investigation if there is evidence of illegal 
activity. 

 
6. Volunteer services that breach the code of conduct will be suspended 

immediately.  If there is evidence of illegal activity, the name of the volunteer will 
be drawn to the attention of the relevant authorities and he /she could face a 
criminal investigation. 

Tudalen 107



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 3 
 

Training on Safeguarding 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 20 

Tudalen 108



22 

 

 

 
TRAINING ON SAFEGUARDING 

 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMMITMENT 

 
1.1.      Denbighshire Council is committed to ensuring that all staff who work with 

children,  young people and adults undertake appropriate General Safeguarding 
awareness training. 

 
1.2.   Every member of staff who works with children,  young people and adults should 

have information on safeguarding issues, in order to ensure that our  workforce: 
 

" is aware of the principles of safeguarding; 

" can identify the need to refer; 

" knows how to deal with individual cases. 
 
1.3.      Priority is given in the Staff, including Designated Managers, and Councillors 

training programmes to develop an understanding of the Council’s Policy and 
Guidelines for Safeguarding Children and Adults. 

 
2. CONTENT OF THE TRAINING 

 
2.1.      Every member of staff working with children, young people and adults should have 

information on safeguarding issues.  The training will make workers aware of the 
dist inction between safeguarding and child/adult protection. It wi l l  
also make workers aware of the definition of the types of abuse of children, 
young people and adults,  the  main  signs  and  indicators,  staff  implications  and  
their  personal  responsibility  to safeguard children and adults, and the procedures 
to follow should any worker have any concerns. 

 
2.2. There will be a need to refer to: 

 
"     The All Wales Child Protection Guidelines; 

" The Wales Interim Policy & Procedures for the Protection of Vulnerable Adults 
from Abuse (November 2010) [commissioned by the four Adult Protection Fora]  

� Older People's Commissioner for Wales 'Protection of Older People in Wales: 
A Guide to the Law' (John Williams, April 2011) 

 "     The function of the Conwy & Denbighshire Local Safeguarding Children 
Board. 

 
 

3. LEARNING OBJECTIVES 
 

By receiving the training, attendees will be able to: 
 

" Challenge  myths  and  stereotypes  associated  with  child and adult  
abuse  and  the  process  of safeguarding children and adults; 

" Ensure that the child’s and adult’s voices and rights are the principal      
consideration. 

 
Attendees will also: 

 
Legislation, policies and procedures: 

 
" Be aware of the legislation and the local and national policies which relate to 

Tudalen 109



23 

 

 

safeguarding; 

" Understand local and institutional policies and procedures which relate to 
safeguarding individuals who receive care, and how these are to be 
implemented in their work. 

 
Understand and identify different types of abuse: 

 
" Be able to note the main categories for abuse and neglect, and be able to 

identify the usual signs and symptoms associated with these; 

" Understand that individuals have the right to be safeguarded from abuse and 
neglect; 

" Understand that they need to ensure that their own actions or behaviour do 
not have a harmful effect on the individual in their care; 

 
Understand how to respond to suspicions of abuse or 
neglect: 

 
" Understand that they must report at once any suspicions of abuse or 

neglect, and know how and when they should inform the appropriate 
individual of these; 

" Know how important it is to continue to voice concerns if they are not 
addressed after they have been reported, and  how to do this; 

Understand the limitations of confidentiality and when to 
share information. 

 
4. PROVIDING THE TRAINING 

 
4.1. (It is suggested that :-) The Care Council for Wales approved All Wales 

Safeguarding Awareness Training (known formerly as Adult & Child Protection 
Awareness Training) will be provided: 
"           As part of the Induction programme - as a minimum staff will be made 

aware of their responsibilities in respect of safeguarding at Corporate, Service 
and Team level Induction. (There will be potential for access  to  e -  
l ea rn ing  through the Learning Hub on the Intranet if DCC renew the 
license). 

"         Staff who have direct / indirect contact with children or adults who have not 
received the A d u l t  &  C h i l d  P r o t e c t i o n  Aw a r e n e s s  training will 
need to undertake the All Wales Safeguarding Awareness Training; 

"  Staff will need to undertake Safeguarding refresher training on the 
appropriate level every three years [note that some staff will require this 
training at more frequent intervals than three years]. 

 
Note:  It is intended in the future to inc lude a l l  remain ing s taf f  i .e .  
those who do not  have d i rect  /  ind i rect  contact  w i th  adul ts  or 
ch i ldren in  the awareness t ra in ing. Currently the Corporate Adult and Child 
Protection Awareness half day course is targeted at staff who come into contact 
with Adults or Children as part of their daily responsibilities and duties . 

 
5. TARGETING THE TRAINING 

 
" Every member of staff who has direct/indirect contact with children and 

adults is required to undertake the All Wales Safeguarding Awareness 
Training on safeguarding children and adults. 

"          The training is compulsory and should be attended within 12 months of   
starting in post. 

" All posts requiring General Safeguarding awareness training, and who start 
in those posts for the first time in the Council’s employment, will be 
targeted from April 2014 onwards. Tudalen 110



24 

 

 

" Ex i s t i ng  staff members w i l l  be  i den t i f i ed  who have not received 
the appropriate training, in order to target and introduce the new training / 
programme. 

" As a priority, Designated Managers in each Service will receive the 
appropriate  Safeguarding Training outlining their roles and responsibilities 
as outlined in the Denbighshire Safeguarding Policy & Guidance. 

 
6. METHOD OF DELIVERING THE TRAINING 
 

6.1 Corporate / Departmental Induction  
 
As part of their initial Induction Training staff to be informed of their 
responsibilities to protect children, young people and adults in line with 
the Denbighshire Policy and Guidance – Safeguarding Children & 
Adults.  
 
6.2 All Wales Safeguarding Awareness ½ day Training  
 
For all staff, except Designated Managers, who have direct / indirect 
contact with children and adults. 
 
Training to be delivered by DCC Workforce Development staff (or a 
training provider) at service area venues as identified by the 
Designated Managers. 
 
Learning Outcomes: 
 
This training will give the opportunity for participants to: 

• Know their own role in relation to safeguarding adults and 
children and young people from harm, abuse and neglect 

• Understand how individuals are protected from harm, abuse 
and neglect 

• Know how to recognise different types of harm, abuse and 
neglect 

• Understand what actions to take if they have concerns about 
abuse of a child or adult 

 
6.3 Designated Manager Training 
 
 1 day Training to be delivered by DCC Workforce Development staff 
(or a training provider) 
 
Learning Outcomes; 
 
This training will give the opportunity for participants to: 

• Know their own role in relation to safeguarding adults and 
children and young people from harm, abuse and neglect 

• Understand how individuals are protected from harm, abuse 
and neglect 

• Know how to recognise different types of harm, abuse and 
neglect 

• Understand what actions to take if they have concerns about 
abuse of a child or adult 

• Understand their role in acting as a key source of advice and 
support for other staff in the Service on all safeguarding issues; Tudalen 111



25 

 

 

• Become familiar with Denbighshire Council’s Policy and 
Guidelines for Safeguarding Children and Adults along with the 
All Wales Child Protection Procedures and the Policy & 
Procedure for the Protection of Vulnerable Adults; 

• Ensure that there are effective internal procedures to deal with 
concerns within the Service by working closely with Social 
Services to achieve this; 

• Understand their role in representing the Service on the 
Council’s Corporate Panel for Safeguarding Children and 
Adults; 

• Understand their role in ensuring that the process of complying 
with this Policy and Guidelines is monitored regularly to the 
Corporate Safeguarding Panel 

 
 
6.4 Refresher Training for all staff 
 
Content, frequency and method of delivery of refresher training will 
need to be agreed. 
 

7. MEASURING THE IMPACT OF THE TRAINING 
 

7.1. The Council’s Services will develop a ‘Measuring Impact Programme’ using the DCC 
Corporate Evaluation methodology. NB. This will need resourcing from within each 
service area by admin support to the Designated Manager. 

 

7.2. Impact can also be measured through: 
 

" Evaluation Forms for the training – completed by attendees; 

" The Council’s Procedure i.e.  Staff Appraisal Scheme / Supervision Policy. 
 
7.3. The impact will be reviewed by the Corporate Panel, and changes recommended 

to the training in light of the experience/feedback of the managers/attendees of the 
training if required. 

 
8. TIMETABLE 

 

" Include as part of Corporate Induction from September 2013 

" Adult & Child Protection Awareness training to recommence in October 2013 
to be replaced by the All Wales Safeguarding Awareness Training 
programme from February 2014 or earlier once fully approved by the Care 
Council for Wales. - Frequency tbc – but move to service areas training. 

" Designated Manager training to take place January 2013 
"     Safeguarding training programme will be included in the 2014-15   
        development programme for Elected Members. (sessions already held for  
           new members in 2013) 
 

8.1 The  aim  of  the  new  procedure  is  to  reconcile  arrangements  for  the  General  
Safeguarding awareness training across the Council. 

 
8.2      More specialized training for particular occupational groups, and multi-agency 

training under the Safeguarding Boards for Children/Adults, already takes place and 
will continue. 

 

Tudalen 112



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 4 
Safe Recruitment 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 25 

Tudalen 113



Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding Children and 
Adults – Draft Version 

27 

 

 

 
 
SAFE RECRUITMENT 
 

Ensuring that the Council only employs people who are suitable is a key activity in safeguarding the 
public. Carefully checking the credentials of potential employees is critical. 
 
Denbighshire has detailed policies and procedures relating to Safe Recruitment, for example covering 
 

- Disclosure of Offences and Criminal Records checks 
- Applicants with previous convictions 
- Checking the past employment histories of specific groups 

of employees 
- Seeking and giving references 
- interviewing 

 
These policies and procedures are available on the intranet via this link……. and all recruiting 
managers must be familiar with them. They must also ensure required records are maintained. 
Regular reports on indicators of Safe Recruitment will be generated and reported to the Corporate 
Safeguarding Panel. 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 114



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 5 
 

Good Practice Guidelines for 

Councillors: Safe Contact with Children 

and Vulnerable Adults 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 115



 

 

 

 27 

Tudalen 116



Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding 
Children and Adults 

29 

 

 

 

 

GOOD PRACTICE GUIDELINES FOR COUNCILLORS 
- SAFE CONTACT WITH CHILDREN AND VULNERABLE ADULTS 

 

 

 

1. These guidelines are a statement and description of the standards of conduct 

expected from all members of the Council when having contact with children or 

vulnerable adults* in their office as a Councillor. 
 

2. The guidelines are supplementary to, and do not replace, the Members’ Code 

of Conduct. The Members Code of Conduct remains relevant whenever a 

member acts in his/her role as elected member, and also at any time in relation to 

not bringing the office or the Council into disrepute. 
 

3. Some of the requirements of the Code are: 

 
� To show respect to others and be mindful of them; 

� To address equal opportunity for everyone, regardless of their gender, 
race, disability, sexual orientation, age or religion; 

� Not to disclose confidential information without consent; 

� Not to behave in a manner which would bring your office or the Council into 

disrepute; 

� To report any behaviour likely to be criminal by another member or 
employee to the appropriate authority; 

� Not to use your position inappropriately to cause someone advantage or 

disadvantage. 

 
4. Members may come into contact with children and vulnerable adults through 

their position on a committee or working group, or through their role as local 

member. They may also come into contact with them when representing the 

Council on external bodies or taking part in events arranged by the Council. 

Every member of the Council has a corporate parent responsibility for looked after 

children, and every member also has a responsibility to follow good practice for 

safeguarding children and vulnerable adults. 
 
5. The aim of these guidelines is to reflect current practice and it is expected that 

members identify the following standards as those which they aim to reach daily. 
 
6. It is expected that these guidelines give a better understanding to members of 

the public of what is expected by councillors when they come into contact with 
them. 

 
7. Every councillor should give a good example in terms of behaviour to ensure 

that children and vulnerable adults are protected and safeguarded. The 
guidelines below give details of examples of good practice that must be used. 

 

YOU SHOULD 
 

� Become familiar with the Council’s safeguarding policies and guidelines 
and the current procedures for reporting incidents etc.; 

� Attend training on safeguarding children and vulnerable adults; 

� Follow a recognised process for reporting incidents, e.g. an incident of 
health and safety importance; 

� Be open to public scrutiny at all times when working with children and 
young people, and try and avoid situations where you are alone with a 
child or children or vulnerable adult, with nobody to observe you; 

� Respect children and adults’ right to privacy, equality, respect and dignity Tudalen 117



Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding 
Children and Adults 

29 

 

 

and a safe and positive environment; 

� Place the child or adult’s welfare and safety above other considerations; 

� Create an equal relationship based on trust which empowers children and 

adults to share in the decision-making process; 

� Be an excellent example for children and vulnerable adults. 

Tudalen 118



Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding 
Children and Adults 

29 

 

 

 
YOU SHOULD NOT 

 

� Touch or allow inappropriate touching in any way, use force or 
inappropriate language or make suggestive sexual comments; 

� Ignore allegations made by a child or vulnerable adult; all allegations or 

disclosures of abuse by a child  or vulnerable adult should be reported 

immediately to Social Services or the Police. 

� Invite or allow children or a vulnerable adult to come to your home where 
they will be alone with you; 

� Enter areas in the Council’s buildings that have been specifically allocated 
for the opposite sex; 

� Use the internet, electronic device or phone to access child pornography 

sites; 

� Spread confidential information concerning individual cases to anyone 
unless through recognised reporting procedures. 

 
 

 

 

*  A vulnerable  adult  is  a  person  over  18 years  of  age  who  cannot  look  after 

himself/herself,  or protect himself/herself 

Tudalen 119



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 6 
 

Referral Procedure 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 30 

Tudalen 120



 

 

 

Referral Procedure 
 
 
 
 
Recognition and Referral 

Suspicion about abuse may take the form of ‘concerns’ rather than ‘known facts’.  Safeguarding concerns 

can arise in many different contexts, including when they are already known to the social services. Concerns 

can and should be shared with social services through a referral, using the standard referral form available 

on the Denbighshire website.  All referrals should be sent to the firstcontactteam@denbighshire.gov.uk. 

 

While concerns will not necessarily trigger an investigation, they help to build up a picture, along with 

concerns from other sources, which may indicate that they may be suffering harm. 

 

In cases of alleged or suspected abuse by a professional or individual employee, the action should also be 

guided by the procedures contained in Part 1V of the All Wales Child Protection Procedures, the wales 

Interim Policy and Procedures and Denbighshire’s own procedures on professional abuse and whistle 

blowing (See Appendix 7). 

 

Making the referral 

Referrals should be made to social services as soon as a problem, suspicion or concern about a child 

becomes apparent, and certainly within 24 hours.  Outside office hours, referrals should be made to the 

social services emergency duty service or the police.  All telephone referrals or referrals made in person 

should be confirmed in writing within two working days, preferably using the standard referral form.  The 

first contact officer/duty social worker taking the referral should be given as much of the following 

information as possible by the referrer: 

 

� The nature of the concerns; 

� How and why those concerns have arisen; 

� The full name, address and date of birth (or age) of the child / adult of concern; 

� The names, addresses and dates of birth/ages of family members, along with any other names which 

they use or are known by; 

� The names and relationship of all those with parental responsibility / guardian or carer roles, where 

known, should be recorded; 

� The name, address & date of birth of parent’s partner; 

� The name, address and date of birth of any other adults living in the household; 

� The names of other professionals involved with the family, including for example the name of the 

child’s school and GP; 

� Any information you have on the child’s developmental needs / adults care needs and his/her 

parents or caregivers ability to respond to these needs within the context of the wider family and 

environment; 

� Any information affecting the safety of staff: 

� In the case of vulnerable adults the capacity and risks of the individual concerned need to be 

considered 

31 

Tudalen 121



 

 

 

Individual employees, professionals and independent contractors, should be aware that they cannot remain 

anonymous when making a referral.  However, members of the public may remain anonymous, if they wish 

to. 

 

The individual employee or professional making the referral may be asked to do some or all of the following 

tasks, and should be prepared and willing to do them:_ 

 

� Contribute to a strategy discussion or strategy meeting; 

� Assist in the child protection section 47 enquiries / POVA Adult Investigation; 

� Attend the child protection / adult protection conference; 

� Provide a written report for the conference; 

� Contribute to the assessments. 

 

It is the responsibility of individual employees and professionals to ensure that their child protection 

concerns are taken seriously and followed through.  Each individual employee and professional is 

accountable for his or her own role in the protection process, and if an individual employee or professional 

remains concerned they should re-refer and/or bring the matter to the immediate attention of the children 

or adults senior manager or in their absence the person deputising for their function with responsibility for 

protection.  In all such situations, the individual employee or Professional’s own line manager and named 

professional for child protection should be informed. 

Denbighshire Social Services 

During office hours* tel. 01824 712 900 

Out-of-hours tel. 0845 053 3116 

*Office hours 8.30am to 5.00pm Mon- Thu, 8.30am to 4.30pm Fri. 

Police tel. 0845 607 1002 

If you need Police assistance in an EMERGENCY, you should always dial 999 

NSPCC tel. 0808 800 5000. 

You do not need to know everything about the child / adult of concern and what is happening - just to be 

worried, or feel that everything is not right. 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

       32 

Tudalen 122



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 7 
 

Dealing with Allegations of Professional Abuse 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Tudalen 123



 

 

        33

Tudalen 124



Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding 
Children and Adults 

 

 

 

 

Dealing with Allegations of Professional Abuse 
 

 

Managing Allegations against Workers, Carers and Volunteers who have Contact with Children 

Guidance and good practice 

Final version 

Date of Policy June 2013 

Author of 

Document 

Sue Trehearn 

Adapted from 

Flintshire’s policy  

Revised by Sue Trehearn 

Date of review June 2014 

Contents 

1. Introduction  

2. Threshold  

3. Roles and Responsibilities  

4.  General Considerations in Response to Allegations and Concerns of Abuse  

5.  Initial Response to an Allegations or Concern  

6.  Strategy Meeting  

7.  Conduct of Section 47 Enquiry  

8.  Second and Subsequent Strategy Meeting  

9.  Concluding Strategy Meeting  

10. Substantiated Concerns  

11. Informing the Independent Safeguarding Authority  

12. Unsubstantiated Allegations  

13. Unfounded or False Allegations  

14. Allegations Against Staff in Their Personal Lives  

15. Disciplinary Process  

16. Sharing Information for Disciplinary Purposes 

      34 Tudalen 125



Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding 
Children and Adults 

 

 

1. Introduction 

 

Children / vulnerable adults can be subjected to abuse by those who work with them in any and 

every setting.  All allegations of abuse or maltreatment of children / vulnerable adults by a 

professional, staff member, foster carer or volunteer must therefore be taken seriously and 

treated in accordance with agreed procedures.  Local Safeguarding Children Boards  and Local 

Adult Protection Committees have responsibility for ensuring that there are effective inter-

agency procedures in place for dealing with allegations against people who have contact with 

children / vulnerable adults and for monitoring and evaluating the effectiveness of those 

procedures. 

These procedures must be followed by all organisations providing services for children / 

vulnerable adults and staff or volunteers who work with or care for children / vulnerable adults.  

Any organisations who commission services for children / vulnerable adults must ensure that 

their arrangements with those services are consistent with the requirements in this procedure.  

These procedures are based on the framework for dealing with allegations of abuse made 

against a person who works with children in Working Together to Safeguard Children under the 

Children Act 2004 (Welsh Assembly Government, 2006) and the All Wales Child Protection 

Procedures (2008) and more recent guidance to managing allegations against foster carers.  In 

relation to adults the procedures are based on the framework for dealing with allegations of 

abuse against vulnerable adults contained within the Wales Interim Policy and Procedure for the 

Protection of Vulnerable Adults from Abuse (Nov 2010). 

Compliance with these procedures will help to ensure that allegations of abuse are dealt with 

expeditiously; consistent with a thorough and fair process and Conwy and Denbighshire’s 

Safeguarding Board will establish systems and processes to monitor and evaluate the 

effectiveness of these procedures. 

2. Threshold 

These procedures should be applied when there are concerns that any person who works with 

children / vulnerable adults, either in a paid or unpaid capacity i.e. any employee, foster carer, 

clergy, childminder or volunteer, where the adult is in a position of trust in relation to the child 

and family, has: 

• Behaved in a way that has harmed a child / vulnerable adult, or may have harmed a child 

/ vulnerable adult 

• Possibly committed a criminal offence against or related to a child / vulnerable adult 

• Behaved towards a child or children / vulnerable adult in a way that indicates s/he is 

unsuitable to work with children / vulnerable adults.  

It can be very difficult to determine what may fall into ‘unsuitable to work with children / 

vulnerable adults’ although all employers have a responsibility to set personal and professional 

boundaries for staff and to be explicit about what behaviours are unacceptable and will impact 

on their employment.  What constitutes unsuitability will vary depending upon the context and 

nature of the work undertaken although as a starting point, it is useful to consider whether the  

       35 Tudalen 126



Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding 
Children and Adults 

 

 

alleged behaviour has: 

• harmed or may have harmed a child / vulnerable adult 

• contravenes or continues to contravene any safe practice guidance given by their 

organisation or regulatory body 

• exploits or abuses their position of power 

• acts in an irresponsible manner which any reasonable person would find alarming or 

questionable 

• demonstrates a failure to understand or appreciate how his/her own actions or those of 

others could adversely impact upon the safety and wellbeing of a child or young person / 

vulnerable adult 

• demonstrates an inability to make sound professional judgements which safeguard the 

welfare of children / vulnerable adults 

• fails to understand or recognise the need for clear personal and professional boundaries 

in their work 

• behaves in a way in his/her personal life which could put children / vulnerable adults at 

risk of harm 

• has been the subject of a criminal investigation that could impact on the safety of 

children / vulnerable adults 

• has been subject to enquiries under local protection procedures  

• behaved in a way which undermines the trust and confidence placed in them by their 

employer 

These behaviours should be considered within the context of the four categories of abuse i.e. 

Physical Abuse, Sexual Abuse, Financial Abuse, Emotional Abuse and Neglect.  These include 

concerns relating to inappropriate relationships between members of staff and children / young 

people / vulnerable adults. 

Restraints in schools often come up as an ‘allegation’ when teachers do not ring parents to 

explain that there has been a restraint in school that day.  Careful unpicking of such allegations 

is indicated sooner rather than later and attention should be paid to the current restraint 

guidance permitted in different professional settings before reaching a decision on the most 

appropriate way forward. 

3. Roles and Responsibilities 

Conwy and Denbighshire Safeguarding Children Board / Denbighshire Adult Protection Committee  

       36 

Tudalen 127



Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding 
Children and Adults 

 

 

 

will identify a named Senior Officer in each local authority with overall responsibility for: 

• Ensuring that the organisation deals with allegations in accordance with these procedures 

• Resolving any inter-agency issues 

• Liaising with the LSCB / DAPC on the subject 

 

 Local authorities should designate an officer to: 

 

• Be involved in the management and oversight of individual cases 

• Provide advice and guidance to employers and voluntary organisations 

• Liaise with Police and other agencies 

• Monitor the progress of cases to ensure that they are dealt with as quickly as possible 

consistent with a thorough and fair process 

 

Within Denbighshire this will ordinarily be the Service Manager for Safeguarding in Children’s 

Services and Specialist Services Service Manager in Adult Services 

 

 Employers should identify: 

 

• A Designated Senior Manager to whom allegations or concerns should be reported 

• A deputy to whom reports should be made in the absence of the Designated Senior 

Manager or where that person is the subject of the allegation or concern 

 

The Detective Inspector in the Public Protection Unit (PPU) will: 

 

• Have strategic oversight of the local police arrangements for managing allegations against 

staff and volunteers 

• Liaise with the LSCB / DAPC on the issue 

• Ensure compliance 

 

Each PPU should designate a Detective Sergeant/s to: 

 

• Liaise with the Safeguarding Manager in Social Care  

• Take part in Strategy Discussion/Meetings  

• Review the progress of cases in which there is a Police involvement  

• Undertake an investigation  

• Share information as appropriate, on completion of an investigation or related 

prosecution 

 

4. General Considerations in Response to Allegations and Concerns of Abuse  

 

Confidentiality 

Every effort should be made to maintain confidentiality and guard against publicity while an 

      37  
Tudalen 128



Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding 
Children and Adults 

 

 

 

allegation is being investigated or considered.  Apart from keeping the child, vulnerable adult, 

parents, carers / representatives and accused person up to date with progress of the case, 

information should be restricted to those who have a need to know in order to protect and 

facilitate enquiries, and manage related disciplinary or suitability processes.  The Police should 

not provide identifying information to the press or media, unless and until a person is charged, 

except in exceptional circumstances e.g. an appeal to trace a suspect.  In such cases, the reasons 

should be documented and partner agencies consulted beforehand. 

 

Support 

The organisation together with Children's or Adult Social Care and/or the Police, where they are 

involved, should consider the impact on the child / vulnerable adult concerned, ensure the child 

/ vulnerable adults immediate safety or provide support as appropriate.  Liaison between the 

agencies should take place in order to ensure that the child's needs are addressed.  The member 

of staff should:  

 

• Be treated fairly and honestly and helped to understand the concerns expressed and 

processes involved  

• Be kept informed of the progress and outcome of any investigation.  The person 

responsible for this will be identified at the first Strategy Meeting  

• If suspended, be advised to contact their union representative and be kept up to date 

about events in the workplace.  Human Resources should be consulted at the earliest 

opportunity in order that appropriate support can be provided via the organisation's 

occupational health or employee welfare arrangements. 

 

Suspension 

Suspension is a neutral act and it should not be automatic.  There could be an option for 

redeployment to a post where there would be no contact with children / vulnerable adult.  

Suspension should be considered in any case where:  

 

• There is cause to suspect a child is at risk of Significant Harm, or 

• The allegation warrants investigation by the Police, or  

• The allegation is so serious that it might be grounds for dismissal  

 

The possible risks to children / vulnerable adults should be evaluated and managed in respect of 

relevant others in the accused member of staff's home, work or community life.  If a Strategy 

Meeting is to be held, (see Section 6 - Strategy Meeting) or if Children's / Adult’s Social Care or 

the Police are to make enquiries, the Safeguarding Manager should canvass their views on 

suspension and inform the employer.  Only the employer, however, has the power to suspend an 

accused employee and they cannot be required to do so by a local authority or police.  If a 

suspended person is to return to work, the employer should consider what help and support 

might be appropriate e.g. a phased return to work and/or provision of a mentor, and also how 

best to manage the member of staff's contact with the people concerned, if still in the 

workplace. 

 

      38 Tudalen 129



Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding 
Children and Adults 

 

 

        

Resignations and Compromise Agreements 

        

Every effort should be made to reach a conclusion in all cases even if:  

 

• The individual refuses to cooperate, having been given a full opportunity to answer the 

allegation and make representations  

• It may not be possible to apply any disciplinary sanctions if a person's period of notice 

expires before the process is complete  

 

'Compromise agreements' should not be used i.e. where a member of staff agrees to resign 

provided that disciplinary action is not taken and that a future reference is agreed. 

 

        Organised Abuse 

 Investigators should be alert to signs of organised or widespread abuse and/or the involvement 

of other perpetrators or institutions.  They should consider whether the matter should be dealt 

with in accordance with the guidance in Safeguarding Children: Working Together Under the 

Children Act 2004 (Sec 9.22 – 9.25) and / or the Wales Interim Policy and Procedure for the 

Protection of Vulnerable Adults from Abuse (Nov 2010) which, if applicable, will take priority.  

 

      Whistle-Blowing 

       All organisations must ensure they have a robust whistle blowing policy that all workers, carers 

and volunteers are aware of.  They should feel confident to voice concerns about the attitude or 

actions of colleagues.  If a worker, carer or volunteer believes that a reported allegation or 

concern is not being dealt with appropriately by their organisation, s/he should report the 

matter to the Safeguarding Manager. 

 

Timescales 

       It is in everyone's interest for cases to be dealt with expeditiously, fairly and thoroughly and for 

unnecessary delays to be avoided.  The target timescales provided in these procedures are 

realistic in most cases, but some cases will take longer because of their specific nature, or 

complexity.  Where this is the case, the timescales for progression should be recorded, progress 

regularly reviewed and the child or young person / vulnerable adult and the worker, carer or 

volunteer kept informed. 

 

For fostering situations there may be a parallel need to review carers approval at the next 

available fostering panel. 

 

5. Initial Response to an Allegation or Concern 

An allegation against or concerns about a worker, carer or volunteer may arise from a number of 

sources e.g. a report from a child, a concern raised by another adult in the organisation, a 

complaint by a parent or carer, or information arising from a disciplinary hearing. 

The member of staff who has received the allegation or who has a concern about a colleague 

must immediately report this to his/her Designated Senior Manager or deputy in his/her absence 

     39 Tudalen 130



Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding 
Children and Adults 

 

 

or where the Designated Senior Manager is the subject of the allegation (see section 3). 

The member of staff should:  

• If the allegation has come from a child, reassure the child that s/he was right to report it  

• Make a written record of the information (where possible in the child/adult's own 

words), including the time, date and place of incident(s), persons present and what was 

said  

• Sign and date the written record and pass immediately to the Designated Senior Manager  

 

The member of staff should not: 

• Investigate or ask leading questions if seeking clarification 

• Make assumptions or offer alternative explanations  

• Promise confidentiality, but give assurance that the Information will be shared on a 'need 

to know' basis only so that the matter can be investigated in order to keep other children 

/ vulnerable adults safe. 

 

Initial Action by the Designated Senior Manager 

When informed of a concern or allegation, the Designated Senior Manager (see section 3) should 

not investigate the matter or interview the member of staff, child / vulnerable adult concerned 

or potential witnesses. He/she should:  

• Obtain written details of the concern/allegation, signed and dated by the person 

receiving the allegation (not the child/adult making the allegation)  

• Countersign and date the written details  

• Record any information about times, dates and location of incident(s) and names of any 

potential witnesses  

• Record discussions about the child / vulnerable adult and/or member of staff, any 

decisions made, and the reasons for those decisions  

• If the child  / vulnerable adult has sustained an injury, consider the need to have her/him 

medically examined. In this instance parent/carer must be notified and reason given as to 

why medical required.  

 

If the Designated Senior Manager decides that no further action is required the reason for that 

decision must be recorded and the written record sent to the Safeguarding Manager. 

If the allegation meets the criteria in section 2, the Designated Senior Manager should report it 

to the Intake and Assessment Team within 1 working day.  Referral should not be delayed in 

order to gather information and a failure to report an allegation or concern in accordance with 

these procedures is a potential disciplinary matter.  Where a Designated Senior Manager is 

unsure about how to proceed or cannot determine whether the criteria are met, there should be 

consultation with the Service Manager for Safeguarding.  In their absence a member of the Social 

Care Senior Management Team should be contacted.  The referral in respect of children who  

      40 Tudalen 131



Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding 
Children and Adults 

 

 

may be at risk of significant harm in association with the referral will be dealt with in compliance 

with Section 3 of the All Wales Child Protection Procedures / Wales Interim Policy and Procedure for 

the Protection of Vulnerable Adults from Abuse (Nov 2010).  The contact should be made with the 

Duty Manager of the Intake and Assessment Team in Social Service for Children or Adults as 

relevant. 

If an allegation requires immediate attention, but is received outside normal office hours, the 

Designated Senior Managers should consult the Emergency Duty Team or local Police and inform 

the Safeguarding Manager as soon as possible.  

If a Police officer receives an allegation, s/he should, without delay, report it to the Designated 

Detective Sergeant on the FPU (see section 3).  The Detective Sergeant should then immediately 

inform the Safeguarding Manager and a preliminary strategy discussion undertaken to ensure 

that immediate safeguards are in place, whether the referral falls within this procedure and 

whether any immediate briefings to management are required.  

Any allegation made to Children's or Adult’s Social Services should be immediately reported to 

the Safeguarding Manager or equivalent. 

Any allegation or concern received by a Regulatory Authority must be reported to the 

Safeguarding Manager within 1 working day.  Similarly the Safeguarding Manager should be 

contacted within 1 working day about any cause for concern that a Regulatory Authority may 

identify while carrying out its duties. 

Initial Consideration by the Designated Senior Manager and the Local Authority Designated 

Officer (Safeguarding Manager) 

There are up to 3 strands in the consideration of an allegation:  

• A police investigation of a possible criminal offence  

• Social Services for Children / Adult enquiries and/or assessment about whether a child / 

vulnerable adult is in need of protection or services  

• Consideration by an employer of disciplinary action  

The Safeguarding Manager and Designated Senior Manager should consider first whether further 

details are needed and whether there is evidence or information that establishes that the 

allegation is false or unfounded.  Care should be taken to ensure that the child / vulnerable adult 

is not confused as to dates, times, locations or identity of the member of staff. 

If the allegation is not demonstrably false and meets the criteria as in section 2, the Safeguarding 

Manager, in consultation with the referrer, should consider the need for a Strategy Meeting.  

Reasons for not convening a Strategy Meeting should be recorded.  

The Designated Senior Manager and the Safeguarding Manager should agree how and when the 

member of staff is informed of the allegation.  Consideration must be given to informing the 

parent/carer at the earliest opportunity.  The Safeguarding Manager and Designated Senior 

Manager should agree what information they are given to ensure that the disciplinary or 

investigative processes are not impeded. 

      41 
Tudalen 132



Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding 
Children and Adults 

 

 

The Police must be consulted about any case in which a criminal offence may have been 

committed.  If the threshold for Significant Harm is not reached, but a Police investigation might 

be needed, the Safeguarding Manager should immediately inform the police and consider the 

need for a Strategy Discussion/Meeting. 

The Regulatory Authority should be informed of any allegation or concern made against a 

member of staff in any day care establishment for children under 8, a registered childminder, a 

foster carer, prospective adopter, or member of staff in a residential care facility.  They should 

also be invited to take part in any subsequent Strategy Discussion/Meeting. 

In circumstances where there remains disagreement between the referring agency and the 

Safeguarding Manager the case should be referred immediately to the Head of Social Services for 

Children for a decision or if an adult Head of Adult and Business Services.  

6. Strategy Meeting 

If the criteria are met for further investigation, a Strategy Meeting must be arranged within 48 

hours where at all possible, given capacity issues for chairs and attendees.  The reason for delays 

should be clearly recorded in the minutes.  The Strategy Meeting will be convened by the 

Safeguarding Unit and chaired by the Safeguarding Manager or in their absence, a senior 

manager from Children’s / Adult’s Social Care.  A record will be made of the meeting and 

decisions will be made available to the child/parents, vulnerable adult / representative and the 

alleged perpetrator at the conclusion of the investigation.  This information will also be shared 

with regulating bodies.  The following should be considered to attend the Strategy Meeting: 

• Safeguarding Manager (Chair) 

• Service Manager for Intake and Assessment and or designated investigating officer 

• Relevant social worker and his/her manager (if an open case) 

• Detective sergeant (FPU)  

• Designated Senior Manager for the employer concerned 

• Senior Nurse (Child / Adult Protection) 

• Education representative 

• Human Resources representative 

• Legal adviser where appropriate 

• Senior representative of the employment agency, church or voluntary organisation 

if applicable 

• Manager and family placement worker from the fostering service provider (including 

independent foster services) when an allegation is made against a foster carer  

• Manager from the residential service when an allegation is made against a residential 

worker 

• A representative of the Regulatory Authority where applicable 

• Consultant  Paediatrician 

• Where a child / adult is placed or resident in the area of another authority, 

representative(s) of relevant agencies in that area 

• Complaints Officer if the concern has arisen from a complaint 

• Children and Family Court Advisory and Support Service when involved (CAFCASS)  

42 

 
Tudalen 133



Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding 
Children and Adults 

 

 

• Health representative 

• A representative from the Social Services for Adults Safeguarding Unit (where 

appropriate) 

• CSSIW (where the concern is about a foster carer, childminder or care provider) 

The representative must be at a level of sufficient authority to speak on behalf of their 

organization and ensure that the organisation acts in accordance with the recommendations of 

the meeting. 

Where the representative of an organisation is implicated through an accusation of collusion or 

failure to respond to previous complaints, it is inappropriate for him/her to attend the Strategy 

Meeting. 

The Strategy Meeting must: 

• Decide whether there should be a Section 47 Enquiry and/or Police investigation and 

consider the implications 

• Consider the current allegation in the context of any previous allegations or concerns  

• Where appropriate, take account of any entitlement by staff to use reasonable force to 

control or restrain children, e.g.  Section 550a Education Act 1996 in respect of teachers 

and authorized staff 

• Consider whether a complex abuse investigation is applicable  

• Plan enquiries if needed, allocate tasks and set time-scales  

• Decide what information can be shared, with whom, when and how. 

• Consider whether there is a need to convene an initial child / adult protection conference 

if there are concerns about the Professional’s behaviour towards their own children. 

 

 The Strategy Meeting must also: 

• Ascertain whether the member of staff has contact with children / vulnerable adults 

in any other setting. 

• Ensure that arrangements are made to protect the child / children / adult involved and 

any other children / vulnerable adults affected, including taking emergency action 

where needed 

• Examine whether relevant information that may exist in parallel processes is required 

and relevant–such as a finding of fact within care proceedings. 

• Ensure that all children / vulnerable adults who may be affected, directly or 

indirectly, are identified and considered and provided with support. This would 

include children / vulnerable adults within the member of staff's own family. 

• Consider what support should be provided to the member of staff and others who 

may be affected. Also consider by whom and how this should be provided. 

• Ensure that investigations are sufficiently independent  

• Make recommendations where appropriate regarding suspension, or alternatives to 

suspension 

• Identify a lead contact Manager within each agency who will be responsible for co-

ordinating the investigation. 

43 Tudalen 134



Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding 
Children and Adults 

 

 

• Agree timescales for reviewing investigations and monitoring progress  

• Consider issues for the attention of senior management e.g. media interest, 

        resource implications 

• Consider reports for consideration of barring 

• Consider notifying the Chief Executive/Senior Officer of the employing 

agency  

• Consider whether any parallel disciplinary process can take place and 

agree protocols for sharing information 

• Consider whether Children / Adult Safeguarding Procedures need to be followed.   

• Consider what steps need to be taken in relation to establishments where it is felt that 

abuse has pervaded the whole staffing group with the involvement and collusion of 

managers. 

• Where appropriate consider the wider implications for the organisation e.g .policy and 

procedures and staff training deficits. 

All Strategy Meetings should be recorded and minutes circulated within 5 working days of the 

Strategy Meeting. 

When requests for copies of minutes from Part 4 meetings are made by the subject of the 

meeting advice should be sought from the legal department in all cases as decisions need to 

be made on a case by case basis and clearly recorded. 

7. Conduct of Enquiry 

Once a decision has been made at the first Strategy Meeting, to initiate an enquiry, the member 

of staff must be contacted and told the nature of the allegation, how the enquiries will be 

conducted and his/her co-operation sought ,unless this prejudices any aspect of the 

investigation, e.g. criminal enquiries. The meeting will agree how this will be done. 

The enquiry should take into account any signs or patterns, which could suggest the abuse may 

be more widespread than it appears and whether it involves other perpetrators or institutions. 

During the course of the enquiries, the Strategy Meeting Chair must be provided with regular 

progress reports from the investigating officers on a minimum 4 weekly basis. 

Any investigation must be conducted in accordance with the All Wales Child Protection 

Procedures. 

If the child, young person or vulnerable adult needs to be formally interviewed, the interview 

must take place in accordance with the Joint Children's Social Care and Police Protocol on 

Investigating Child Abuse involving only trained staff and video equipment or the adult 

equivalent. 

If a Police investigation is to be conducted, the Police should set a date for reviewing its progress 

and consulting the Crown Prosecution Service about continuing or closing the investigation or  

      44 

Tudalen 135



Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding 
Children and Adults 

 

 

charging the individual.  Wherever possible, this should be no later than 4 weeks after the 

Strategy Meeting. 

The evidence gathered in the investigation, including written material, audio or video recordings 

with the child and other relevant people, may be referred to in all strands of the investigation 

(Section 47 Enquiry, criminal investigation, complaint investigation and disciplinary procedures) 

although a Court Order may be required for evidence to be released.  The evidence will remain 

the possession of the investigating agencies in accordance with the Joint Social Care and Police 

Protocol on Investigating Child Abuse.    

Decisions regarding the disclosure of such evidence must be considered carefully in   conjunction 

with the relevant Human Resources procedures. 

8. Second and Subsequent strategy Meetings 

In addition to the issues addressed at the first Strategy Meeting, subsequent meetings should be 

held to review  

• Progress and results of enquiries 

• Therapeutic and support needs of the child or children / vulnerable adult(s) 

• Support needs of the child’s parents/carers, the worker, carer or volunteer 

 

9. Outcome Strategy Meeting 

The existing guidance highlights the duty of this meeting to decide on the balance of 

probabilities as to whether the concerns are substantiated.  This discussion would normally 

precede any decision by the employer to invoke disciplinary procedures. 

All the members of the Initial Strategy Meeting will need to attend.  Additional relevant persons 

may be invited to attend by agreement with the Chair.  This may include, where appropriate, 

contracts managers. 

The alleged perpetrator or representative and the alleged victim and parents will not be 

permitted to attend. 

The meeting is responsible for considering the following issues: 

• Results of the Section 47 enquiry / POVA enquiry – Is the allegation substantiated, 

unsubstantiated, inconclusive, unfounded or false? 

• Are there any outstanding concerns which require any Police/Children’s / Adult’s Services 

procedures? 

• Are there any outstanding protection or support issues for the alleged victim? 

• Are there any outstanding protection issues for other potential victims? 

• Are there any outstanding disciplinary issues? 

45 
Tudalen 136



Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding 
Children and Adults 

 

 

• Are there any other children / vulnerable adults with whom the alleged perpetrator has a 

professional relationship? 

• Have all protection issues for the children / vulnerable adults of the alleged perpetrator 

been addressed? 

• The requirement for notification to the Independent Safeguarding Authority. 

• The identification of the persons responsible for informing the child/parent/carers and the 

alleged perpetrator of the outcome 

• Whether the matter should be referred to the Fostering or Adoption Panels, Welsh 

Government Independent Investigation Service for Schools (SERVOCA), CSSIW or CAFCASS 

Where the concerns are substantiated and individuals lose their position as a result of concerns, 

a referral should be made to the ISA (see section 11) and any other bodies nominated by the 

guidance and procedures. The employer responsible for informing such bodies or undertaking 

internal disciplinary action must inform the Safeguarding Manager in writing that such actions 

have been undertaken. 

10. Substantiated Concerns 

Where abuse or harm is confirmed on the balance of probability, the parents and child / 

vulnerable adult and /or representative must be informed – who should do this will be 

confirmed at the outcome meeting. The Chair will write to the alleged perpetrator informing 

them of the outcome of the investigations.  

A disciplinary hearing should then be arranged by the employer within the relevant disciplinary 

code. 

Should the need for a Child Protection / Adult Protection Conference have been identified, this 

will be organised by the relevant team and the Safeguarding Unit. 

 

11. Informing the Independent Safeguarding Authority (ISA) 

Where the concerns are substantiated, relevant information should be passed to the ISA by the 

relevant Senior Manager where the person is employed.  Organisations must confirm in writing 

to the Safeguarding Manager that this has  been completed. 

12. Unsubstantiated Allegations 

Where, following initial enquiries, it is concluded that there is insufficient evidence to determine 

whether the allegation is substantiated, or the allegation is not substantiated, the relevant 

Designated Senior Manager/Employer will consider what if any, further action should be taken. 

The member of staff/volunteer with be informed of the outcome in writing by the Chair. 

Consideration must be given to any support the member of staff may need, particularly if s/he is 

returning to his/her post following suspension. 

       46 Tudalen 137



Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding 
Children and Adults 

 

 

The child / vulnerable adult and his/her parents/carers must be informed of the outcome. Who 

will do this will be identified at the Outcome meeting. 

 

13. Unfounded or False Allegations 

If an allegation is determined to be unfounded the employer, in consultation with the 

Safeguarding Manager, should refer the matter to Children / Adult Social Care to determine 

whether the child / vulnerable adult is in need of services and/or might have been abused by 

someone else. 

 

14. Allegations against staff in their personal lives 

If an allegation or concern arises about the conduct of a member of staff outside of his/her work 

with children / vulnerable adults and this may present a risk to children / vulnerable adults for 

whom the member of staff is responsible, the general principles outlined in these procedures 

will still apply. 

In some cases, al allegation of abuse against someone closely associated with a member of staff, 

e.g. partner, member of the family or other household member, may present a risk to a child / 

children / vulnerable adults for whom the member of staff is responsible. In these circumstances 

the meeting should consider: 

• The ability and/or willingness of the member of staff to adequately protect 

• Whether measures need to be put in place to ensure their protection 

• Whether the role of the member of staff is compromised. 

15. Disciplinary Process 

The meeting will consider whether disciplinary action is appropriate in all cases where: 

• No further action is required under Child / Adult Protection Procedures 

• The employer or Safeguarding Manager is informed by Police or the CPS that a criminal 

investigation and any subsequent trial is complete or that an investigation is to be closed 

without charge or a prosecution discontinued. 

The discussions should consider any potential misconduct or gross misconduct on the part of 

the member of staff and take into account: 

• Information provided by the police and /or social care 

• The result of any investigation or trial 

• The different standard of proof in disciplinary and criminal proceedings 

 Where the initial evaluation decides that the allegation does not involve a possible criminal 

offence it will be dealt with by the employer who should institute appropriate action within 3 

        47 
Tudalen 138



Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding 
Children and Adults 

 

 

working days. 

 If disciplinary action is required, and further investigation is not required, the disciplinary hearing 

should be held within 15 working days. 

 Where further investigation is required by the employer the aim of the investigation is to obtain, 

as far as possible, a fair, balanced and accurate record in order to consider the appropriateness of 

disciplinary action and/or the individuals suitability to work with children / vulnerable adults. Its 

purpose is not to prove or disprove the allegation. 

 The Safeguarding Manager should be informed of the outcome of disciplinary action, including 

any training plan with timescales. 

16. Sharing information for Disciplinary Purposes 

Wherever possible, the Police and Children / Adult Social Care should during the course of their 

investigations obtain consent to provide the employer and or the Regulatory Authority with 

evidence for disciplinary purposes. If the police or the CPS decide not to pursue a charge, or 

decide to administer a caution, or the person is acquitted, the Police should pass relevant 

information to the employer without delay. 

If the person is convicted, the Police should inform the employer straight away so that 

appropriate action can be taken. 

 

17. Record Keeping 

Employers should keep a clear and comprehensive summary of the case record on a person’s 

confidential personnel file and give a copy to the individual.  

The record should include details of what the allegation was, how the allegation was followed up 

and resolved, the decisions reached and the action taken.  

The record will provide accurate information for any future reference and provide clarification if 

a future CRB disclosure reveals an allegation that did result in a prosecution or conviction.  This 

record will prevent unnecessary re-investigation if the allegation should resurface. 

Minutes of Strategy Meetings will be held at the Children’s Safeguarding Unit / Adult 

Safeguarding Unit as appropriate. 

 
 

 

 

. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

48 

Tudalen 139



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 8 
 

Terms of Reference Corporate Panel for Safeguarding 
Children and Adults 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

       49 

 

Tudalen 140



Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding Children and 
Adults – Draft Version 

 

 

       51 

 
TERMS OF REFERENCE CORPORATE PANEL: SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN AND ADULTS 

 

 

 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 

1.1.      Section 28 of the Children Act 2004 places a duty on local authorities to make 

arrangements to ensure that they fulfil their functions in a way which considers the 

need to safeguard and promote the welfare of children. 
 

1.2.      The following reflects the ‘Statutory Guidelines on the Functions and 

Accountability of Directors of Social Services’ [published by the Welsh Assembly 

Government – June 2009]. Although every member of staff has a responsibility to 

safeguard and promote the welfare of children, it is the Statutory Director of Social 

Services who remains the senior officer in the council with full and final 

accountability for safeguarding children. 
 

1.3.      The following does not change the Constitution of Denbighshire Council.   The 

intention is to reinforce existing reporting arrangements. 
 

2.   TERMS OF REFERENCE OF THE D E N B I G H S H I R E  C O U N C I L  C O R P O R A T E  

P A N E L  F O R  S A F E G U A R D I N G  C H I L D R E N  A N D  A D U L T S  
 
2.1.      The aim of the Panel is to ensure that robust arrangements for the safety of 

children and adults are in place within Denbighshire Council. 
 

2.2. The Panel will act on a Strategic level in order to: 

 
� Assure relevant Lead Members (Lead Member for S o c i a l  C a r e  a n d  

C h i l d r e n ’ s  S e r v i c e s  and Lead Member for Education) that the 
Council’s procedures are robust where matters of safety of children and 
adults are concerned; 

� Bring together interdepartmental work in the safety field and ensure 
effective corporate communication; 

� Support the functions and duties of the Statutory Director within the Council; 

� Resolve any possible barriers to having effective and successful procedures in 

place; 

� Receive and consider information about trends in relation to allegations 
of professional abuse, and adopt action plans to response should the needs 
arise; 

� Receive  and  challenge  information  about  the  progress  against  

commissioned  work programmes  

� Consider and understand the implications of Serious Case Reviews and 

ensure that the 
Council responds effectively to recommendations within 

such reviews; 

� Accept and challenge the Annual Report of the Statutory Director; 

� Approve the Safeguarding Policy and Guidelines for every Service within the 

Council. 

 
3. CHAIRING 

 

3.1. Cabinet member 
 

4. FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS 
 

Tudalen 141



Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding Children and 
Adults – Draft Version 

 

 

       51 

4.1. Meetings every quarter 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 142



Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding Children and 
Adults – Draft Version 

 

 

       51 

 
5. GOVERNANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

 

5.1.      The Corporate Panel is accountable to Denbighshire Council Cabinet.  The Chair 

has the right to refer matters to the Cabinet if not satisfied. 
 

5.2    Business Management [i.e. creating a work programme, meeting agendas, 

secretariat, central communication point, organising additional professional 

advice if needed] through the function of the Corporate Director. 
 

6. MEMBERSHIP 
 

 

Name Title 

Cllr Bobby Feeley Lead Member, Social Care and Children’s Services 

Clle Eryl Williams Lead Member, Education 

Sally Ellis Director of Social Services 

Hywyn Williams Lead Member, Children and Young People 

Karen Evans Chief Education Officer 

Leighton Rees Head of Children and Family Services 

Phil Gilroy Head of Adult and Business Services 

Designated Managers 1 from each service 

Tudalen 143



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 9 
 

Measuring Impact and Monitoring 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

Tudalen 144



Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding 
Children and Adults 

 

 

 
MEASURING IMPACT AND MONITORING 

 

 

 

1. In order to ensure that the procedures contained in the corporate safeguarding 
policy are fully complied with across the Council, and that their implementation 
secures a positive effect on the lives of children, young people and adults, it is vital 
to ensure that the following steps happen: 

 
� It  is  essential  that  the  policy  is  communicated  effectively  to  all  

members  of  staff, councillors, volunteers, children, parents, carers and 
anyone else who is affected; 

� There are responsibilities for the Designated Safeguarding Managers in the 
Departments to ensure that all their staff are familiar with the policy and 
supplementary procedures; 

� Every Department in the Council has a responsibility to develop a 

safeguarding policy that is specific to their own service, highlighting how 

their internal guidelines will comply with the corporate policy and taking into 

consideration the National Guidelines in the field of child protection and the 

protection of vulnerable adults; 

� There are individual responsibilities on all members of staff, councillors and 

volunteers to advocate and promote the policy to establishments or 

partners, and to ensure that the Council’s values and principles in the 

safeguarding field are communicated clearly to children, their parents, 

carers and to the public; 

� Ensure  that  every  Department  develops  quality assurance processes  

in  order  to  examine compliance with the policy and procedures regularly 

and report to the Strategic Panel for Safeguarding Children and Adults on 

any successes, failures or improvement programmes within their 

departments; 

� Ensure that information on every allegation of professional abuse is 

reported to the Corporate Panel for Safeguarding Children and Adults as 

well as to the Local Safeguarding Children Board; 

� Ensure that every department reflects safeguarding as a main priority in 
their individual business plans, and ensure that every activity takes 
safeguarding issues into account as a matter of procedure; 

� Ensure that every department develops local indicators in the 
safeguarding field, and reports on a quarterly basis to the corporate 
performance monitoring procedure; 

� Secure feedback from the Council’s staff with regard to activity in the 
safeguarding field and how their line managers support them to undertake 
these duties; 

� Ensure through participation and engagement events that children, 
young people and adults feel safe in every aspect of their lives and that 
the Council’s activities in the safeguarding field contribute to their feeling of 
being safe; 

� Ensure  that  self assessment takes  place  regularly  in  schools  in order  to  
improve safeguarding practice at all schools; 

� Ensure that a composite annual review is submitted to the Local 

Safeguarding Children 
Board on the Council’s activity in the safeguarding field; 

� Ensure that a training programme is available at every level which will be 
filtered to every member of staff in accordance with their needs, and also 
ensure that refresher training takes place regularly; 

� Ensure that an annual report is submitted to the Corporate Executive Team 
which will provide information on any safeguarding concerns, activity, 
feedback from serious case review and progress against the action plan; 

� Ensure that any service commissioned by or on behalf of the Council 

Tudalen 145



Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding 
Children and Adults 

 

 

complies fully with the safeguarding expectations set in the agreement with 

the partners, and that it is monitored regularly. 
 

 

 

 

 

      52 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 146



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Corporate Safeguarding Policy and Panel  

September 2013 
 
 

Equality Impact Assessment 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 147



 

1 

Corporate Safeguarding Policy and Panel 
 

Contact: 
 

Sally Ellis, Modernisation and Wellbeing 

Updated: September 2013 
 
  

 
1. What type of proposal / decision is being assessed? 
 

A new or revised policy 

 
 

2. What is the purpose of this proposal / decision, and what 
change (to staff or the community) will occur as a result of its 
implementation? 

 

To ensure the Council takes a consistent approach to the implementation of 
safeguarding arrangements across all services and that appropriate safeguarding 
procedures are in place reflecting the circumstances of every service 

 

3. Does this proposal / decision require an equality impact 
assessment?  If no, please explain why. 

 Please note: if the proposal will have an impact on people (staff or the 
community) then an equality impact assessment must be undertaken 

 

Yes <If no, briefly summarise the reasons for this decision here, 
and skip ahead to the declaration at the end> 

 
 

4. Please provide a summary of the steps taken, and the 
information used, to carry out this assessment, including any 
engagement undertaken 
(Please refer to section 1 in the toolkit for guidance) 

 

1) Discussion of issues arising from proposed olicy at SSEMT (Social Services 
and Education Management Team), at CET and SLT 
2) Consideration of groups typically likely to be impacted by the proposed policy 
3) Identification of those most likely to be impacted 
4) Checking of policy area and issues against the Equality Impact Assessment 
Toolkit 

 
 

5. Will this proposal / decision have a positive impact on any of 
the protected characteristics (age; disability; gender-
reassignment; marriage and civil partnership; pregnancy and 
maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and sexual orientation)? 

Tudalen 148



 

2 

(Please refer to section 1 in the toolkit for a description of the protected 
characteristics) 

 

The proposal is most likely to have positive impact on vulnerable older people and 
those with disabilities as it will lead to increased awareness of safeguarding 
issues across the council and these are two groups where safeguarding issues do 
arise 

 
 

6. Will this proposal / decision have a disproportionate negative 
impact on any of the protected characteristics (age; disability; 
gender-reassignment; marriage and civil partnership; 
pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and 
sexual orientation)? 

 

None 

 

7. Has the proposal / decision been amended to eliminate or 
reduce any potential disproportionate negative impact?  If no, 
please explain why. 

 

No No negative impacts are expected on any groups with 
protected characteristics 

 

8. Have you identified any further actions to address and / or 
monitor any potential negative impact(s)? 

 
<Please Select> <If yes please complete the table below. If no, please explain 

here> 

 

Action(s) Owner By when? 

<Please describe> <Enter Name> <DD.MM.YY> 

<Please describe> <Enter Name> <DD.MM.YY> 

<Please describe> <Enter Name> <DD.MM.YY> 

<Please describe> <Enter Name> <DD.MM.YY> 

<Unrestrict editing to insert additional rows> <Enter Name> <DD.MM.YY> 

 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
9. Declaration 
 
Every reasonable effort has been made to eliminate or reduce any potential 
disproportionate impact on people sharing protected characteristics. The actual impact 
of the proposal / decision will be reviewed at the appropriate stage. 
 

Review Date: 30.09.2013 
 

Name of Lead Officer for Equality Impact Assessment Date 

Tudalen 149



 

3 

<Sally Ellis 21.09.13 
 
 

Please note you will be required to publish the outcome of the equality impact 
assessment if you identify a substantial likely impact. 

Tudalen 150



Adroddiad i’r:   Pwyllgor Llywodraethu Corfforaethol 
 
Dyddiad y cyfarfod:  4 Medi 2013 
 
Awdur yr adroddiad: Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Archwilio Mewnol 
 
Teitl:  Cynllun Gweithredu Fframwaith Llywodraethu 

Corfforaethol Drafft 
 

 
1. Am beth mae’r adroddiad yn sôn?  

 Mae’r adroddiad hwn yn darparu cynllun gweithredu newydd i’r 
Pwyllgor ac yn deillio o adolygiad fframwaith llywodraethu’r Cyngor a’r 
Datganiad Llywodraethu Blynyddol (DLlB) 2012/13. 

2. Beth yw’r rheswm dros lunio’r adroddiad hwn?  

 Bydd y Pwyllgor Llywodraethu Corfforaethol yn monitro cynllun 
Gweithredu’r Fframwaith Llywodraethu Corfforaethol yn rheolaidd fel 
rhan o drefniadau llywodraethu cyffredinol y Cyngor i sicrhau bod y 
Cyngor yn gweithredu’r gwelliannau angenrheidiol yn effeithiol. 

3. Beth yw’r Argymhellion? 

Bod y Pwyllgor yn ystyried ac yn rhoi sylwadau ar y Cynllun 
Gweithredu Fframwaith Llywodraethu Corfforaethol drafft ac a oes 
angen unrhyw wybodaeth bellach am unrhyw faes a ymdrinnir gan y 
Cynllun Gweithredu. 

4. Cefndir 

3.1. Mae Fframwaith Llywodraethu Corfforaethol y Cyngor yn cynnwys 
asesiad blynyddol o drefniadau llywodraethu’r Cyngor a Datganiad 
Llywodraethu Blynyddol sy’n amlygu unrhyw wendid llywodraethu 
sylweddol. Mae’r Fframwaith hefyd yn amlygu meysydd pellach, sydd, 
er nad ydynt yn wendidau sylweddol, angen gwelliannau o hyd.  

3.2. Mae Grŵp Llywodraethu’r Cyngor yn rheoli’r broses Fframwaith 
Llywodraethu Corfforaethol ac yn datblygu’r Datganiad Llywodraethu 
Blynyddol yn barhaus yn ystod y flwyddyn ariannol. Mae’r Grŵp hwn yn 
cynnwys: 

• Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Llywodraethu Corfforaethol 

• Is-gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Llywodraethu Corfforaethol 

• Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd 

• Pennaeth Cynllunio Busnes a Pherfformiad 

• Pennaeth Cyllid ac Asedau 

• Pennaeth Archwilio Mewnol 

Eitem Agenda 10

Tudalen 151



3.3 Mae’r Grŵp Llywodraethu wedi datblygu’r Cynllun Gweithredu drafft yn 
Atodiad 1. Ar hyn o bryd, amlinelliad o gynllun gweithredu ydyw gyda sawl 
cyfrifoldeb, amserlen a diweddariad cynnydd eto i’w cwblhau. Caiff y rhain eu 
hychwanegu cyn yr adroddiad diweddaru nesaf i’r Pwyllgor hwn, a chaiff 
sylw’n rheolaidd. 

Tudalen 152



 
Appendix 1 - Corporate Governance Framework Action Plan 

Improvement Area from AGS Responsibility Timescale Progress 
RAG 
Status 

Significant Governance Issues form the Annual Governance Statement 2012/13 

Strategic HR needs to implement improvements 
following an adverse Internal Audit report. 

Head of Strategic HR December 
2013 

Head of Strategic HR & Head of Internal Audit provided 
separate progress report to Corporate Governance 
Committee 4 September 2013 

Amber 

We need to improve our information governance, 
management of information assets and the way 
we train employees and elected members in Data 
Protection and Freedom of Information 
requirements. 

Head of Business 
Planning & Performance 

April 2014 Actions include: 

• Review Data Protection training. 

• Publish Information Risk Policy. 

• Progress roll out of EDRMS Corporate Filing 
programme. 

Amber 

Governance Principle 1 - Focusing on the purpose of the Council and on outcomes for the community and creating and implementing our medium and 
long term vision 

We still have work to do to develop how we will 
deliver some of our corporate priorities 

Head of Business 
Planning & Performance 

  
Amber 

We need to improve co-ordination of the various 
self-assessments that we carry out. 

Head of Business 
Planning & Performance 

  
 

Within our financial planning, we need to develop 
a more strategic approach to the efficiency 
programme for the difficult years ahead. 

Head of Finance & 
Assets 

  
Amber 

We are developing new service standards to 
improve customer service further. 

Head of Customers & 
Education Support 

 Will be subject to Internal Audit review during 2013/14 
Amber 

We still have work to do to improve how we 
manage customer complaints. 

Head of Customers & 
Education Support 

 Will be subject to Internal Audit review during 2013/14 
 

The configuration of Denbighshire’s strategic 
partnerships is not yet right and requires further 
work. 

Head of Business 
Planning & Performance 

  
 

We need to re-launch our partnership framework 
to make sure that everyone is aware of it and 
uses it. 

Head of Business 
Planning & Performance 

  
 

T
udalen 153



Improvement Area from AGS Responsibility Timescale Progress 
RAG 
Status 

We are improving our procurement strategy, 
systems and processes to achieve more financial 
savings. 

Head of Finance & 
Assets 

  
Amber 

We are strengthening the service performance 
challenge process for 2013. 

n/a n/a New process now in place and service challenges 
commenced 

Green 

We will continue our work to fully embed 
programme and project management into our 
culture. 

Head of Business 
Planning & Performance 

  
Amber 

Governance Principle 2 - Members and officers working together to achieve a common purpose with clearly defined functions and roles 

We are developing a performance management 
framework for elected members. 

Cabinet Lead Member 
for Modernising & 
Performance 

  
Amber 

While we now have a partnership framework, we 
need to make sure that all current partnerships 
meet its requirements. 

Head of Business 
Planning & Performance 

  
 

We need to review the role of the S151 Officer to 
ensure that it meets recommended standards and 
good practice. 

Head of Internal Audit 
Services 

March 2014 Internal Audit review being prepared to measure S151 
role against CIPFA guidance. Likely to be completed 
during autumn 

Amber 

Governance Principle 3 - Promoting values for the authority and demonstrating the values of good governance through upholding high standards of 
conduct and behaviour 

We need to update our anti-fraud and corruption 
policy. 

Head of Legal & 
Democratic Services 

  
Amber 

We are updating our Financial Regulations. Head of Finance & 
Assets 

  
Amber 

We are undertaking a self-assessment to ensure 
that the Corporate Governance Committee 
operates effectively as an audit committee. 

Head of Internal Audit 
Services 

December 
2013 

Assessment postponed from July 2013 to September 
2013 Committee meeting. Action plan will be developed 
from outcome by December 2013. 

Amber 

Governance Principle 4 - Taking informed and transparent decisions, which are subject to effective scrutiny and managing risk 

We need to promote our scrutiny function among 
our stakeholders and provide further training for 
elected members. We will also implement any 
improvements arising from a recent peer review. 

Head of Legal & 
Democratic Services 

  

 

T
udalen 154



Improvement Area from AGS Responsibility Timescale Progress 
RAG 
Status 

Our Corporate Self-assessment recognised some 
improvements needed in risk management and 
we will implement these and any additional issues 
arising from the recent Internal Audit review. 

Head of Business 
Planning & Performance 

  

 

We will update Internal Audit’s Charter and carry 
out a self-assessment of the service to ensure 
that it complies with the new Public Service 
Internal Audit Standards. 

Head of Internal Audit 
Services 

March 2014 Internal Audit Charter updated and approved by 
Corporate Governance Committee. Self-assessment 
planned for later in 2013. 

Amber 

We are strengthening our research and 
intelligence functions to be more proactive in the 
way that we consider the external environment to 
support decision-making and strategic planning. 

Head of Business 
Planning & Performance 

  

Amber 

We are updating our Whistleblowing policy. Head of Legal & 
Democratic Services 

  
Amber 

Governance Principle 5 - Developing the capacity and capability of members and officers to be effective 

We need to do more to improve the flexibility of 
our workforce to enable us to use them in the 
areas of greatest need. 

   
 

We are developing a new training programme for 
elected members based on a needs assessment. 

Cabinet Lead Member 
for Modernising & 
Performance 

  
Amber 

There is still work to do to ensure that officer 
performance appraisals are completed at least 
once a year. 

   
Amber 

Governance Principle 6 - Engaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure robust public accountability 

We need to make sure that our employees are 
fully aware of the requirements of equalities 
legislation. 

Head of Business 
Planning & Performance 

 Respect Booklet launched. 
 
Will be subject to Internal Audit review in January 2014. 

Amber 

The Consultation & Engagement Strategy needs 
to become embedded in our service delivery. 

   
 

We will roll out the Denbighshire Volunteering 
Strategy. 

   
 

T
udalen 155



Improvement Area from AGS Responsibility Timescale Progress 
RAG 
Status 

We need to further improve the way we engage 
with business groups. 

   
 

 

T
udalen 156



Adroddiad i’r:   Pwyllgor Llywodraethu Corfforaethol 
 
Dyddiad y cyfarfod:  4 Medi 2013 
 
Awdur yr adroddiad: Pennaeth AD Strategol / Pennaeth 

Gwasanaethau Archwilio Mewnol 
 
Teitl: Adroddiad Archwilio Mewnol AD Strategol - 

Diweddariad 
 

 
1. Am beth mae’r adroddiad yn sôn?  

Mae’r adroddiad ar y cyd hwn yn darparu diweddariad ar gynnydd o 
fewn AD strategol i’r Pwyllgor, ynghylch y cynllun gweithredu a 
gynhwyswyd yn yr adroddiad Archwilio Mewnol o Hydref 2012. 

2. Beth yw’r rheswm dros lunio’r adroddiad hwn?  

 Mae’r Pwyllgor Llywodraethu Corfforaethol wedi bod yn monitro 
cynnydd ar weithredu’r camau gwelliant roedd AD Strategol wedi’u nodi 
o ganlyniad i’r adolygiad Archwilio Mewnol. Gofynnodd y Pwyllgor am 
ddiweddariad pellach yn y cyfarfod hwn. 

3. Beth yw’r Argymhellion? 

 Bod y Pwyllgor yn cydnabod y cynnydd a wnaed ac yn cytuno: 

a) a ydyw’n cael sicrwydd bod AD Strategol yn gwneud digon o 
welliannau gwasanaeth;  

b) a oes angen adroddiad cynnydd pellach, ac os felly, pryd. 

4. Cefndir 

4.1 Adolygodd Archwilio Mewnol feysydd amrywiol o AD Strategol yn ystod 
2012/13, gan gyflwyno ei adroddiad yn Hydref 2012. Cododd y cynllun 
gweithredu yn yr adroddiad 11 o faterion, y nododd AD Strategol 45 
cam gyda therfynau amser amrywiol ar gyfer eu gweithredu. 

4.2 Pan gymerodd Archwilio Mewnol gamau dilynol i’r cynllun gweithredu 
yn Chwefror 2013, canfuwyd, er bod rhywfaint o gynnydd wedi’i wneud, 
bod lefel y cynnydd yn “siomedig o araf”, felly rhoddwyd gwybod i’r 
Pwyllgor hwn a ofynnodd i AD Strategol adrodd ynghylch y cynnydd 
diweddaraf yng Ngorffennaf 2013. 

4.3 Yn y cyfarfod hwn, rhoddodd AD Strategol wybod am gynnydd 
sylweddol, ond awgrymodd y Pennaeth Archwilio Mewnol, er bod 
camau penodol a ganfuwyd yn y cynllun gweithredu wedi’u cwblhau, 
nid oedd modd mesur effeithiolrwydd y camau hyn i fynd i’r afael â’r 
materion yn yr adroddiad Archwilio Mewnol eto. 

Eitem Agenda 11

Tudalen 157



4.4 Yn dilyn y cyfarfod hwnnw, fe wnaeth y ddau wasanaeth gyfarfod i 
drafod y materion a oedd yn weddill, ac fe gytunwyd i gydweithio’n 
agosach i ddarparu sicrwydd i’r Pwyllgor hwn bod gwelliannau’n cael 
eu gwneud ac yn mynd i’r afael â’r materion hyn yn effeithiol. 

4.5 Dylai’r Pwyllgor hefyd nodi bod AD Strategol yn mynd drwy gyfnod o 
newid a gwelliant sylweddol, a bod y camau a drafodwyd yn yr 
adroddiad hwn yn rhan o gynllun gweithredu gwelliant mwy sy’n cael 
rheolaeth prosiect drwy ddull rheoli prosiect y Cyngor ar Verto. 

5. Cynnydd diweddaraf 

5.1 Er mwyn eglurder, mae Atodiad 1 yn darparu tabl sy’n dangos y sefyllfa 
ddiweddaraf ar gyfer pob un o’r 45 cam a nodwyd gan AD Strategol i 
fynd i’r afael â chynllun gweithredu Archwilio Mewnol. Mae’r tabl yn 
dangos: 

• y materion i fynd i’r afael â nhw 

• y camau a nodwyd i fynd i’r afael â materion 

• diweddariad AD Strategol ar y cynnydd diweddaraf 

• sylwadau – gan gynnwys barn ynghylch a yw’r camau yn mynd i’r 
afael â’r mater 

5.1 Yn gyffredinol, mae AD Strategol wedi gwneud cynnydd sylweddol i 
fynd i’r afael â’r materion a godwyd gan Archwilio Mewnol. Er bod bron 
i bob cam rŵan wedi’u gweithredu, mewn rhai achosion bydd yn 
cymryd amser i asesu a yw’r rhain wedi bod yn gwbl effeithiol ac mae 
rhywfaint o lwyddiant yn dibynnu ar gydymffurfiad â gwasanaethau 
eraill. 

5.2 I ddarparu sicrwydd ychwanegol i aelodau etholedig a rheolwyr, bydd 
Archwilio Mewnol yn cynnal adolygiad pellach o brosiect gwella AD 
Strategol yn ystod Ebrill 2014, a fydd yn cynnwys asesiad o 
effeithiolrwydd rhai o’r camau tymor hirach a nodwyd yn Atodiad 1. Yn 
arbennig, bydd yr adolygiad yn edrych ar: 

• a yw cywirdeb data gweithwyr wedi gwella;  

• gweithredu prosesau a threfnau newydd yn llwyddiannus fel rhan o 
adolygiadau proses Meddwl trwy Systemau; 

• cydymffurfiad â pholisïau a threfnau AD o fewn gwasanaethau; 

• cywirdeb data a anfonwyd at yr Adran Gyflogau gan AD; 

• effeithiolrwydd Desg Gymorth Civica i wella gwasanaeth cwsmer;  

• gweithredu’r fframwaith recriwtio newydd yn llwyddiannus;  

• datblygu cynlluniau olyniaeth ar gyfer swyddi allweddol mewn 
gwasanaethau.  

 

Tudalen 158



 
Appendix 1 - Strategic HR Action Plan Progress 

 
Issue from Internal Audit 

Report 
Strategic HR Action 

Identified 
Action 

No. 
Strategic HR Progress Update Comments 

Data held on the Trent 
system is not always 
accurate, as it is not always 
updated promptly, e.g. 
vacant posts are not always 
closed off. Despite previous 
work undertaken, e.g. data 
quality monitoring, there is a 
risk of poor data quality, 
objectives not being met, 
inaccurate reporting, and 
ineffective decision-making. 

We are currently undertaking 
a data cleansing exercise to 
ensure that all employee 
data is correct. This requires 
printing out the employee 
information held on Trent and 
asking employees to verify or 
change the information. 

1 

There was a low return rate of forms from employees. In 
addition, not all employees had received a copy of the 
form detailing their employee information to check for data 
accuracy.  HR undertook a further data cleansing exercise 
during August 2013 and is also looking at building this into 
the performance appraisal process so that employees 
verify that their information is accurate. HR and Payroll 
are currently working on a paper for CET for the end of 
September 2013 that will recommend an integrated 
system for payroll and HR, which would specify data 
owners for specific information. 

Although Strategic HR 
undertook a data cleansing 
exercise, this was not fully 
successful in addressing the 
issue. 
 
However, the subsequent 
actions identified should 
hopefully address the issue of 
inaccurate data in future. 
 
Internal Audit will review the 
effectiveness of the new actions 
in April 2014, although progress 
may depend on the cycle of 
performance appraisals and 
how long an integrated 
HR/payroll system would take 
to implement if approved. 

Unclosed and open 
vacancies to be discussed as 
part of the workforce 
planning exercise being 
undertaken with services in 
October 2012. 

2 

Internal Audit confirmed this action as complete during its 
follow up review in February 2013. 

Vacancy control discussions 
to form part of monthly 
reviews with services. 

3 

Internal Audit confirmed this action as complete during its 
follow up review in February 2013. 

This will be subject to the 
Systems Thinking Review 
commencing 17/08/12. 

4 

The Head of Internal Audit facilitated a process review of 
several HR functions during August 2012. Actions were 
identified and are being addressed, with new processes 
and policies being implemented. 

T
udalen 159



Issue from Internal Audit 
Report 

Strategic HR Action 
Identified 

Action 
No. 

Strategic HR Progress Update Comments 

There is no robust 
mechanism in place to 
determine accurately the 
future number of employees 
required within the Council to 
help identify shortages and 
competency gaps. This is 
due to a lack of system 
integration that links a post 
to the budget, which results 
in HR having to interpret the 
effects of budget savings on 
posts. 

Arrangements are already in 
place for a Workforce 
Planning Exercise 
undertaken annually with 
services to facilitate services 
to determine the future 
number of employees 
required by their service. 

5 

Internal Audit confirmed this action as complete during its 
follow up review in February 2013. 

The issue is being addressed 
through workforce planning. 

Work has been undertaken 
with Finance and ICT to 
combine financial information 
with HR reports. 

6 

Internal Audit confirmed this action as complete during its 
follow up review in February 2013. 

Although the new structure 
sees HR in a supportive role, 
as opposed to a ‘policing’ 
role, there is a lack of quality 
assurance checking to 
ensure that employees and 
managers are complying 
with HR policies and 
procedures. This increases 
the risk of the Council not 
complying with relevant 
legislation and it increases 
further if HR employees and 
service managers receive 
inadequate training and are 
unclear of their 
responsibilities. 

Monitoring of Employee 
Relation cases, settlements, 
and Employee Tribunal 
claims - part of Employee 
Relation Report discussed 
with Heads of Service on a 
monthly basis. 

7 

Internal Audit confirmed this action as complete during its 
follow up review in February 2013. 

The Head of Internal Audit 
agreed a new approach to 
quality assurance with the Head 
of Strategic HR that will address 
service non-compliance during 
the Service Challenge Process 
without having a significant 
impact on HR capacity. 
 
Internal Audit will review 
effectiveness of new processes 
in April 2014. 

This will be subject to the 
Systems Thinking Review 
commencing 17/08/12. 

8 

The Head of Internal Audit facilitated a process review of 
several HR functions during August 2012. Actions were 
identified and are being addressed, with new processes 
and policies being implemented. 

Explore a quality assurance 
framework to check 
processes to ensure that 
managers are complying with 
policies and procedures. It 
will establish where the 
organisation is doing well 
and where it is not. This will 
need to be scoped out as a 
project and agreed by SLT, 
as there is currently no HR 
resource allocated to this. 

9 

Internal Audit confirmed this action as complete during its 
follow up review in July 2013. 

T
udalen 160



Issue from Internal Audit 
Report 

Strategic HR Action 
Identified 

Action 
No. 

Strategic HR Progress Update Comments 

There is an increased risk of 
inaccurate payments to 
employees, as HR does not 
always submit 
documentation to Payroll 
promptly or accurately, as 
we identified in our previous 
annual reviews of the Payroll 
system. This creates 
additional pressure on the 
Payroll team in scrutinising 
and amending forms to 
prevent inaccurate payments 
while still meeting strict 
deadlines. 

Standard Operating 
Procedures to set out clear 
deadlines for managers and 
schools on when information 
is required. 

10 

Internal Audit confirmed this action as complete during its 
follow up review in July 2013. 

Actions are being taken to 
address the accuracy of data 
submitted to Payroll. The 
meetings between HR and 
Payroll will discuss these and 
continue to monitor error rates, 
which should now decrease 
with the additional controls 
being implemented. 

There is a Business and 
Finance Manager forum, 
where SLA issues are 
discussed and we can raise 
any issues with inaccurate or 
late documentation at this 
forum. 

11 

Internal Audit confirmed this action as complete during its 
follow up review in February 2013. 

Meetings have been set up 
with the team managers and 
Payroll to discuss any issues. 12 

These were initially set up but, due to staff absences, did 
not continue. These are now scheduled between the HR 
Services Manager and the Payroll Manager up to the end 
of the financial year. The Head of Internal Audit attended 
the first meeting. 

Returns to be sent directly to 
Team Managers not HRAs. 13 

Internal Audit confirmed this action as complete during its 
follow up review in February 2013. 

Monitoring system in place to 
monitor error rates and 
ensure corrective action is 
taken. 

14 

A monitoring system is in place; however, errors are still 
occurring. Standard template letters have been developed 
that will be automatically populated from Trent and will 
address a number of errors that are being made. These 
will be in the system by early September 2013. 

This will be subject to the 
Systems Thinking Review 
commencing 17/08/12. 

15 

The Head of Internal Audit facilitated a process review of 
several HR functions during August 2012. Actions were 
identified and are being addressed, with new processes 
and policies being implemented. 

T
udalen 161



Issue from Internal Audit 
Report 

Strategic HR Action 
Identified 

Action 
No. 

Strategic HR Progress Update Comments 

Overall, from consultation 
throughout our review, we 
received negative feedback 
on the new HR service, 
particularly with HR Direct. 
For example: 

• comments on poor 
communication; 

• a lack of continuity and 
inconsistent responses; 
and 

• important HR 
documentation, such as 
job application forms, 
going missing  
 

Additionally, HR Direct does 
not have a robust 
mechanism for ensuring that 
it logs all queries, refers 
them to the most appropriate 
person for answering, and 
ensuring that HR deals with 
issues promptly. There is 
also no prompt for HR 
Assistants to pursue 
outstanding essential 
documentation, such as 
appointment references.  

Introduction of Civica Help 
Desk (CRM) 16 

Civica Help Desk Introduced While the CRM system has 
been implemented, 
development of the system is at 
an early stage, i.e. limited 
performance monitoring in 
place. Therefore, Internal Audit 
has been unable to establish 
the effectiveness of the system, 
and will review this, along with 
improvements to the HR 
Intranet pages, during its review 
in April 2014. 

Implementation of Standard 
Operating Procedures 17 

Internal Audit confirmed this action as complete during its 
follow up review in July 2013. 

Introduction of Customer 
Service Standards 18 

Internal Audit confirmed this action as complete during its 
follow up review in July 2013. 

Introduction of HR 
Competencies for all levels 19 

Internal Audit confirmed this action as complete during its 
follow up review in July 2013. 

Implementation of Web 
recruitment application, 
which will negate the need 
for paper copies 

20 

Internal Audit confirmed this action as complete during its 
follow up review in February 2013. 

Project management scoping 
will be carried out to re 
launch new HR processes 
and procedures, and we will 
revise the HR content of the 
intranet. 

21 

HR content on the Intranet needs to be revised. This is 
currently underway with a draft page ready and will be 
completed by early September 2013. 

HR team managers’ are 
quality assurance checking a 
sample of calls to HR Direct. 

22 

Internal Audit confirmed this action as complete during its 
follow up review in February 2013. 

We will prepare checklists, 
and scripts for HRAs to 
follow for the top ten queries. 

23 

This action is partly complete but still requires completion 
of the scripts and checklists relating to the HR assistants.  
This is due for completion in December 2013. 

T
udalen 162



Issue from Internal Audit 
Report 

Strategic HR Action 
Identified 

Action 
No. 

Strategic HR Progress Update Comments 

The Council’s recruitment 
and selection procedure is 
out-of-date and some 
employees have not 
received the necessary 
recruitment training prior to 
being a member of a 
recruitment panel. 
Insufficient guidance, 
monitoring and a lack of 
clarity of responsibilities 
could lead to non-
compliance with legislation, 
and may lead to financial 
costs from re-appointment or 
tribunals if applicants 
consider that they are being 
unfairly treated. 

Power hours training on 
Recruitment. 

24 

Internal Audit confirmed this action as complete during its 
follow up review in February 2013. 

Although a new recruitment 
framework will soon be in place, 
there is still some work to do to 
roll the framework out.  
 
Internal Audit will review the 
effectiveness of the new 
framework in April 2014 

New Recruitment Framework 
developed and under 
consultation. This policy 
stipulates that at least one 
member of a recruitment 
panel has to have received 
recruitment training. 

25 

The framework has been developed and agreed. HR is 
currently discussing with heads of service about how they 
want to launch the framework within their services. The 
roll-out of the framework could take up to six months.    

This will be subject to the 
Systems Thinking Review 
commencing 17/08/12 26 

The Head of Internal Audit facilitated a process review of 
several HR functions during August 2012. Actions were 
identified and are being addressed, with new processes 
and policies being implemented. 

T
udalen 163



Issue from Internal Audit 
Report 

Strategic HR Action 
Identified 

Action 
No. 

Strategic HR Progress Update Comments 

There is a lack of evidence 
to support the justification 
and authorisation for filling a 
post. We identified instances 
where there was a lack of 
documentation held on new 
starters’ HR files, including 
vacancy control forms and 
interview notes. This may be 
linked to our concerns over 
managers’ training and 
awareness of their 
responsibilities mentioned 
above and increases the risk 
of the Council being unable 
to challenge any accusation 
of unfair treatment in the 
recruitment process, 
incurring tribunal costs. 

A new vacancy control form 
will be introduced and we will 
ensure that all vacancy 
control forms are on file. 

27 

Internal Audit confirmed this action as complete during its 
follow up review in February 2013. 

The actions taken and the 
decision on retention of 
interview notes should address 
the issues that Internal Audit 
raised. 

Covered in power hours on 
recruitment 28 

Internal Audit confirmed this action as complete during its 
follow up review in February 2013. 

Managers to send through 
interview notes as requested. 

29 

Strategic HR and Internal Audit have agreed that this is no 
longer necessary and that managers should retain 
interview notes for a specified period in case they are 
challenged by an interviewee.  

This will be subject to the 
Systems Thinking Review 
commencing 17/08/12 30 

The Head of Internal Audit facilitated a process review of 
several HR functions during August 2012. Actions were 
identified and are being addressed, with new processes 
and policies being implemented. 

There is insufficient vetting 
of new starters to verify the 
authenticity of qualifications 
specific to the post applied 
for and references are not 
always received prior to the 
employee starting work with 
the Council. This increases 
the risk of inappropriate 
appointments and the 
resulting reputational 
damage and financial impact 
of terminating the contract or 
the cost of re-appointment. 

Power hours training on 
Recruitment 31 

Internal Audit confirmed this action as complete during its 
follow up review in February 2013. 

Although a new recruitment 
framework will soon be in place, 
there is still some work to do to 
roll the framework out.  
 
Internal Audit will review the 
effectiveness of the new 
framework in April 2014 

New Recruitment Framework 
developed and under 
consultation 

32 

See action 25 

Dedicated HRA for 
references to address 
backlog 

33 

Internal Audit confirmed this action as complete during its 
follow up review in February 2013. 

Review of references 
procedure and input of 
workflows in Civica. Team 
managers will carry out 
quality assurance checking 
to ensure that the procedure 
is followed. 

34 

The reference procedure has been reviewed and agreed.  
HR is currently working on the implementation of 
workflows within Civica/Trent for completion by 
September 2013. 

T
udalen 164



Issue from Internal Audit 
Report 

Strategic HR Action 
Identified 

Action 
No. 

Strategic HR Progress Update Comments 

All new starters to sign 
consent form for us to verify 
qualifications if needed. 

35 

Internal Audit confirmed this action as complete during its 
follow up review in July 2013. 

This will be subject to the 
Systems Thinking Review 
commencing 17/08/12 

36 

The Head of Internal Audit facilitated a process review of 
several HR functions during August 2012. Actions were 
identified and are being addressed, with new processes 
and policies being implemented. 

There is inadequate 
decision-making, business 
continuity and succession 
planning arrangements 
within the Council. In some 
cases, this has resulted in 
the employment of ex-
employees temporarily to 
provide cover. There is a risk 
that such arrangements are 
not cost effective, are 
insufficiently authorised and 
used inconsistently. This 
could result in reputational 
damage for the Council, 
particularly if the 
arrangement is not open and 
transparent. 

Engagement of ex-
employees included in Pay 
Policy which goes to Full 
Council in September 

37 

Internal Audit confirmed this action as complete during its 
follow up review in July 2013. 

The actions taken and on-going 
succession planning should 
address the issues that Internal 
Audit raised. 
 
Internal Audit will establish the 
development of the succession 
plans during its review in April 
2014. 

Succession Planning part of 
Workforce Planning 
principles 

38 

Succession planning is now part of the annual workforce 
planning exercise.  

Business Partners involved 
in review and expected to 
challenge decisions made 

39 

Reviewing key roles within 
the Council and ensure that 
there are sufficient business 
continuity and succession 
plans in place. 

40 

T
udalen 165



Issue from Internal Audit 
Report 

Strategic HR Action 
Identified 

Action 
No. 

Strategic HR Progress Update Comments 

Business Partners provide 
support to line managers for 
grievances and disciplinary 
cases but, while they 
maintain their own records, 
there is no computerised 
central record to show 
progress with each case. 
This would assist with 
business continuity in the 
event of another Business 
Partner becoming involved. 
There is also no robust 
mechanism for ensuring that 
all grievances and 
disciplinary cases are 
recorded and dealt with 
promptly by the most 
appropriate person. This 
could lead to grievance 
cases not being handled 
effectively, leading to 
disputes and employment 
tribunals. 

All cases to be logged on 
current CRM helpdesk. 

41 

Internal Audit confirmed this action as complete during its 
follow up review in July 2013. 

The actions taken should 
address the issues that Internal 
Audit raised. 

New system will provide a 
simpler system to capture 
information although case 
logs are held in a shared 
drive. We need to promote to 
HR staff its location. 

42 

Internal Audit confirmed this action as complete during its 
follow up review in July 2013. 

This will be subject to the 
Systems Thinking Review 
commencing 17/08/12 

43 

The Head of Internal Audit facilitated a process review of 
several HR functions during August 2012. Actions were 
identified and are being addressed, with new processes 
and policies being implemented. 

T
udalen 166



Issue from Internal Audit 
Report 

Strategic HR Action 
Identified 

Action 
No. 

Strategic HR Progress Update Comments 

There is a risk of non-
compliance with legislation 
and inconsistent treatment of 
employees leading to 
financial loss from tribunal 
costs and reputational 
damage as: 

• there is a lack of 
documentation held on 
redeployees’ files and no 
robust system to record 
the actions taken to 
prevent redundancy 
payments and ensure 
that each redeployee 
has had equal 
opportunity to be 
considered for vacant 
posts; and 

• the redeployment files 
are kept in a lockable 
cabinet, but this is not 
locked, increasing the 
risk of unauthorised 
access to personal 
details and data 
protection breach. 

Cabinets to be locked 

 

44 

Internal Audit confirmed this action as complete during its 
follow up review in February 2013. 

The actions taken should 
address the issues that Internal 
Audit raised. 

This will be subject to the 
Systems Thinking Review 
commencing 17/08/12 

45 

The Head of Internal Audit facilitated a process review of 
several HR functions during August 2012. Actions were 
identified and are being addressed, with new processes 
and policies being implemented. 

 

T
udalen 167



T
udalen 168

M
ae tudalen hw

n yn fw
riadol w

ag



Adroddiad i’r:   Pwyllgor Llywodraethu Corfforaethol 
 
Dyddiad y cyfarfod:  4 Medi 2013 
 
Awdur yr adroddiad: Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Archwilio Mewnol 
 
Teitl:    Adroddiad Cynnydd Archwilio Mewnol 
 

 
1. Am beth mae’r adroddiad yn sôn?  

Mae’r adroddiad hwn yn diweddaru’r Pwyllgor ynghylch cynnydd diweddaraf 
Archwilio Mewnol o ran ei ddarpariaeth gwasanaeth, darpariaeth sicrwydd, 
adolygiadau a gwblhawyd, perfformiad ac effeithiolrwydd wrth hybu 
gwelliannau.  

2. Beth yw’r rheswm dros lunio’r adroddiad hwn?  

I roi’r diweddaraf i’r Pwyllgor ynghylch: 

• darparu ein Cynllun Sicrwydd ar gyfer 2013/14 

• adroddiadau Archwilio Mewnol a gyflwynwyd 

• ymateb y rheolaeth i faterion rydym wedi’u codi  

• perfformiad Archwiliad Mewnol 

3. Beth yw’r Argymhellion? 

• Bod y Pwyllgor yn ystyried ac yn rhoi sylwadau ar gynnydd a 
pherfformiad Archwilio Mewnol hyd yn hyn yn 2013/14  

• Bod y Pwyllgor yn ystyried ac yn rhoi sylwadau ar adroddiadau 
Archwilio Mewnol diweddar a gyflwynwyd 

4. Cynnydd Archwilio Mewnol 

Darparu Cynllun Sicrwydd Archwilio Mewnol 2013/14 
 
4.1. Mae Atodiad 1 yn darparu dadansoddiad o’n gwaith yn ystod 2013/14, 

o’i gymharu â’r Strategaeth Archwilio Mewnol. Mae’n cynnwys sgoriau 
sicrwydd a nifer o faterion a godwyd ar gyfer yr adolygiadau a 
gwblhawyd, y diffiniadau a ddefnyddiwyd i ffurfio ein sicrwydd archwilio 
a’r sgoriau a ddefnyddiwyd i asesu’r lefelau risg ar gyfer y materion a 
godwyd.   

Crynodeb o Adroddiadau Archwilio Mewnol Diweddar 

4.2. Mae ein hadroddiadau’n defnyddio lliwiau ar gyfer sgoriau sicrwydd fel a 
ganlyn: 

Gwyrdd Sicrwydd Uchel Risgiau a rheolaethau wedi’u rheoli’n dda 

Eitem Agenda 12

Tudalen 169



Melyn Sicrwydd Canolig Risgiau wedi’u canfod ond gellir eu cynnwys ar lefel gwasanaeth 

Oren Sicrwydd Isel 
Risgiau a ganfuwyd sydd angen cyfarfod gyda’r Cyfarwyddwr/Aelod 
Arweiniol 

Coch Dim Sicrwydd 
Risgiau arwyddocaol wedi’u canfod sydd angen cynhadledd achos aelod / 
swyddog 

 

4.3. Ers fy adroddiad yng Ngorffennaf 2013, rydym wedi cyhoeddi’r 
adroddiadau canlynol. Mae adroddiadau crynodeb gweithredol a 
chynlluniau gweithredu wedi’u hatodi i’r adroddiad hwn er gwybodaeth 
bellach. 

Adroddiad Archwilio 
Barn 

Archwilio 

Materion a godwyd 

Sylwadau Risg 
gritigol 
(Coch) 

Risg 
fawr  

(Oren) 

Risg 
ganolig  
(Melyn) 

Ymrwymiad Lleihau Carbon  Uchel 0 0 4 
Adolygiad dilynol o 
brosiect 2012/13  

Prawf Sicrwydd Systemau Ariannol 
2012/13 

Canolig 0 0 0 
Adroddiad cryno ar 
brofi Activedata yn 
unig 

Strategaeth Ymadael  Taith i Waith Canolig 0 0 2 Adroddiad cryno’n unig 

Gwasanaeth Maethu Canolig 0 0 2 Adroddiad cryno’n unig 

Gwasanaethau Tai  
(Rhenti a Diwygiad Lles) 

Canolig 0 0 8  

Gweithrediadau Cefn Gwlad Canolig 0 0 7  

Ffin rhwng rolau a chyfrifoldebau 
Cynllunio Addysg ac Adnoddau a 
Gwasanaethau Cyfrifyddiaeth. 

Amh. 0 0 0 

Adolygiad 
ymgynghori’n unig. Ni 
chyflwynwyd barn 
archwilio. 

 
 
Ymateb rheolwyr i’r materion a godwyd gan Archwilio Mewnol 

4.4. Mae’r mwyafrif o’n hadroddiadau Archwilio Mewnol yn nodi gwendidau 
risgiau a rheoli. Rydym yn sgorio’r rhain fel risg gritigol, risg fawr neu 
risg ganolig. Mae rheolwyr yn cytuno ar gamau i fynd i’r afael â’r risgiau, 
gan gynnwys cyfrifoldebau a therfynau amser.  

4.5. Rydym yn adrodd ynghylch yr holl achosion lle nad ydyw rheolaeth yn 
llwyddo i ymateb i’n gwaith dilynol, neu lle maent yn mynd dros y 
dyddiad gweithredu y cytunwyd arno o fwy na thri mis. Mae’r Pwyllgor 
hwn yn penderfynu a oes angen cymryd camau pellach, er enghraifft, 
drwy alw’r bobl berthnasol i’w gyfarfod nesaf neu ofyn am adroddiad 
ysgrifenedig i esbonio’r diffyg cynnydd.  

4.6. Ar hyn o bryd nid oes gennym unrhyw faterion i’w codi gyda’r Pwyllgor. 

Perfformiad Archwilio Mewnol  

Tudalen 170



Sicrwydd Hanfodol – pob targed 100% 

Adolygiad o feysydd Sicrwydd Ansawdd y cytunwyd arnynt yn y Cynllun Sicrwydd 
erbyn 31/03/14 

Hyd yn hyn, rydym wedi cwblhau 50% o’r prosiectau a gynlluniwyd, gyda disgwyl y bydd eraill 
yn cael eu cwblhau cyn 31 Mawrth 2014. 

Adolygiad o feysydd Sicrwydd Grantiau ac Ardystio y cytunwyd arnynt yn y Cynllun 
Sicrwydd erbyn 31/03/14 

Hyd yn hyn, rydym wedi cwblhau 60% o’r prosiectau a gynlluniwyd, gyda disgwyl y bydd eraill 
yn cael eu cwblhau cyn 31 Mawrth 2014. 

Adolygiad o feysydd Sicrwydd Llywodraethu Corfforaethol y cytunwyd arnynt yn y 
Cynllun Sicrwydd erbyn 31/03/14 

Mae'r rhan fwyaf o'r prosiectau hyn wedi eu trefnu ar gyfer yn ddiweddarach yn y flwyddyn er 
mwyn caniatáu amser ar gyfer cynnydd ar y Cynllun Corfforaethol. Hyd yn hyn, rydym wedi 
cwblhau 14% o’r prosiectau a gynlluniwyd. 

Adolygiad o’r meysydd Sicrwydd Risg Corfforaethol Uchel y cytunwyd arnynt yn y 
Cynllun Sicrwydd erbyn 31/03/14 

Mae disgwyl y bydd y naw prosiect yn cael eu cwblhau erbyn 31 Mawrth 2014. 

 

Safonau Cwsmer – pob targed 100% 

Cysylltu â chwsmeriaid o leiaf 2 wythnos ymlaen llaw i drefnu dyddiad addas ar gyfer ein 
hymweliad 

Perfformiad cyfredol yn 100% 

Anfon y Ddogfen Cwmpasu Prosiect y cytunwyd arni at y cwsmeriaid cyn i ni ddechrau’r 
gwaith 

Perfformiad cyfredol yn 100% 

Anfon adroddiad drafft at y cwsmer o fewn 10 diwrnod gwaith o’r cyfarfod cau 

Perfformiad cyfredol yn 100% 

Anfon ein hadroddiad archwilio terfynol at y cwsmer o fewn 5 diwrnod gwaith o gytuno 
ar y drafft 

Perfformiad cyfredol yn 100% 

 

 
 

Tudalen 171



Tudalen 172

Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



 

Appendix 1 
 
Internal Audit Work 2013/14 – progress as at 11/08/13 

Internal Audit Assurance Plan 
Planned 

Days 

Days 
to 

Date 

Current 
Status 

Audit 
Assurance 

No. of 
Critical 
Issues 

No. of 
Major 
Issues 

No. of 
Moderate 
Issues 

Comments  

Financial Assurance 

Financial systems – Ruthin based 
2012/13 

0 1 Complete Medium 0 1 7 Completion of 2012/13 review 

Financial systems – Rhyl based 48 16 In progress      

Financial systems – Ruthin based 30 0 Not started     Due January 2014 

Financial systems - Activedata 
testing 2012/13 

16 14 Complete Medium 0 0 0  

Settlement agreements 5 4 Draft report     Verbal report to S151 Officer 

Sub-totals 99 35 % Internal Audit Assurance Plan Estimated: 4.6% Actual to date: 4.8% 

Grant & Other Certification Assurance 

Sustainability/Climate Change 3 4 Complete High 0 0 4  

Welsh Government (WG) education 
grant certification 

15        
 
 

Completion of 2012/13 review 

 - Breakfast initiative Grant 5 Complete High 0 0 0 

- Thinking & Assessment for 
Learning Grant 

3 Draft report     

WG 6
th
 Form Funding – Ysgol 

Brynhyfryd, Ruthin 
15 0 Not started     Due September 2013 

WG Student Finance certification 5 6 Complete High 0 0 0  

WG 6
th
 Form Funding - Denbigh 

High School 
15 0 Not started     Due January 2014 

Sub-totals 53 18 % Internal Audit Assurance Plan Estimated: 2.5% Actual to date: 2.4% 

T
udalen 173



Internal Audit Assurance Plan 
Planned 

Days 

Days 
to 

Date 

Current 
Status 

Audit 
Assurance 

No. of 
Critical 
Issues 

No. of 
Major 
Issues 

No. of 
Moderate 
Issues 

Comments  

Corporate Governance Assurance 

Management of human resources - 
agency / relief staff 

10 3 In progress      

Risk management 0 5 Complete Medium 0 0 4 Completion of 2012/13 review 

Procurement 20 35 Draft report     Continuation of 2012/13 review 

Corporate Plan delivery 46 0 Not started     Various projects during the year 

Customer Service Standards 7 0 Not started     Due December 2013 

Customer feedback process 10 0 Not started     Due October 2013 

Partnerships & collaboration 

15 

0 Not started     
Further projects planned for later 
in year 

- New Work Connections Exit 
strategy 

4 Complete Medium 0 0 2  

Project management 20 2 Scoping     Due September 2013 

Management of human resources - 
disciplinaries & difficult situations 

20 0 Not started     Due November 2013 

Management of human resources - 
cessation of employment 

20 0 Not started     Due March 2014 

Constitutional arrangements 9 0 Not started     Due September 2013 

Equalities 15 0 Not started     Due March 2014 

Leadership 1 0 Complete High 0 0 0 
Assurance taken from outcome 
of staff survey 

Corporate Governance Framework 15 1 In progress     On-going work during the year 

Sub-totals 208 50 % Internal Audit Assurance Plan Estimated: 9.7% Actual to date: 6.8% 

T
udalen 174



Internal Audit Assurance Plan 
Planned 

Days 

Days 
to 

Date 

Current 
Status 

Audit 
Assurance 

No. of 
Critical 
Issues 

No. of 
Major 
Issues 

No. of 
Moderate 
Issues 

Comments  

High Corporate Risk Assurance 

Collaboration agenda 3 0 Not started     Due December 2013 

Change/ modernisation projects 3 0 Not started     Due November 2013 

HR framework 3 0 Not started     Due December 2013 

ICT investment 3 0 Not started     Due December 2013 

Corporate Risk - Safeguarding 3 0 Not started     Due December 2013 

Corporate Risk - Economic 
Environment 

2 0 Not started     Due March 2014 

Corporate Risk - Arms Length 
Organisations 

2 0 Not started     Due March 2014 

Corporate Risk - BCU Health Board 
Partnership 

3 0 Not started     Due February 2014 

Sub-totals 22 0 % Internal Audit Assurance Plan Estimated: 1.0% Actual to date: 0% 

Risk-based Assurance 

Corporate Health & Safety 20 11 In progress      

Sickness absence management 25 0 Not started     Due September 2013 

Travel & subsistence - pool cars 20 21 Draft report      

Welfare advice 30 34 Draft report      

Management of Council buildings 20 16 In progress      

Adult Services - improvement & 
priority areas from self-assessment 
2013/14 

5 0 Not started     Due October 2013 

Adult Services - residential care 20 2 In progress      

Adult Services - Deputy for Finance 
(Court of Protection) 

12 11 Draft report      

T
udalen 175



Internal Audit Assurance Plan 
Planned 

Days 

Days 
to 

Date 

Current 
Status 

Audit 
Assurance 

No. of 
Critical 
Issues 

No. of 
Major 
Issues 

No. of 
Moderate 
Issues 

Comments  

Children’s Services - improvement 
& priority areas from self-
assessment 2013/14 

5 0 Not started     Due December 2013 

Children’s Services - cash 
payments to clients 

15 0 Not started     Due February 2014 

Children’s Services - performance  1 1 Completed n/a n/a n/a n/a 
Review of specific performance 
indicator only 

Library Standards 2 1 In progress      

School admissions 10 0 Not started     Due January 2014 

2st Century Schools programme 10 0 Not started     Due October 2013 

School themed visits - governance 20 15 In progress      

School themed visits - physical 
security / health & safety 

30 1 Scoping     Due December 2013 

School themed visits - procurement 20 1 Scoping     Due December 2013 

School themed visits - safeguarding 15 1 Scoping     Due October 2013 

School themed visits - School Fund 
management 

15 1 Scoping     Due January 2014 

Blessed Edward Jones School, Rhyl 15 0 Not started     Due October 2013 

Special Education 30 0 Not started     Due March 2014 

Flying Start Grant 5 0 Complete n/a n/a n/a n/a Project no longer necessary 

School Improvement performance 1 0 Not started     Due October 2013 

School Improvement - review of 
admin, terms & conditions, TOIL & 
travel costs 

20 5 In progress      

Fly tipping 1 1 Complete     
Review of specific performance 
indicator only 

Public conveniences 10 0 Not started     Due September 2013 

T
udalen 176



Internal Audit Assurance Plan 
Planned 

Days 

Days 
to 

Date 

Current 
Status 

Audit 
Assurance 

No. of 
Critical 
Issues 

No. of 
Major 
Issues 

No. of 
Moderate 
Issues 

Comments  

Highways network services 10 0 Not started     Due January 2014 

S106 Agreements 10 0 Not started     Due November 2013 

Legal Services 25 0 Not started     Due January 2014 

Coroners Service 20 0 Not started     Due February 2014 

Taxi driver & vehicle licensing 25 0 Not started     Due January 2014 

IT assurance work 10 0 Not started     Date to be agreed 

Fostering Service 0 8 Complete Medium 0 0 2 Completion of 2012/13 review 

Adults services - efficiency of 
charging processes 

0 7 Complete n/a n/a n/a n/a Completion of 2012/13 review 

Modernising Education 0 4 Complete n/a n/a n/a n/a Completion of 2012/13 review 

Ysgol Clawdd Offa, Prestatyn 0 4 Complete Low 0 7 21 Completion of 2012/13 review 

Winter maintenance 0 1 Complete Medium 0 0 10 Completion of 2012/13 review 

Countryside Services 0 23 Complete Medium 0 0 8 Completion of 2012/13 review 

Housing Services 0 7 Complete Medium 0 0 8 Completion of 2012/13 review 

Consultant payments 0 7 In progress     On-going work from 2012/13 

Review of corporate petty cash 
accounts 

0 1 In progress     
Issue noted during another 
project 

Sub-totals 477 184 % Internal Audit Assurance Plan Estimated: 22.3% Actual to date: 25% 

Modernising & Efficiency Projects 

Leisure Services information 
management system 

2 0 Not started     Date to be agreed 

Fleet management & vehicle 
maintenance  

15 1 Scoping     Commencement to be agreed 

Reablement service 3 1 Scoping     Due September 2013 

T
udalen 177



Internal Audit Assurance Plan 
Planned 

Days 

Days 
to 

Date 

Current 
Status 

Audit 
Assurance 

No. of 
Critical 
Issues 

No. of 
Major 
Issues 

No. of 
Moderate 
Issues 

Comments  

Disabled Facilities Grants 10 3 Scoping     Commencement to be agreed 

Housing responsive repairs & voids 
- continuation of performance 
measurement 

10 4 In progress      

Planning & Public Protection - 
process reviews of various services 

10 9 In progress      

IT Service Desk 10 9 In progress     Continuation of 2012/13 review 

Contingency for future reviews 23        

Sub-totals 83 27 % Internal Audit Assurance Plan Estimated: 3.9% Actual to date: 3.7% 

External Contract Work 

Natural Resources Wales 165 73       

North Wales Police  225 72       

School Fund Audits 40 8       

Sub-totals 430 79 % Internal Audit Assurance Plan Estimated: 20.1% Actual to date: 10.7% 

Other Areas of Work & Contingencies  

Consultancy & Corporate Work 120 62       

Follow up reviews 53 31       

IA collaboration 20 9       

Frauds & Investigations 50        

- National Fraud Initiative 5       

- general enquiries 2       

IA relationship management 25 8       

Sub-totals 268 117 % Internal Audit Assurance Plan Estimated: 12.5% Actual to date: 15.9% 

T
udalen 178



Internal Audit Assurance Plan 
Planned 

Days 

Days 
to 

Date 

Current 
Status 

Audit 
Assurance 

No. of 
Critical 
Issues 

No. of 
Major 
Issues 

No. of 
Moderate 
Issues 

Comments  

IA Support 

Management & administration 400 151      
 

Training & development 100 75      

Sub-totals 500 226 % Internal Audit Assurance Plan Estimated: 23.4% Actual to date: 30.7% 

Grand Totals 2140 736  

 
 
 
 

T
udalen 179



T
udalen 180

M
ae tudalen hw

n yn fw
riadol w

ag



Page | 1 
 

 

Denbighshire Internal Audit Services 
Caledfryn, Smithfield Road, Denbigh, LL16 3RJ 

 
 

Internal Audit Follow Up 

Carbon Reduction 

Commitment  

July 2013 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Nanette Williams BA (Hons)     01824 706973 
nanette.williams@denbighshire.gov.uk 

 
 

 
Ivan Butler CMIIA, MBA, Head of Internal Audit Services

Tudalen 181



 

Page | 1 
 

 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Purpose & Scope of Review 

In January 2013, we issued a report 
providing assurance on the Council’s 
compliance with the Environment 
Agency’s Carbon Reduction 
Commitment (CRC) as well as other 
carbon reduction processes and 
initiatives undertaken.  

We were able to provide medium 
assurance for this review. We raised four 
moderate issues/risks in our report and 
have now followed up the action plan 
included within our report to ensure that 
the agreed improvements have been 
made. 

 

Assurance Rating 
(Based on areas reviewed) 

► 
High 
Assurance 

Risks and controls well 
managed 

 
Medium 
Assurance 

Risks identified but are 
containable at service level 

 
Low 
Assurance 

Risks identified that require 
meeting with Corporate 
Director/Lead Member 

 
No  
Assurance 

Significant risks identified 
that require member / 
officer case conference 

 

Audit Opinion 

After we issued our final report, it was identified that the Council did not qualify for the CRC 
scheme and had in fact registered in error. Following consultation and formal notification from the 
Environment Agency, the Council’s participation in the CRC scheme has now ended. 

When the Council registered for phase 1 of the scheme in 2008, the energy consumption at the 
Nova Centre was included in its total consumption figure, even though it is independently leased 
and operated by Clwyd Leisure Ltd. This was because Clwyd Leisure Ltd utilised Council energy 
supply contracts as a tenant. However, the Principal Energy Manager queried with the 
Environment Agency whether the Nova Centre should be included in the Council’s consumption 
total, as the Council has no control over its energy usage and Clwyd Leisure is a counterparty to 
the supply contract i.e. it pays its own energy bills.  

Following investigation, the Environment Agency confirmed that the Nova Centre should in fact 
have been excluded from the Council’s qualification total when it registered for the CRC scheme. 
This would have removed 540MWh from the qualification total taking the Council below the 
qualification threshold of 6,000MWh. Therefore, the Council has registered for the scheme in 
error and has purchased allowances for 2011/12 of £152,316, which it should now be able to 
claim back. The Principal Energy Manager is currently awaiting confirmation from the 
Environment Agency as to how the Council can reclaim the allowances purchased. 

As a result, some of the issues raised as part of our original review in relation to compliance with 
the CRC are no longer applicable. Two issues are still valid and our review found that one of 
these has been fully completed and the second is in progress. We are confident that the service 
will be able to complete the remaining action within the revised timescale and, as a result, we 
have changed our assurance rating to ‘High’.  

In addition, we encourage the service to proactively pursue reimbursement of the allowances 
already paid for 2011/12 to ensure that the Council does not miss the opportunity of appropriate 
recompense. We will review progress in this area during our next follow up review. 

T
udalen 182



 

Page | 2 
 

Action Plan Progress 

Audit Review of: Carbon Reduction Commitment  

Date: July 2013  

Action Plan Owner:  Property Manager 

 

Risk/ 
Issue 
No. 

Risk/Issue - January 2013 
Action Agreed 

Responsibility & Timescale 
Current Status 

Further Action 
Needed 

1. The Principal Energy Manager has not reviewed the 
risk register for the CRC scheme since our last 
review, despite an issue being raised with a target 
completion date of December 2011.  

As a result, the risk identified during our last review 
remains unresolved, i.e. that all risks affecting the 
Council’s compliance with the CRC Scheme may not 
have been identified, or inappropriate actions may be 
shown to mitigate the risk as:  

 the former Sustainable Assets Manager did 
not obtain the corporate risk management 
guidance for completing the CRC risk register, 
and the corporate risk register template was 
not used;  

 key employees within the CRC Team were not 
involved in the preparation of the CRC risk 
register to ensure that all risks and mitigating 
actions were identified;  

 the CRC risk register is not monitored and 
reviewed regularly; and  

 if necessary, risks affecting the CRC scheme 
have not been fed into the service risk register 
for Finance and Assets.  

A meeting has been arranged with the 
Corporate Improvement Team to 
discuss the need to include the CRC 
in the service and corporate risk 
register.  
Principal Energy Manager  
March 2013 
 

As the Council will no 
longer be participating in 
the CRC scheme, this issue 
is no longer applicable. 
 
 
 

 
 

No longer 
applicable  

Corporate Risk/Issue Severity Key 

 
Critical – Significant CET and Cabinet intervention 

 Major – intervention by SLT and/or CET with Cabinet 
involvement 

 Moderate – Containable at service level. Senior 
management and SLT may need to be kept informed 

T
udalen 183



 

Page | 3 
 

Risk/ 
Issue 
No. 

Risk/Issue - January 2013 
Action Agreed 

Responsibility & Timescale 
Current Status 

Further Action 
Needed 

 
Following the conclusion of our review, the Property 
Manager queried the requirement for a departmental 
risk register of this nature, following discussions with 
the Corporate Improvement Team. Clarification on this 
matter should be sought to ensure that appropriate 
actions are taken and the risks to the CRC scheme 
are effectively managed.  

2. There is a lack of documented business continuity and 
succession planning within the Energy Team, 
particularly in relation to the Energy Manager’s role:  

 While there is a CRC manual within the 
Evidence Pack, it simply details a hierarchy of 
reports rather than key CRC processes.  

 There is no document defining what each 
member of the Energy Team’s role is within 
the CRC.  

 While the Energy Officer is now the designated 
secondary contact for CRC, the Environment 
Agency records have not been updated to 
reflect this.  

In the absence of key members of staff, there is a risk 
of poor service delivery, late submission of the annual 
CRC report and inaccurate reporting leading to 
financial penalties, increased scrutiny, and potential 
reputation damage to the Council. 

 
 
 

An electronic version of the manual 
detailing the CRC processes has 
been saved to the X drive.  
Principal Energy Manager 
January 2013 (Confirmed by IA) 

A new draft document has been 
written defining what each member of 
the Energy Team’s role is within the 
CRC. File name “CRC, staff 
processes”  
Principal Energy Manager 
January 2013 (Confirmed by IA) 

The Environment Agency records 
have been updated to reflect the 
current staff roles. If key members of 
staff are not available for any reason ‘I 
Profits’ has the authority to submit the 
annual report. This process is 
included in the draft document 
referred to above.  
Principal Energy Manager 
January 2013 

 
 
 

As above  No longer 
applicable  

T
udalen 184



 

Page | 4 
 

Risk/ 
Issue 
No. 

Risk/Issue - January 2013 
Action Agreed 

Responsibility & Timescale 
Current Status 

Further Action 
Needed 

3. Our review has identified a number of issues in 
relation to general communication, housekeeping and 
clarity of information in relation to the CRC and other 
carbon reduction processes:  

 The CRC Evidence Pack has not been kept up 
to date, particularly in relation to key roles and 
responsibilities and special events. Further, 
general file management of CRC information is 
disorganised.  

 There has been a lapse in communication 
following the recent restructure in Finance, 
leading to confusion over financial 
responsibilities for the CRC.  

 There is uncertainty within the Energy Team 
as to why there is a difference between the 
CRC annual report figure and the Digital 
Energy final year figures for tonnes of CO2 
emissions.  

 The turnover figure for the Council reported in 
the CRC annual report 2011/12 is based on 
unaudited accounts when the Environment 
Agency specifies that only audited figures 
should be used.  

 It is unclear how an uplift figure of £1,932 for 
estimated meter readings was reached. While 
the amount is generated when the annual 
report is submitted, the Energy Team could not 
provide confirmation from the EA that this is 
the correct figure.  

 There have been errors made in calculating 
the correct carbon reduction figure for 
2011/12, resulting in an inaccurate figure being 
reported to management.  

The evidence pack is now up to date. 
This is held on the X drive along with 
all other relevant data. The meter 
changes records are held with the 
Digital Energy system.  
Principal Energy Manager 

March 2013 

Finance has confirmed roles. 
Confirmation of roles prior to CRC 
submission is now built into 
procedures  
Principal Management Accountant  
Nov 2012 (Confirmed by IA) 

The difference is due to the estimated 
readings uplift imposed by the 
Environment Agency.  
Energy Officer  

The audited figure has been sent to 
the Environment Agency and they 
have acknowledged the figure and 
explanation. There were no issues. 
Energy Officer  
January 2013 (Confirmed by IA) 

The Environment Agency was 
emailed to clarify how the difference in 
the C02 emissions is calculated. 
Response awaited.  
Energy Officer 
March 2013 

 
Figures have been checked and 

As the Council will no 
longer be participating in 
the CRC scheme, the 
various issues in relation to 
general communication, 
housekeeping and clarity of 
information of CRC 
processes are no longer 
applicable. 

In relation to the issue 
regarding errors made in 
calculating the carbon 
reduction figure for 2011/12 
(an activity not specific to 
the CRC scheme) the 
Principal Energy Manager 
has developed a 
spreadsheet that 
automatically calculates the 
total reduction figure.   
We are satisfied that this 
should help to mitigate 
against miscalculating the 
figure in future and that the 
action is complete. 

No longer 
applicable  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
udalen 185



 

Page | 5 
 

Risk/ 
Issue 
No. 

Risk/Issue - January 2013 
Action Agreed 

Responsibility & Timescale 
Current Status 

Further Action 
Needed 

 The annual carbon reduction target is unclear, 
with various figures being cited during the 
course of our review and an incorrect figure 
detailed in the Sustainable Energy Policy.  

There is a risk of inaccurate reporting and 
performance monitoring, as well as inaccurate or 
incomplete CRC records. This could potentially lead to 
financial penalties for non compliance (as detailed in 
the Background/Context section of this report), 
scrutiny from the Environment Agency, and adverse 
publicity. 

confirmed. Process for checking all 
figures for publication / report to be 
implemented.  
Principal Energy Manager 
March 2013 

The carbon reduction figure has been 
confirmed to be 4%pa. The Energy 
Policy has been updated to reflect 
this.  

Principal Energy Manager 
January 2013 (Confirmed by IA) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
None 

4. It is unclear how the Council will be able to repay 
some of the Salix loans it has taken out for energy 
efficiency projects over the defined loan period, based 
on the anticipated savings calculated.  
There is a risk that if the project does not deliver the 
anticipated savings, the Council will have to make up 
the shortfall from the corporate budget. 

All Salix projects are vetted by Salix to 
ensure that they are satisfied that the 
savings will be made. The Finance 
Manager signs these off. Maximum 
anticipated payback for all proposals 
is 4yrs. This allows a 2yr contingency 
period within the 6yr payback period 
for the loan.  
Principal Energy Manager 
(This is the case for the majority of 
projects initiated)  

Files will be brought up to date to 
show savings made so far.  
Principal Energy Manager 
March 2013 

The Principal Energy 
Manager confirmed that 
files have been updated to 
show all Salix projects that 
the Council has undertaken, 
along with consumption 
totals, monthly breakdowns 
and costs for each. 
However, records do not 
show savings made so far 
compared with the original 
cost of the loan.  

Expand records to 
include savings to 
date compared 
against the 
original loan 
amount.  

This will enable 
effective 
monitoring to 
ensure that the 
loan is repaid by 
the savings made 
within the 
designated period, 
as planned. 
Revised 
timescale – 
September 2013 

T
udalen 186



 

 

 
Report to:  Head of Finance & Assets  
 
Report By:  Lisa Thomas, Senior Auditor  

Irene Griffiths, Audit Assistant 
   
Date:   20 June 2013 
 
Subject:  Financial Systems Assurance Testing 2012/13 

 

Introduction 

This review provides additional assurance to cover Payroll and Creditor 
payments for the period April 2012 – March 2013 and supports our previous audit 
review of Financial Systems (report dated May 2013).  

For this review, we used data interrogation software, Active Data for Excel, to 
assist our testing. Appendix 1 summarises our test results and detailed results 
are available on request if required. 

Audit Opinion 

Overall, test results for Payroll and Creditor payments were very positive, which 
supports our previous audit and concludes that this function is well controlled. 

In January 2013, we confirmed that the Creditors team’s continuous monitoring of 
payments ensures that they are accurate and any irregularities identified were 
promptly addressed. Therefore, our additional review of Creditor payments 
focused on ‘VAT overpaid’ and we found the Council’s treatment of VAT in this 
respect was satisfactory. 

Our testing of Payroll confirms that late notification of leavers is still a concern 
and we wait to see if the agreed action from our previous audit review will 
successfully address this matter, i.e. reminding schools that late notifications of 
leavers can lead to overpayments and HR revising their leaver process so that 
Payroll is notified immediately.  

Although overtime is rarely used, we are concerned that there are a few 
examples where ineffective overtime management could lead to misuse and fail 
to ensure that it complies with the Working Time Regulations. We identified four 
employees who did not comply with the Regulations, two of which we highlighted 
during our previous year’s review. Despite notifying the relevant line manager 
and HR representative, some employees continue to work hours above the 
maximum set by the Regulations i.e. average of 48 hours per week. We have 
contacted the relevant line managers, HR representatives and Finance Officers 
and all were aware of this issue and either agreed to take steps to address the 

Tudalen 187



excessive use of overtime or explained that it was due to exceptional 
circumstances. 

Assurance Rating 

Based on the areas reviewed (including test results from February 2013) 

 

 
High 
Assurance 

Risks and controls well 
managed 

► 
Medium 
Assurance 

Risks identified but are 
containable at service level 

 
Low 
Assurance 

Risks identified that require 
meeting with Corporate 
Director/Lead Member 

 
No  
Assurance 

Significant risks identified 
that require member / 
officer case conference 

 

Tudalen 188



 

Page | 1 
 

 

Denbighshire Internal Audit Services 
Caledfryn, Smithfield Road, Denbigh, LL16 3RJ 

 
 
Report to:  Head of Adult & Business Services  
 
Report By:  Lisa Thomas, Senior Auditor 
 
Date:   14 August 2013  
 
Subject:  New Work Connections Exit Strategy 

 

Introduction & Background Information: 

We carried out this review of partnership governance arrangements to support 
our work for the corporate governance framework.  The scope of our review 
focused on the New Work Connections (NWC) exit strategy, as the grant funding 
it relies upon is due to finish on 28 February 2014.  

Denbighshire County Council is the lead authority for NWC, which it delivers in 
partnership with three other North Wales Councils (Anglesey, Conwy and 
Gwynedd). Its aim is to reduce the significant levels of economic inactivity and 
improve employment levels among the most disadvantaged groups. 

The Welsh European Funding Office (WEFO) administers the European Social 
Fund (ESF) on behalf of the European Commission, and requires each project to 
have a robust exit strategy from the start of the project. An exit strategy is meant 
to describe how the benefits of the project will continue after the grant support 
ends and also detail any on-going commitments. WEFO guidance states that an 
exit strategy is beneficial from the outset of the project and must be considered 
regularly along with continuation planning. 

Audit Opinion 

The NWC project has considered its future options and communicated these to 
key parties, such as NWSSIC (North Wales Social Services Improvement 
Collaborative made up of six Directors of Social Services), the Council’s 
Modernisation Board, Partnership Scrutiny, Regional Partnership Board and 
WEFO. The Exit Strategy (February 2013) captures this evaluation and it is now 
clear that winding down is the only feasible option available; however, the exit 

Tudalen 189



 

Page | 2 
 

strategy has not been revisited to formalise a clear plan on how this will be 
carried out successfully. (See Moderate Risk/Issue 1.) 

In the absence of a formal plan, we recognise that informal arrangements are in 
place and it is clear that the team is striving to achieve its remaining targets as 
well as arranging for the project closure. Relevant stakeholders (i.e. project staff, 
other organisations and current project participants) have been briefed and made 
aware of when the project is due to end; however, there has yet to be clarification 
of closure timescales e.g. when new referrals will no longer be accepted and 
what this will mean for all concerned, particularly the current participants.  

At this stage, all referrals are considered by a multi-disciplinary panel and 
referrals needing intensive levels of support over a long period are no longer 
accepted. As time goes on, the eligibility criteria will tighten. The NWC Local 
Manager has distributed a Continuation Plan template for the project’s 
caseworkers to complete for each individual who is still receiving support. We 
suggest that a combined action plan is formed using these to enable 
responsibilities and timescales to be assigned to each task in order to minimise 
the future impact on Adult Social Services. (See Moderate Risk/Issue 2.) 

The Local Manager has been in contact with the project’s two external contracts 
i.e. Hafal and the North Wales Women’s Centre, to encourage them to develop 
their own exit strategies as they will shortly lose some, or all, of their funding. The 
Service Manager has obtained HR and legal advice and is satisfied that these 
contracts ending will cause minimal impact to the Council. 

The biggest cost to the Council is likely to be the loss of the 30 or so individuals 
that work directly on the project. This has a financial impact and potentially 
affects the Council’s service provision: 

 The redundancy costs have been estimated at £80k but, as employees find 
alternative employment over the next few months, this figure is likely to 
reduce. A portion of the redundancy cost will be met by the grant but, as this 
is capped at £450 for each individual, the Social Services budget will suffer 
the impact, as this cost had not been planned for. The service manager is 
working with HR to make the transition as smooth as possible for the 
individuals concerned. 

 Given that the project activity must end in February 2014, the biggest legacy it 
offers to the Council is the good practice it has developed. Project staff are 
already starting to leave and taking their knowledge and good practice with 
them. Although it is recognised that efforts are required to capture and 
integrate this within existing services as much as possible, it is unclear how 
this will be achieved at this stage as it is not captured within the exit strategy 
or other such plans (links with Moderate Risk/Issue 1). 

Next year, additional European funding is likely to become available with the roll-
out of the ESF Programme for 2014-2020. Although the Council is unable to 
financially support NWC activity until then, it should look to maintain the structure 
and foundations of the project where possible to prevent repeating unnecessary 
work when the next round of funding becomes available. This is a key lesson to 
be learned from the previous transition between Work Connections and New 
Work Connections, when much time was lost in setting up the project again. 

Tudalen 190



 

Page | 3 
 

However, we acknowledge that the delays were outside of the Council’s control 
and much work was undertaken to achieve the level of funding finally awarded to 
the four Councils from Convergence. The Service Manager confirmed that the 
process was complex and lengthy and pursued with a minimum of delay. (Links 
with Moderate Risk/Issue 1) 

The project team has organised an event to celebrate the successes of the 
project and the achievements of its participants. Given the recent poor publicity 
surrounding the Welsh Government’s termination of the Genesis 2 project and 
the effect this had on the individuals in receipt of support, the Council should 
make sure that current participants are supported to minimise their frustrations 
and the potential impact that the project closure may have on them. (Links with 
Moderate Risk/Issue 2) 

The project team, with support from the European Funding Claims team, is aware 
of WEFO guidance, particularly surrounding document retention. It is envisaged 
that grant funding will continue for three months after the project has ended to 
enable the core project team members to finalise such administrative matters. 

Based on our work we give the following assurance rating: 

 
High 
Assurance 

Risks and controls well 
managed 

► 
Medium 
Assurance 

Risks identified but are 
containable at service level 

 
Low 
Assurance 

Risks identified that require 
meeting with Corporate 
Director/Lead Member 

 
No  
Assurance 

Significant risks identified 
that require member / 
officer case conference 

 
 
 

Tudalen 191



Page | 4 
 

Action Plan 

Audit Review of: New Work Connections - Exit Strategy  

Date: August 2013 

Action Plan Owner:  Phil Gilroy - Head of Adult & Business Services 

 

Risk/ 
Issue 
No. 

Risk/Issue Action Who When 

1. The Exit Strategy (February 2013) has not been 
updated to show how the project will be closed down 
over the coming months. Without a clear strategy 
and plan, key risks could materialise, such as: 

 damage to reputation if participants’ support 
is stopped abruptly;  

 additional strain on budgets from unforeseen 
redundancy costs and need to provide 
continued support to the project’s 
participants; and 

 wasting time and effort by not preparing for 
the additional funding that is expected next 
year (although this is unlikely to materialise 
within Denbighshire) . 

Update NWC Exit Strategy to include detail 
of retention of documents, process 
regarding referrals over final months and 
proposals regarding support for 
participants who are still registered with 
the project in February 2014. 

Local Manager 
 
 
 
 

September 2013 
 
 
 
 
 

Monitor staffing situation throughout the 
project and ensure, through various 
options, that we have sufficient employees 
over final months to enable the project to 
meet remaining targets required by 
funders. 

Local Manager in 
liaison with Strategic 
HR 
 
 

Continuously 
throughout 
remaining months 
 
 

Liaise with Strategic HR to ensure that 
DCC employees are provided with 
appropriate support and advice regarding 
their employment post February 2014 and 
that redundancy arrangements are in 
hand. 

Service Manager, 
Regional Manager & 
Local Manager 
 
 

August 2014 
(already underway) 
 
 

Corporate Risk/Issue Severity Key 

 
Critical – Significant CET and Cabinet intervention 

 Major – intervention by SLT and/or CET with Cabinet 
involvement 

 Moderate – Containable at service level. Senior 
management and SLT may need to be kept informed 

T
udalen 192



Page | 5 
 

Risk/ 
Issue 
No. 

Risk/Issue Action Who When 

Create individual continuation strategies 
for all participants in the Learning Disability 
Service who will continue to need support 
once the project closes. 

NWC Job Finders 
 

August/September 
2013 
 

Go through individual continuation plans in 
supervision with all Job Finding staff and 
create a ‘red/amber/green’ style risk 
register to identify the number of 
participants for whom DCC Social Services 
has a statutory responsibility and who will 
continue to require support from Adult 
Services. 

Learning Disability 
Team Managers 
 

October 2013 
 

Develop links between the above register 
and day centre review and report to Social 
Services Modernisation Board. 

Learning Disability 
Service Manager & 
Head of Service 

November 2013 
(TBC) 
 

Create individual continuation/exit 
strategies for all participants who will 
continue to need support once the project 
closes. 

Case Workers in all 
elements  
 

From now until 
November 2013 
 

2. There has yet to be clarification of the project’s 
closure timescales (e.g. when new referrals will no 
longer be accepted) and what this will mean for all 
concerned, particularly the current participants.  
Without a clear action plan for winding down support 
to existing participants, showing clear responsibilities 
and timescales, timely ending of support may not be 
achievable. If handled poorly, this could cause 
additional service pressures for existing Social 
Services teams and potential reputation damage to 
the Council. 

Continue to negotiate for funding to 
continue with at least some aspects of the 
project with external sources of funding 
e.g. DfES & WEFO. 

Regional Manager 
 
 
 

From now until 
December 2013 
 
 

Develop an action plan that fully addresses 
these issues in relation to both winding 
down support to existing participants and 
reducing acceptance of new referrals to all 
elements of the projects. This will take into 
account the staffing levels and support 
needs of those referred. 

Local Manager September/October 
2013 

T
udalen 193



 

Page | 1 
 

 
 
Report to:  Leighton Rees (Head of Children & Family Services) 
 
Report By:  Brenda M Steed (Audit Manager) 
 
Date:   July 2013 
 
Subject:  Fostering Service 

 

Introduction: 

The Fostering Service regularly makes payments to foster carers and external 
providers that have a high overall value. As a result, the Head of Children & 
Family Services asked us to undertake a review of this area to give assurance 
that there is an effective internal control framework and robust and transparent 
processes.  

Our scope of work included a review of the ‘Payment for Skills’ scheme applied to 
in-house foster carers and the process used to procure independent fostering 
placements from external providers. Our review did not consider the matching 
exercise followed after a referral is received or a decision to place. 

Audit Opinion: 

We provide assurance that the Payment for Skills scheme is well managed. The 
CSSIW (Care & Social Services Inspectorate Wales) inspection report in 
December 2012 cited various examples of satisfaction relating to several 
functions it reviewed within the service. 

The placement of children with independent fostering providers works well, 
particularly in respect of the social care element, but the procurement route 
followed is informal and currently does not comply with the Council’s Contract 
Procedure Rules.  

There may be an opportunity to use the Regional Commissioning Hub to source 
this service in the future but the risk needs to be managed well so that the service 
and Hub work together and the benefits from pooling skills and experience are 
realised. 

 

 

Tudalen 194



 

Page | 2 
 

Based on our work we give the following assurance rating: 

 
High 
Assurance 

Risks and controls well managed 

► 
Medium 
Assurance 

Risks identified but are containable at 
service level 

 
Low 
Assurance 

Risks identified that require meeting 
with Corporate Director/Lead Member 

 
No  
Assurance 

Significant risks identified that require 
member / officer case conference 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 195



 

Page | 3 
 

Action Plan   

Audit Review of: Fostering Service 

Date: July 2013 

Action Plan Owner:  Head of Children & Family Services 

 

Risk/ 
Issue 
No. 

Risk/Issue 
 

Action  
 

Who When 

1. The current process followed to procure services from 
independent fostering providers is informal. Evidence is 
not retained to confirm that it complies with the Council’s 
Contract Procedure Rules and some legal documents 
used, e.g. placement agreements, may be out of date in 
respect of terms and conditions. 

If the current arrangement were to continue, it would be 
advisable to take guidance from the Strategic 
Procurement Unit. 

Ensure validity of current documents.  
 
 
Align procedure with Council’s Contract 
Procedure Rules.  

Rhiain Morrlle October 2013 

2. There may be an opportunity to use the Regional Hub in 
sourcing services from independent providers in the 
future. This presents an opportunity for the service to 
address the procurement issues raised above and to 
benefit from taking a more commercial approach. 

In managing the risk, there will need to be clear roles 
and responsibilities agreed between the service and the 
Hub but still promoting a more cohesive approach 
across teams. This will help to ensure that the service 
gains from the best use of skills in their respective fields, 
i.e. procurement and social care aspects.  

Confirm referral route to Hub for all placement 
requests involving independent providers and 
residential placements.  
 
Confirm Placement and Commissioning 
Officers role in matching of child to placement.  
 
Adjust internal Fostering Procedure to reflect 
above. 

Rhiain Morrlle, Penny Moran, 
John Williams 

September 2013 

Corporate Risk/Issue Severity Key 

 
Critical – Significant CET and Cabinet intervention 

 Major – intervention by SLT and/or CET with Cabinet 
involvement 

 Moderate – Containable at service level. Senior 
management and SLT may need to be kept informed 

T
udalen 196



Page | 1 
 

 

Denbighshire Internal Audit Services 
Caledfryn, Smithfield Road, Denbigh, LL16 3RJ 

 
 

Housing Services  

(Rents & Welfare Reform) 

June 2013 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Lisa Hodson BA (Hons) PG (Dip) CMIIA   01824 706855 
lisa.hodson@denbighshire.gov.uk 
 

Chris McMellon MAAT     01824 706772 
christine.mcmellon@denbighshire.gov.uk 
 

 
Ivan Butler CMIIA, MBA, Head of Internal Audit Services

Tudalen 197



 

Page | 1 
 

 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Purpose & Scope of Review 

We undertook a review of Housing 
Services to provide financial assurance 
on housing rents and determine whether 
they are effectively managing the welfare 
reform changes. 

We agreed a scope to cover: 

 strategic management – strategic 
planning and performance 
management; 

 customer service; 

 housing rents – policies and 
procedures, rent calculation, rent 
collection and payment, arrears 
management; and 

welfare reform changes – 
particularly focusing on the impact 
of the bedroom tax. 

 

Assurance Rating 
(Based on areas reviewed) 

 
High 
Assurance 

Risks and controls well 
managed 

► 
Medium 
Assurance 

Risks identified but are 
containable at service level 

 
Low 
Assurance 

Risks identified that require 
meeting with Corporate 
Director/Lead Member 

 
No  
Assurance 

Significant risks identified 
that require member / 
officer case conference 

 

Audit Opinion 

Despite the significant changes that are occurring within Housing Services, employees are 
working to improve the service they provide to their customers. They demonstrate this 
through, for example, working collaboratively with other local organisations to develop a joint 
waiting list and allocations policy, and making the housing application process more efficient. 
However, the service acknowledges that further improvement is needed to communicate with 
their customers and understand their expectations.  

Although the service has identified areas for improvement, there have been delays in 
implementation due to the staffing restructure. This has hindered preparation of some key 
strategies and means that policies and procedures may not reflect changes resulting from the 
Welfare Reform Act. 

Customer service has been improved by improving complaints handling. Customers have a 
wide variety of methods through which to contact the Council and to pay their rent, although 
the service does encourage direct debit payments, as this is the most cost-effective and 
reliable payment method. 

Financial controls are generally good, although regular income reconciliations were not carried 
out for 2012/13, which means that a fundamental financial control is missing. The service 
could also benefit from reviewing its debt collection procedures to make sure that it is using 
the most cost-effective option by not employing debt collection agencies or bailiffs. This review 
should feed into a corporate review of a debt collection strategy. The service is, though, 
performing well in its arrears collection and is in the 2nd quartile in its benchmarking group, but 
needs to make sure that the welfare reform changes do not have a significant impact on 
arrears levels.  

Other welfare reform impacts are being proactively assessed to ensure customer 
understanding and develop data on the potential ‘bedroom tax’ impact but the service’s work 
is hampered by data sharing restrictions with other departments and the Department of Work 
and Pensions and a lack of base data and system functionality in some areas.  

 

 

T
udalen 198



 

Page | 2 
 

Action Plan 

Audit Review of: Housing Services (Rents & Welfare Reform) 

Date: June 2013 

Action Plan Owner:  Peter McHugh, Head of Housing & Community 
Development 

 

Risk/ 
Issue 
No. 

Risk/Issue Action Who When 

1. The restructuring of Housing Services has 
delayed its strategic development and on-
going improvements. These include not 
implementing service improvement 
recommendations identified both internally 
and from an external assessment in 
Summer 2011. This may mean that 
employees are unclear of their roles and 
responsibilities, and that the service is not 
operating as effectively and efficiently as it 
could. 

Migration to Capita Open Housing is planned to take 
place by March 2014. This will potentially include the 
procurement of additional modules to enhance 
system functionality. A project team has been 
established to develop these new systems, with the 
project being facilitated by an additional corporate 
resource.  

Peter McHugh (Head 
of Housing and 
Community 
Development) 

April 2014 (Subject 
to agreed 
implementation plan 
with Capita) 

Recruit Income Management Team Leader. This 
person will be responsible for ensuring consistency 
in service delivery and compliance with income 
management. 

Steve Collins (Senior 
Officer 
Neighbourhoods) 

September 2013 

Development of integrated training programme for all 
Community Housing staff. 

Community Housing 
Senior Management 
team 
 

September 2013 

Develop Financial Inclusion and Income 
Management Plan for 2014-17. 

Sarah Mylchreest 
(Senior Officer 
Neighbourhood 
Development) 

September 2013 

Community Housing team to achieve ‘One star’ in 
compliance with HQN report. In addition, we carry 
out quarterly reporting on performance. 

Simon Kaye 
(Community Housing 
Manager) 

March 2014 
(quarterly meetings 
are ongoing) 

Corporate Risk/Issue Severity Key 

 
Critical – Significant CET and Cabinet intervention 

 Major – intervention by SLT and/or CET with Cabinet 
involvement 

 Moderate – Containable at service level. Senior 
management and SLT may need to be kept informed 

T
udalen 199



 

Page | 3 
 

Risk/ 
Issue 
No. 

Risk/Issue Action Who When 

2. There is a lack of business continuity and 
succession planning arrangements in 
place to cover the absence of the Senior 
Officer (Business Systems). Once the 
restructuring of Housing Services is 
complete, reviewing other key posts will 
ensure that there are effective 
arrangements in place to provide cover in 
absences and will provide an opportunity 
to develop employees. 

Additional project management support to be 
delivered as part of migration to Capita Open 
Housing. 

Jenny Elliott (Quality 
and Performance 
Manager) 

May 2013  

Staffing succession planning/business continuity 
requirements to be addressed as part of Quality and 
Performance restructure review. 

April 2014 

3. Policies and procedures within housing 
rents have not been reviewed recently, 
and may not be up-to-date to take account 
of welfare reform changes. Having a clear 
system in place to ensure that procedures 
are reviewed regularly and updated when 
required will mean that employees are 
clear of what is expected of them. 

Agree programme to regularly review all Income 
Management policies and ensure that the 
procedures format is consistent. Members of staff 
will be informed of the changes when procedures 
are amended. 

Steve Collins (Senior 
Officer 
Neighbourhoods) 

September 2013 

Review Garage Arrears Procedure August 2013 

Review Former Tenant Arrears Procedure December 2013 

Review Current Tenant Arrears Rent Recovery 
Procedure 

March 2014 

4. To assist the Council in developing the 
corporate debt strategy, it needs to have a 
clear understanding of the debt collection 
options used by departments. No cost-
benefit analysis has been carried out 
within housing rents on debt collection or 
payment methods to demonstrate that the 
service they provide is cost effective and 
efficient.  

Review current payment methods to include analysis 
of transactional costs, and review the feasibility of 
including new payment methods. 

 
Undertake cost benefit analysis of debt collection 
options currently utilised by Housing Services. 

 
The Welfare Reforms Mitigation Officer met with the 
Head of Revenues and Benefits to develop a data 
sharing notice. We will also work to develop a 
corporate data sharing protocol as part of the 
corporate debt strategy meetings. 

Steve Collins (Senior 
Officer 
Neighbourhoods) 

December 2013 

T
udalen 200



 

Page | 4 
 

Risk/ 
Issue 
No. 

Risk/Issue Action Who When 

Subject to agreed corporate data sharing processes 
being in place a Rents & Service Charge Assistant 
will contact other departments to ascertain if 
prospective tenants have any outstanding debts. 

Rents & Service 
Charge Assistant 

December 2013 

5. While records have been updated 
detailing all rent income received, regular 
income reconciliations were not carried 
out during the last financial year. Regular, 
independent reconciliations would confirm 
that all income collected is accounted for 
in full. 

Commence programme of monthly rent 
reconciliations (rental income, housing benefit, rent 
debit and rent refunds). 

Steve Collins (Senior 
Officer 
Neighbourhoods) 

June 2013 

Training of a rent assistant to provide cover for 
carrying out income reconciliations when the Rent 
and Service Charges Assistant is unavailable. 

September 2013 

6. While regular monitoring is carried out of 
rent arrears levels, the process needs to 
be robust to prevent debt levels from 
increasing as a result of welfare reform, 
which will lead to financial pressures for 
both the tenant and the Council. There 
could be inconsistencies in how debts are 
handled, and the number of tenants in 
arrears has increased in recent years. 

We need to be clear in our policy where the housing 
rent officer can use their discretion. The Income 
Management Team Leader will independently 
monitor to ensure that there is consistency, and 
robustness in the rent arrears process, while giving 
due consideration to relevant personal 
circumstances. 

Steve Collins (Senior 
Officer 
Neighbourhoods) 

October 2013 

The number of tenants in arrears increasing – we 
will work proactively with tenants to reduce their 
outgoings and maximise their income through 
financial awareness training (10 weeks pilot to be 
undertaken). 

Jane Parkinson 
(Welfare Mitigation 
Officer) 

July 2013 

Analysis of debt collection options – linked with issue 
4 

Steve Collins (Senior 
Officer 
Neighbourhoods) 

December 2013 

Rent arrears statements will be available online on 
new Capita system. Currently, every rent statement 
run costs us £5k to print and deliver statements, 
which we consider is not value for money. 

Steve Collins (Senior 
Officer 
Neighbourhoods) 

April 2014 (Subject 
to agreed 
implementation plan 
with Capita) 

T
udalen 201



 

Page | 5 
 

Risk/ 
Issue 
No. 

Risk/Issue Action Who When 

7. Recovery of former tenant arrears is not 
successful. There has been no analysis to 
determine whether it is cost effective to 
continue to chase these debts or to 
explore what other options are available. 
Increasing the robustness of the current 
tenants’ arrears process may assist in 
recovering the debt before the tenant 
leaves the area. 

Analysis of former tenant arrears to identify where 
recovery is not cost effective. We will also discuss 
with other local authorities to share good practice. 
The Former Tenants Arrears procedure will be 
updated to take account of any changes. 

Steve Collins (Senior 
Officer 
Neighbourhoods) 

December 2013 

8. Implementation of some of the welfare 
reform measures has been slow due to a 
staffing restructure and information not 
being readily available. This has delayed 
the development of the welfare reform 
strategy, and a lack of data sharing may 
mean that inaccurate tenant information is 
maintained. 

Documented Financial Inclusion (2013-14) strategy 
in place. This strategy has an action plan detailing 
the work to develop tenants’ financial awareness. 

 

Sarah Mylchreest 
(Senior Officer 
Neighbourhood 
Development) 

Complete (Internal 
Audit note: We will 
look at the 
implementation of 
the strategy’s action 
plan during October 
2013). 

Develop  new monitoring arrangements for  tenants 
affected by welfare reform changes as part of the 
implementation of Capita Open Housing 

Steve Collins (Senior 
Officer 
Neighbourhoods) 

April 2014 (Subject 
to agreed 
implementation plan 
with Capita) 

T
udalen 202



Page | 1 
 

  

Denbighshire Internal Audit Services 
Caledfryn, Smithfield Road, Denbigh, LL16 3RJ 

 
 

Countryside Operations  

July 2013 
 

 
 
 
 

Nanette Williams  BA (Hons)    01824 706873 
nanette.williams@denbighshire.gov.uk  
 

Irene Griffiths       01824 706974 
 
 

Ivan Butler CMIIA, MBA, Head of Internal Audit Services

Tudalen 203



Page | 1 
 

Purpose & Scope of Review 

We undertook a review of Countryside 
Operations, as it is an area that we have 
not reviewed for several years and our 
last review focused only on Loggerheads 
Country Park rather than the whole 
service, which has a significant 
customer-facing role.  

The scope of our review covered the 
following areas: 

 Strategic and risk management 

 Project management  

 Management of sites  

 Customer service and complaints 
management  

 Transport costs and fleet 
management 

Assurance Rating 
(Based on areas reviewed) 

 
High 
Assurance 

Risks and controls well 
managed 

► 
Medium 
Assurance 

Risks identified but are 
containable at service level 

 
Low 
Assurance 

Risks identified that require 
meeting with Corporate 
Director/Lead Member 

 
No  
Assurance 

Significant risks identified 
that require member / 
officer case conference 

Audit Opinion 

In 2011, the Council, along with its partners successfully achieved an extension to the Clwydian 
Range Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB), which effectively doubled the size of the 
designation. In addition, the implementation of the AONB management plan and subsequent 
interim statement ensures that the Council discharges its statutory duty in this area; however, the 
service needs to review and update its overall Countryside Strategy following recent changes to 
ensure that it is still relevant and appropriate for the future. 

The Countryside Service has a proactive attitude to income generation, which assists with 
effectively managing its key risk of reduced grant aid and internal funding. However, we query 
whether this risk should continue to be included in the Service Risk Register, as it has now 
materialised and is therefore now an issue that the service is managing. 

Several projects in the service are delivering positive outcomes; however, the Loggerheads 
Traffic Congestion project may be at risk of failing to deliver its objectives due to a lack of funds 
secured up front. We raise this, as the completed project should help to alleviate problems 
caused by parking on the A494 into Denbighshire.   

Overall, income and stock controls at the Loggerheads Visitors Centre are well managed; 
however, a reliance on one person to carry out key tasks could compromise the effectiveness of 
these controls. It is also possible that the Council could be in breach of Data Protection legislation 
by retaining personal data on Flying Permit applications for longer than necessary and by not 
holding it securely. We also advise that terms and conditions of room hire at Loggerheads be 
provided to hirers to protect the Council from unnecessary loss and ensure that hirers are aware 
of their responsibilities. 

The service is committed to enriching the customer experience, with a sense of ‘quality’ promoted 
at its sites. This is demonstrated by the fact that compliments made about the service within the 
last year significantly outnumbered complaints. It is possible though that the obvious success in 
this area could be undermined by the cleanliness of the toilets at Moel Famau, but we are aware 
that management is looking for an appropriate solution to this problem. 

While our review has highlighted a few operational issues that the service needs to address, 
these do not negate the fact that the public receives a very good service. We are therefore able 
to provide Medium Assurance. 

T
udalen 204



 

Page | 2 
 

Action Plan 

Audit Review of: Countryside Operations  

Date: July 2013  

Action Plan Owner:  Countryside Services Manager 

 

Risk/ 
Issue 
No. 

Risk/Issue Action Who When 

1. The Countryside Strategy has not been reviewed 
and updated for several years. This issue is 
particularly important following the recent extension 
to the AONB. This increases the risk that the service 
will not achieve its strategic objectives. 

The Countryside Service recognises that 
the current Countryside Strategy is out of 
date and a review and rewrite is required. 
An inclusive methodology and plan will be 
drawn up later this year for the review. 
Implementation will take place during 2014. 
The focus will be on providing a strategic 
framework for the work of the Countryside 
Service as a whole. This is a major piece of 
work, possibly involving external partners 
and stakeholders and the timescales will 
reflect this. 

Countryside Services 
Manager, 
Other relevant staff, 
Possible external 
facilitator /consultant. 

Methodology and 
plan agreed by 
December 2013 

 
New Strategy 
completed by 
December 2014 

2. As the risk of reduced grant aid and internal funding 
to the service has materialised and is being 
managed, the service should consider whether it 
should remain in the Highways and Environmental 
Services risk register. If it does, it needs to be re-
assessed, as many of the mitigating actions do not 
seem relevant to the risk and the scoring is 
inappropriate. 

We agree that the risk identified in the 
register- reduced grant aid – is no longer a 
risk but an actual issue, which is being 
actively managed. 
 
Therefore it should be removed from the 
service risk register. 

Head of Service, 
Countryside Services 
Manager. 

As soon as 
appropriate and/or 
when the risk 
register is next 
reviewed 

Corporate Risk/Issue Severity Key 

 
Critical – Significant CET and Cabinet intervention 

 Major – intervention by SLT and/or CET with Cabinet 
involvement 

 Moderate – Containable at service level. Senior 
management and SLT may need to be kept informed 

T
udalen 205



 

Page | 3 
 

Risk/ 
Issue 
No. 

Risk/Issue Action Who When 

3. There is no further funding secured at present for the 
Loggerheads Traffic Congestion project and, until 
funding is available, the works cannot continue. As a 
result, the problems caused by parking on the A494 
remain. While parking restrictions now in place on 
the road should control this, it could have a knock-on 
effect on maintaining visitor numbers at 
Loggerheads Country Park. 

We are actively seeking funding for the 
creation of the overspill car park; however, 
the issue of traffic congestion is not really 
an issue for the Countryside Service alone. 
It is a corporate issue, involving partnership 
working, both internally and externally.  
 
The project was started using the old project 
management methodology in 2009-10, with 
a business case supported by the Head of 
Service. It was a two stage project - 
purchase land (and achieve planning 
permission), then build the car park. 
 
There was no funding identified at the time 
but we assert that lack of funding is no 
reason to not submit a project into the 
methodology, particularly given the health 
and safety, and reputational risks that this 
project is addressing and the multiple 
partner involvement and public support. 
 
Stage 1 is almost complete and we are in a 
strong position to deliver stage 2 when 
funding becomes available. The project 
would not have reached its current position 
if we were required to secure all the funding 
before development of the project.  
 
However, the project will now be progressed 
within the Verto framework and officers will 
actively raise its profile within the Council. 

Countryside Services 
Manager, 
Senior Countryside 
Officer – AONB. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

During financial year 
2013-14 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
udalen 206



 

Page | 4 
 

Risk/ 
Issue 
No. 

Risk/Issue Action Who When 

4. Two officers who manage projects have not 
undertaken project management training. Training in 
the corporate methodology would increase the 
likelihood of projects being delivered as efficiently 
and effectively as possible. 

Both officers will receive training in the DCC 
project management software, Verto during 
the forthcoming year. 

Countryside Services 
Manager, 
Countryside 
Operations Manager 
and AONB Officer & 
Senior Countryside 
Officer – AONB. 

By March 2014 

5. There is only one person involved in the income 
receipting and stock control processes at 
Loggerheads Visitors Centre. Without adequate 
controls to divide responsibilities in these areas, 
there is an increased likelihood that error or fraud 
could go undetected.  

We will assess the risk and procedures 
relating to these controls and improve the 
processes to ensure division of 
responsibilities. The use of other employees 
on the same site is a likely solution. 

Countryside 
Operations Manager 
and AONB Officer & 
Administration and 
Retail Officer. 

By end July 2013 

6. It is possible that the Council is in breach of Data 
Protection legislation by retaining personal data on 
Flying Permit applications for longer than is needed 
and by not keeping hard copies secure. It is also 
advisable to update the forms with a Data Protection 
or Privacy Notice in line with the Information 
Commissioner’s best practice. Further, this data is 
held both electronically and as hard copies, which is 
inefficient.   

We will investigate this personal data issue 
and introduce a better procedure to secure 
data, avoid duplication and destroy files and 
forms that are no longer required or out of 
date. 

Countryside 
Operations Manager 
and AONB Officer, 
Administration and 
Retail Officer & 
AONB 
Communications 
Officer. 

By end October 
2013 

T
udalen 207



 

Page | 5 
 

Risk/ 
Issue 
No. 

Risk/Issue Action Who When 

7. Terms and Conditions for room hire at Loggerheads 
are not given at the time of booking, nor is 
confirmation obtained that certain hirers have 
appropriate public liability insurance if applicable i.e. 
when using their own equipment. The Council could 
be held liable in the event of an incident and unable 
to claim for any damages caused to the room. 

Terms and conditions for the hire of this 
facility will be developed as soon as 
possible. Officers will investigate other room 
hire scenarios in the Council and use those 
standard term and conditions, adapting to 
local need. 

 
However, we take the view that having 
terms and conditions will probably not affect 
our public liability in the event of an 
accident. We would still have a statutory 
duty to observe health and safety 
responsibilities for instance. Nevertheless, 
we will develop some guidelines for hire of 
our facility at Loggerheads.   

Countryside 
Operations Manager 
and AONB Officer & 
Administration and 
Retail Officer. 
 

By end August 2013 

 
 
 
 
 

T
udalen 208



 

Page | 1 
 

Denbighshire Internal Audit Services 
Caledfryn, Smithfield Road, Denbigh LL16 3RJ 

 
  

Report to:  Jackie Walley (Head of Customers & Education Support) 
            
Report By:  Geraldine Sanders (Auditor)  
 
Date:   July 2013 
 
Subject:  Demarcation between the roles and responsibilities of 

Education Planning & Resources and Accountancy Services.  

Introduction: 

The Head of Customers & Education Support asked us to review the roles and 
responsibilities of Education Planning & Resources and Accountancy Services, 
as set out in a table jointly drawn up by both services (see Appendix 1). The 
purpose of our review was to provide assurance that there are clearly defined 
and understood roles and responsibilities, appropriate separation of duties in all 
key functions, and provision of an efficient and effective support service without 
duplication.  

Our scope did not include a review of the processes and procedures behind 
these roles and responsibilities.  

Background Information: 

The Education Planning & Resources Manager was appointed on 1 November 
2012. This was a new post created to manage the strategic, operational and 
financial planning processes for schools, including management of the funding 
formula regime, the traded services financial framework for schools, and the 
financial management support for the schools reorganisation and modernisation. 
The role is not involved with any central finance functions, i.e. responsibility is 
only from the point of delegation of funding to schools. 
 
The Council has a statutory responsibility to ensure effective management of the 
school funding regime. The LMS Unit, which came under central financial 
services, previously undertook this role but focusing more on day-to day financial 
management rather than strategic financial planning in schools. The new 
structure has a clear direction to drive the funding policy, which includes 
challenging the effective allocation and use of resources in schools. The former 
Lifelong Learning Finance Manager was appointed to this new role bringing with 
her a range of knowledge and experience in this area.  

Tudalen 209



 

Page | 2 
 

 
Outcome of our Review: 
 
The Education Planning & Resource Manager has drawn up a table of the tasks 
she was responsible for in her previous role. She has worked with the Finance & 
Assurance Manager to determine how these tasks should be split between the 
two services based on their respective roles and responsibilities and in line with 
the support provided by Accountancy Services for all other Council services. It 
acknowledges varying factors determined by the LMS regulations for schools, 
which differ from the role of the Section 151 Officer, mainly in respect of 
delegated financial responsibility. The school funding formula is policy-driven and 
is governed by its own set of regulations.   
 
Due consideration has also been given to ensure that communication is effective 
between both parties in delivering their services and to avoid any conflict of 
interest or duplication of effort in the tasks undertaken. To help this, the Finance 
and Assurance Manager attends the monthly Business & Finance network 
meetings within Education Support.  
 
The Head of Finance & Assets has asked for one of the key work areas identified 
on the table regarding Commissioning and Procurement in Schools to be 
strengthened. This is in the process of being done and will be approved by the 
Chief Accountant.  
 
Conclusion: 

Based on the work we have carried out, we can provide assurance that there is a 
clear separation of duties between the tasks undertaken by Education Planning & 
Resources and Accountancy Services and there is no encroachment on each 
service’s roles and responsibilities. Education leads on the use of funding as per 
the formula and aligns to strategic priorities, whereas Accountancy Services is a 
support service that includes providing advice on financial and transactional 
information.  
 
With the exception of the above request made by the Head of Finance & Assets, 
we have not identified any other actions required to strengthen these 
arrangements; however, its effectiveness will be seen over time.   

Consequently, we also provide assurance that the creation of this post and the 
areas of work carried out by the Education Planning & Resources Manager do 
not weaken the corporate Accountancy Services structure. The service still 
retains the authority to intervene directly with a school if necessary, as stated in 
the Council’s Scheme for financing schools.  

Tudalen 210



 
Adroddiad i’r:   Pwyllgor Llywodraethu Corfforaethol 
 
Dyddiad y Cyfarfod:  4 Medi 2013 
 
Awdur yr Adroddiad: Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Archwilio Mewnol 
 
Teitl:   Ysgol Clawdd Offa, Prestatyn 
 

 
1. Am beth mae’r adroddiad yn sôn?  

 Mae’r adroddiad hwn yn cyflwyno’r adroddiad Archwilio Mewnol 
diweddar ar Ysgol Clawdd Offa, Prestatyn. 

2. Beth yw’r rheswm dros lunio’r adroddiad hwn?  

 Gofynnodd y Pwyllgor Llywodraethu Corfforaethol i’r adroddiad  
Archwilio Mewnol llawn gael ei gyflwyno i’w cyfarfod ym mis Medi, gan 
fod Barn yr Archwilwyr Mewnol yn ‘oren’, h.y. Sicrwydd Isel ac mae’r 
Cynllun Gweithredu yn cynnwys 21 mater. 

3. Beth yw’r Argymhellion? 

 Dylai’r Pwyllgor ystyried a thrafod yr adroddiad Archwilio Mewnol ac 
ystyried a oes angen unrhyw adroddiadau pellach arno ar weithrediad 
y Cynllun Gweithredu. 

 

 

 

 

Eitem Agenda 13

Tudalen 211



Tudalen 212

Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



Page | 1 
 
 

 

Denbighshire Internal Audit Services 
Caledfryn, Smithfield Road, Denbigh, LL16 3RJ 

 
 

Ysgol Clawdd Offa, 

Prestatyn 

June 2013 

 
                            
 

 

   
 
 
 

Geraldine Sanders   01824 706773 

geradline.sanders@denbighshire.gov.uk 
 
 

Irene Griffiths   01824 706974 

irene.griffiths@denbighshire.gov.uk 
 
 

 

Ivan Butler CMIIA, MBA, Head of Internal Audit Services

Tudalen 213



 

Page | 1 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Purpose & Scope of Review 

We carried out a review of Ysgol Clawdd 
Offa between January and March 2013 
following a request from the Head of 
Education. Our review focused on the 
following areas: 

• Governance 

• Budget monitoring and financial 
planning 

• Financial procedures  and controls 

• Administration of the School Fund   

• Health and safety and general 
security arrangements  

• ICT and information security  
 

Assurance Rating 
(Based on areas reviewed) 

 
High 
Assurance 

Risks and controls well 
managed 

 
Medium 
Assurance 

Risks identified but are 
containable at service level 

► 
Low 
Assurance 

Risks identified that require 
meeting with Corporate 
Director/Lead Member 

 
No  
Assurance 

Significant risks identified 
that require member / 
officer case conference 

 

Audit Opinion 

Although the School received a positive Estyn report in March 2010 and is 
currently being monitored by Education since being designated as Category D in 
September 2012, our review found several areas where the School still needs to 
improve that have led to a Low Assurance rating. 

The School is seeking an award for good governance, but current governance 
arrangements are not robust, particularly as not all governors have undergone 
the necessary checks to ensure that they are eligible to be governors and that 
children are adequately safeguarded.  

On the positive side, budget monitoring has improved and there are some good 
financial processes and controls in place but we cannot give overall assurance on 
financial management at the School, as some teachers are not complying with 
procurement controls, invoice payments are significantly delayed and the 
administration of lettings needs to be significantly improved. We also found 
several weaknesses in the administration of the School Fund, with several 
fundamental controls not in place. 

Overall, security and health and safety measures are in place but again we found 
weaknesses, in particular relating to safeguarding of children and physical assets. 
These security weaknesses are also evident in ICT, where we found breaches of 
security procedures in the use of passwords and lack of back-ups of a key 
system that could have led to the loss of information and potential breach of Data 
Protection legislation.  

Although we have given the School a low assurance rating, the issues we have 
raised are not significantly different to our reviews of other schools and should be 
manageable within the School, particularly with the support that the Education 
service is providing. However, we need to be assured that the improvements the 
School implements will be sustained. 

 

T
udalen 214



 

Page | 2 
 
 

Action Plan 

Audit Review of: Ysgol Clawdd Offa 

Date: June 2013 

Action Plan Owner:  Headteacher and Chair of Governors 

 

Risk/ 

Issue 

No. 

Risk/Issue Action Who When 

1. The information we received shows that the School 
needs to review the composition of its Governing 
Body. It is short of one community governor and 
includes the Deputy Headteacher, who can only sit 
on the Governing Body as an elected teacher 
governor. 

The Governing Body will seek to appoint 
an additional Community Governor to 
bring it up to full compliance and a rolling 
programme has been put it place to 
maintain full compliance in future.   
 
The Deputy is not a governor; she attends 
meetings as an invited guest or in the 
Head’s absence but does not have any 
voting rights.   

Governing Body 
 

30 September 
2013 

Corporate Risk/Issue Severity Key 

 
Critical – Significant CET and Cabinet intervention 

 Major – intervention by SLT and/or CET with Cabinet 
involvement 

 Moderate – Containable at service level. Senior 
management and SLT may need to be kept informed 

T
udalen 215



 

Page | 3 
 
 

Risk/ 

Issue 

No. 

Risk/Issue Action Who When 

2. Two governors have not had Criminal Records 
Bureau (CRB) checks and there have been no 
checks to ensure that governors are not bankrupt or 
disqualified under the Company Directors 
Disqualification Act, as per the Government of 
Maintained Schools (Wales) Regulations 2005. 

 
 

The Business & Finance Manager has 
requested CRB checks for all new 
governors and any others that are still 
outstanding. Appropriate measures will be 
taken to safeguard the security of pupils 
and personal data in the interim period.  
 
Anyone who refuses a request by the 
Governing Body to complete a CRB 
application form is disqualified from 
holding or continuing to hold office as a 
governor.  
 
The School will carry out checks to ensure 
that governors are not bankrupt or 
disqualified under the Company Directors 
Disqualification Act (using the link 
provided by Internal Audit) and will report 
the results to the Governing Body. This 
will be recorded in the minutes and 
included as a set agenda item for 
completion at the first governors meeting 
of every academic year.    
 
The School will introduce an induction 
checklist for new governors to include 
CRB and Company Directors 
Disqualification Act checks.  The School 
will also maintain a record of all CRB 
expiry dates and ensure that they are kept 
up to date.  

Business & Finance 
Manager.  
 Governing Body.  

30 September 
2013  

T
udalen 216



 

Page | 4 
 
 

Risk/ 

Issue 

No. 

Risk/Issue Action Who When 

3. The Governing Body minutes are not up to the 
required standard as they do not include completion 
dates for actions and the Chair does not sign and 
date them. Copies of supplementary documentation 
are not held on file with the minutes and our review 
found that some issues are not being progressed 
from one meeting to the next. 

A new Clerk and Chair have been 
appointed from October 2012. Significant 
improvements have already been made 
since their appointment and will continue 
to be made as they progress in their roles. 

Clerk and Chair of 
Governors 

30 September 
2013. 

4. We could not find sufficient evidence to confirm that 
the constitution and membership off all sub-
committees is reviewed at least once a year and that 
the School’s polices are examined robustly before 
the Governing Body approves them. 

The constitution and membership of sub-
committees was agreed at Full Governors 
meeting on 27 February 2013 and will be 
included as a set agenda item for review 
at the first governors meeting of every 
academic year. 
  
All policies are to be reviewed in line with 
a pre-existing timetable, on a 2-year rolling 
programme. Policy documents to be 
distributed prior to each meeting to give 
opportunity for scrutiny and each policy 
will be discussed individually and recorded 
in the minutes.  

Head, Chair, 
Governing Body 

Membership 
completed.  
 
Review of 
policies in line 
with rolling 
programme – by 
30 September 
2013.  

5. Not all governors have completed up to date 
declaration of business interest forms to 
demonstrate that they do not benefit personally from 
the decisions they make regarding the School. This 
also applies to employees of the School who may 
influence financial decisions, e.g. the Business and 
Finance Manager and the School Secretary. 

All Declaration of Business Interest forms 
were completed during the Full Governors 
meeting on 27 February 2013, including 
the Business and Finance Manager and 
the School Secretary. This will be included 
as a set agenda item for completion at the 
first governors meeting of every academic 
year and also included on the induction 
checklist for new governors.   

Governing Body Complete 

T
udalen 217



 

Page | 5 
 
 

Risk/ 

Issue 

No. 

Risk/Issue Action Who When 

6. Terms of reference for the Governing Body sub-
committees have not been set out in writing to 
ensure that their roles, responsibilities and 
limitations are clearly defined and understood. 

Terms of reference for sub-committees 
adopted at the Full Governors meeting on 
7 February 2013 and will be included as a 
set agenda item for review at the first 
governors meeting of every academic 
year. 

 

Governing Body Complete 

7. The School’s Development Plans do not show costs 
against any of the priorities and the plans are not 
specific enough in terms of actual targets for 
improvement. There are also blanks for summer 
2012 in some of the documents. 

School’s Development Plan is under 
development with prior agreement from 
the LEA. Aim to be completed and 
approved by Governing Body in June. 

Head and Deputy Planning 
Committee to 
review on 12 
June 2013, and 
Full Governors to 
approve on 26 
June. 

8. Some teachers are ordering goods and services by 
telephone and not raising official purchase orders. 
Commitments could also be better monitored by 
raising call-off orders for regular contract payments. 

The School has advertised for a temporary 
admin post to assist with the growing 
administrative demands. Once this post 
has been filled, the Business and Finance 
Manager will develop new finance and 
administration procedures with the School 
Secretary to address the issues identified 
in this report and provide her with training. 

The lettings policy will be reviewed and 
approved by the Governing Body. It will 
then be included as a set agenda item to 
be reviewed at the first meeting of every 
academic year. All existing and future 
lettings are to use an official lettings form 
and action will be taken by the School to 
recover outstanding debts. 

School Secretary, 
Business and Finance 
Manager, and Head 

By September 
2013 

 
Lettings policy 
was scrutinised at 
the Finance 
Committee on 27 
March 2013. Full 
Governors to 
approve 
recommendations 
to on 26 June. 

9. There are significant delays in the payment of 
supplier invoices.  

10. 

 
The are several weaknesses in the administration of 
the School’s lettings as outlined in our report on 
page 13 

11. Income received at the School is not held securely at 
all times.  

All income is now held securely. School Secretary Complete 

T
udalen 218



 

Page | 6 
 
 

Risk/ 

Issue 

No. 

Risk/Issue Action Who When 

12. The Deputy Headteacher has not been given access 
to or received training on various systems required 
to maintain business continuity if the Headteacher is 
absent for any significant length of time, e.g. iTrent 
and Proactis. 

Deputy received relevant systems training 
from the Business and Finance Manager 
on 30 January 2013 and now has access 
to all the systems required to maintain 
business continuity if the Headteacher is 
absent.   

The risk to business continuity has 
reduced since the Business and Finance 
Manager was appointed in November 
2012, as she can provide training to others 
on using the system as and when further 
cover is required. 

Business and Finance 
Manager and Deputy 

Complete 

13. There are several fundamental weaknesses in the 
administration of the School Fund as outlined in our 
report on pages 15 -16. 

New School Fund system is to be used 
from April 2013 and the School Secretary 
will receive training from the Business and 
Finance Manager. The issues identified in 
this report relating to the School Fund will 
be addressed as part of the new finance 
and administration procedures being 
developed by the  Business and Finance 
Manager (see issues 8-10)  

 
Outstanding certificates to be sent to 
Internal Audit and the additional bank 
account closed. The Business and 
Finance Manager will check whether any 
income belonging to the delegated budget 
has been paid in to the School Fund and, 
if so, arrange for it to be transferred.   

School Secretary and 
Business and Finance 
Manager 

By September 
2013 T

udalen 219



 

Page | 7 
 
 

Risk/ 

Issue 

No. 

Risk/Issue Action Who When 

14. There is one entrance to the School that is kept 
locked while pupils are in class but can be accessed 
during break times using the digi-lock code, which 
has been given to the pupils to use the toilet etc. 
This increases the likelihood of the code becoming 
widely known, which could lead to unauthorised 
access. 

Building Services has resolved the issue 
with the digi-lock code. Digi-locks have 
now been changed, and will be changed 
on regular basis throughout the year.  

Adult supervision is also maintained in this 
area during break times.  

Building Services and 
Head. 

Complete 

15. The Deputy Headteacher has not received any 
training on the CCTV system, which could cause a 
problem if the Headteacher is unavailable when an 
incident occurs. In addition, there are no warning 
signs that CCTV is in use, which is a legal 
requirement under the 1998 Data Protection Act. 

Headteacher to provide Deputy with  
training on the CCTV System  

Business and Finance Manager to contact 
Building Services to review CCTV 
signage.  

Deputy, Head and 
Business and Finance 
Manager 

24 May 2013 

16. We cannot confirm that the School has carried out 
the necessary vetting checks on the contractor used 
to erect some play equipment. 

A maintenance schedule has been 
arranged with the contractor used to erect 
the play equipment and a risk assessment 
completed. In future, all contractors will be 
procured via Building Services to ensure 
that the necessary vetting checks have 
been carried out.  

Head Complete 

17. The School does not have an inventory in place to 
safeguard its assets. There is also a large amount of 
surplus equipment held on site, which the Council 
purchased for the new building but is not needed. 
The ownership of this equipment needs to be 
determined before it is disposed of in accordance 
with Financial Regulations. 

Business and Finance Manager to 
complete inventory and determine 
ownership of surplus equipment for 
disposal. 

Business and Finance 
Manager 

By September 
2013 

T
udalen 220



 

Page | 8 
 
 

Risk/ 

Issue 

No. 

Risk/Issue Action Who When 

18. The School has an independent breakfast club, after 
school club and play group. We have raised several 
issues on page 18 of our report relating to these 
arrangements that need to be addressed. 

CRB and public liability insurance checks 
have been done. Early Entitlement Team 
monitors and evaluates Playgroup with 
weekly visits. Any concerns with the 
service they are providing would be 
brought to School’s attention. A Licence 
Agreement has been drawn up for the 
Playgroup, Breakfast Club and After 
School Club in line with the management 
factsheet provided by Education Planning 
and Resources. These agreements take 
effect from 31 May 2013, and specifically 
state that details required will need to be 
provided on an annual basis. In future, 
formal tender processes will be 
undertaken if new provider is needed. 

Head and Business 
and Finance Manager 

31 May 2013 

19. The Headteacher needs to ensure that the issues 
that Corporate Health & Safety raised in its Fire Risk 
Assessment report in October 2008 and Health & 
Safety Report in May 2012 are addressed.  

Working group established at Full 
Governors meeting on 27 February to 
address any Health & Safety issues. This 
group will report any issues to the 
Governing Body.  It will also review any 
outstanding issues from existing reports 
as a matter of urgency.  

Risk Management 
Working Group 

30 September 
2013 

20. The School should ensure that all key IT systems 
are backed up on a regular basis in future. 

All IT systems are now backed up on a 
daily basis.  

School Secretary Complete 

21. The School has breached the Council’s IT security 
regulations relating to password changes and 
sharing of logins and passwords. 

All relevant members of staff have now got 
individual logins and passwords are kept 
private and changed on a regular basis. 

Head Complete 

T
udalen 221



 

Page | 9 
 
 

Background & Context 

Ysgol Clawdd Offa opened in September 2008, with the Headteacher and Deputy 
Headteacher both in post since the opening. The current School Secretary was 
appointed in October 2009 and the Business and Finance Manager in October 2012. 
A new Chair of Governors was elected in October 2012.  

The net capacity of the School is 420 pupils. It had 65 pupils when it opened in 
September 2008 and approximately 240 pupils in January 2013.  

An Estyn Inspection in March 2010 reported that the Headteacher provided the 
School with outstanding leadership; he was ably supported by his first class Deputy 
Headteacher and, together with a highly committed and hard working staff, they have 
secured the School’s values, aims and objectives. The report also stated that the 
Governing Body played a significant role in establishing and developing the School 
and that its governors are active, fully supportive of the School and their individual 
expertise is well used.  

However, in September 2012, the Education service identified some issues relating 
to both the strategic and operational leadership and management and the need to 
further develop the role of the Governing Body. The School was then placed in 
Category D and a School Improvement Action Plan put in place, in line with the 
current Partnership Agreement guidelines. Education is monitoring the action plan at 
least half termly and recording progress.  

  

Tudalen 222



 

Page | 10 
 
 

Review Outcomes & Risks Arising 

Governance  

Opinion 

Although the School has implemented some improvements 
and is working towards a recognised award for its governance 
arrangements, we have identified several areas where 
governance is weak. In particular, the School needs to ensure 
that its governors undergo all the required checks relating to 
safeguarding, eligibility and declaration of interests. There are 
also some administrative improvements required to improve 
governance arrangements.  

Key Areas 
Managed Well 

Governing Body meetings had not been held regularly but there is 
now an annual timetable for meetings. All Governing Body 
meetings have been quorate and the School Effectiveness 
Performance Officer attends. 

The Governing Body is working towards the Governors Wales 
Bronze Award Scheme. This scheme is based around Estyn 
Inspection Standards and is designed to ensure that governance 
arrangements are robust.   

The three statutory sub-committees are in place and their 
composition is correct.  

The School has set up a comprehensive Statutory Polices and 
Documentation file that includes: 

• a list of statutory and non statutory polices and documents; 

• a list of HR Direct ‘Adoption of DCC’s policies and procedures’; 

• a document review cycle for 2012 -2014; and  

• hard copies of all existing school policies from the above lists.  

(Some school policies exist that are not included in the above file 
and would benefit from being included, e.g. the school finance 
policy and the lettings policy)    

Risk/Issue 1 
Moderate  

We found it extremely difficult to obtain an up to date list of 
governors; however, based on the latest information provided, the 
composition of the Governing Body is one community governor 
short. It also includes the Deputy Headteacher who is not permitted 
to be on the Governing Body unless she is elected as a teacher 
governor. She can attend meetings on the Governing Body’s 
invitation, but has no voting rights when it comes to decisions. 

Risk/Issue 2 
Moderate 

Two governors have not had Criminal Records Bureau (CRB) 
checks and there have been no checks to ensure that governors 
are not bankrupt or disqualified under the Company Directors 
Disqualification Act, as per the Government of Maintained Schools 
(Wales) Regulations 2005.  

Tudalen 223



 

Page | 11 
 
 

Risk/Issue 3 
Moderate 

Although some improvements have been made since the 
appointment of a new Clerk, the standard of the Governing Body 
minutes is not to the recommended level, e.g. agreed actions do 
not include completion dates, copies of supplementary documents 
are not held on file with the minutes and the Chair of Governors 
does not sign and date the minutes.  The minutes also suggest that 
some issues are not being progressed from one meeting to 
another. 

Risk/Issue 4 
Moderate 

We could not find sufficient evidence to confirm that the constitution 
and membership off all sub-committees is reviewed at least once a 
year and that the School’s polices are examined robustly before the 
Governing Body approves them. 

Risk/Issue 5 
Moderate 

Not all governors have completed up to date declaration of 
business interest forms to demonstrate that they do not benefit 
personally from the decisions they make regarding the School. This 
also applies to employees of the School who may influence 
financial decisions, e.g. the Business and Finance Manager and the 
School Secretary.  

Risk/Issue 6  
Moderate 

Terms of reference for the Governing Body sub-committees have 
not been set out in writing to ensure that their roles, responsibilities 
and limitations are clearly defined and understood.  

Tudalen 224



 

Page | 12 
 
 

Budget Monitoring and Financial Planning 

Opinion 

The appointment of a new Business and Finance Manager for 
the Prestatyn Primary Cluster in October 2012 has greatly 
improved budget monitoring procedures in the School. 
However, the School Development Plan is lacking some 
fundamental information.  

Key Areas 
Managed Well 

The Business and Finance Manager runs regular reports, which 
she checks for variances and irregularities. She also has monthly 
meetings with the Headteacher, Deputy Headteacher, and Chair of 
Governors to discuss the latest finance reports. 

The Business and Finance Manager will be producing a detailed 
finance report that she will present to the Finance Committee and 
the Chair of this committee will then report to the next Governing 
Body meeting.  

Budget reports have now changed to a three year plan and are 
produced by the Business and Finance Manager, assisted by the 
Headteacher. There is also a new form that all governing bodies 
will be required to sign in future to formally approve their school 
budget. 

There is a projected in-year surplus of £52,748, and a deficit carried 
forward from 2011/12 of £31,821. The projected surplus to be 
carried forward for 2012/13 is therefore £20,927.  

Risk/Issue 7  
Moderate 

Education has advised us that the layout of the School’s 
Development Plans is clear and well presented and give a clear 
picture of where the School intends to focus its development. 
However, there are no costs allocated against any of the priorities 
and the plans are not specific enough in terms of actual targets for 
improvement. There are also blanks for summer 2012 in some of 
the documents.  

 

Tudalen 225



 

Page | 13 
 
 

Financial Procedures and Controls  

Opinion 

While the School generally has good procurement 
procedures and controls, these can be negated by some 
teachers ordering goods and services by telephone. The 
School also needs to implement significant 
improvements in the payment of invoices and in lettings 
administration. 

Key Areas 
Managed 
Well 

The School has been using the Proactis system since July 
2012, which provides good controls within the procurement 
function.    

The Governing Body has set delegated financial limits for the 
Headteacher to ensure that it retains effective controls over 
expenditure.  

Income is banked on a regular basis.  

The Business and Finance Manager is in the process of 
setting up written procedure notes for all financial processes 
that the School Secretary carries out. These will improve the 
likelihood of business continuity in the School Secretary’s 
absence.   

Risk/Issue 8 
Moderate 

Some teachers are ordering goods and services by 
telephone and not raising official purchase orders. This 
negates a lot of the controls built in to the Proactis system. 
Commitments could also be better monitored by raising call-
off orders for regular contract payments 

Risk/Issue 9 
Moderate  

The School is not paying invoices promptly and we found 
instances where payment was significantly delayed. This 
could lead to complaints and damage the School’s 
reputation. It also causes unnecessary work dealing with 
suppliers chasing up late payment.  

Risk/Issue 10 
Moderate 

The administration of school lettings is extremely poor.  

• There are at least two different letting policies on file at 
the School neither of which is dated.  

• We have been unable to find any completed booking 
forms on file to protect the School against damage, loss 
and injury claims. 

• No income has been received for a dance group that has 
been using the School for over 12 months. The 
Headteacher confirmed that charges are applicable and 
that he has been chasing these arrears.   

• Charges totalling £400 for Zumba classes were not 
collected until three months after the letting period ended. 

Tudalen 226



 

Page | 14 
 
 

Risk/Issue 11 
Moderate 

Income received at the School is not held securely at all 
times. This is putting the income at risk of being lost or 
stolen, which would not be covered by insurance.   

Risk/Issue 12 
Moderate 

The Deputy Headteacher has not been given access to or 
received training on various systems required to maintain 
business continuity if the Headteacher is absent for any 
significant length of time, e.g. iTrent and Proactis. 

  

Tudalen 227



 

Page | 15 
 
 

 

Administration of the School Fund   

Opinion 

The administration of the School Fund is lacking several 
fundamental controls and we can give no assurance that 
all income is accounted for. 

Key Areas 
Managed 
Well 

The School Fund treasurer and auditor are due to be 
formally appointed by the Finance Committee in April 2013. 
(This will then need to be repeated on an annual basis)  

The Business and Finance Manager is in the process of 
writing up School Fund procedure notes. These will help to 
provide consistency and provide business continuity during 
periods of staff absence. They will help to ensure proper use 
of the audit checks and controls that the previous Business 
and Finance Manager built into the School Fund 
spreadsheet. 

Risk/Issue 13 
Moderate  

The are several fundamental weaknesses in the 
administration of the School Fund as follows: 

• The School Secretary is the only person involved in 
administering the Fund, which means there is no 
separation of duties to provide the recommended level of 
internal control. 

• The account is not being properly reconciled against the 
bank statements at the end of each month and our brief 
examination of the records identified some errors and 
omissions in the transactions recorded. 

• Some income belonging to the delegated budget has 
been paid in to the School Fund account.  

• Supporting documents are not held on file for all items of 
expenditure and some receipts provided by teachers for 
reimbursement show loyalty points being accrued by the 
teachers, which Financial Regulations do not allow. 

• The School has a bank statement on file for a second 
School Fund account, which no one at the School was 
able to tell us anything about. Although the opening and 
closing balances on the bank statement as at 13/10/11 
and 21/04/12 were both nil, further enquiries should be 
made to confirm whether any income has been paid in 
since 21/04/12 and to close the account if it is not 
required. 

• The School Fund accounts for 2010/11 and 2011/12 have 
not been audited and a copy of the audit certificates sent 
to Internal Audit. 

 

Tudalen 228



 

Page | 16 
 
 

• The School is not running its School Fund in the most 
cost-effective way, as it pays £5 a month bank charges 
and does not pass the charges for returned cheques on 
to parents. 

• The School Fund records are not always updated until 
after the income has been banked. This would cause a 
problem if the income went missing before it was banked; 
as the School would not have a record of how much had 
been collected for insurance purposes or what it related 
to.   

 
  

Tudalen 229



 

Page | 17 
 
 

 

Health and Safety  and General Security  Arrangements  

Opinion 

Health and safety and security arrangements at the 
School are generally good, but there are some areas for 
improvement to ensure robust security, safeguarding of 
children and protection of assets. 

Key Areas 
Managed 
Well 

Digi-locks are in place at all points of entry to the School.  

Visitors can only gain access to the School via the main 
entrance and are asked to sign in and out and are issued with 
a visitor pass.  

Employees sign in and out for fire safety purposes. 

The School procures all building work, including repairs and 
maintenance, through Property Services and grounds 
maintenance through Environmental Services. This ensures 
that all contractors are suitably vetted before being allowed 
access to the School.  

The School has a site security policy in place dated March 
2011. 

Risk/Issue 14 
Moderate 

There is one entrance to the School that is kept locked while 
pupils are in class but can be accessed during break times 
using the digi-lock code, which has been given to the pupils to 
use the toilet etc. This increases the likelihood of the code 
becoming widely known, which could lead to unauthorised 
access.  

Risk/Issue 15 
Moderate 

The School has CCTV but the Deputy Headteacher has not 
received any training on the system, which could cause a 
problem if the Headteacher is unavailable when an incident 
occurs. In addition, there are no warning signs that CCTV is 
in use, which is a legal requirement under the 1998 Data 
Protection Act.  

Risk/Issue 16 
Moderate 

Some outdoor play equipment has been purchased for the 
School using funds raised by one of the teachers. The 
contractor who supplied and erected this equipment is not on 
the Council’s approved list of contractors and we are unable 
to confirm whether sufficient health and safety and security 
checks were completed before this work was carried out. This 
should include a risk assessment and a record of regular 
maintenance and inspection checks, the lack of which could 
become a factor if an accident occurs and/or an insurance 
claim is submitted.   

Tudalen 230



 

Page | 18 
 
 

Risk/Issue 17 
Moderate 

The School does not have an inventory in place to safeguard 
its assets. There is also a large amount of surplus equipment 
held on site that the Council purchased for the new building 
but is not needed. The ownership of this equipment needs to 
be determined before it is disposed of in accordance with 
Financial Regulations. 

Risk/Issue 18 
Moderate 

The School has an independent breakfast club, after school 
club and play group. The Headteacher has provided evidence 
that the people providing these services have been CRB 
checked and have public liability insurance; however, there 
are several other factors that we have not been able to 
confirm:  

• Were formal tender processes undertaken?  

• Were CSSIW, staff qualifications, references and financial 
information and health and safety details requested of the 
providers, including safe working procedures and training 
records?   

• Have legal documents been drawn up setting out the 
terms and conditions of the agreements, including 
limitations of use, responsibilities, site specific hazards 
and communication and cooperation processes?   

(Education Planning and Resources has recently issued a 
management factsheet to schools to support then in looking 
at these agreements. Legal Services has also been working 
on letting agreements for these types of clubs) 

Risk/Issue 19 
Moderate 

Corporate Health & Safety has completed two reports for the 
School - a Fire Risk Assessment report in October 2008 and 
a Health & Safety Report in May 2012. The Headteacher 
does not recall receiving copies of these reports, so was 
unable to confirm whether any actions arising from these 
reports have been addressed. We have forwarded copies of 
these reports to the Headteacher for the School to follow up.    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 231



 

Page | 19 
 
 

ICT and Information Security   

Opinion 

Our review found weaknesses in procedures and 
security that put retention and confidentiality of 
information at risk.  

Key Areas 
Managed 
Well 

The School is registered with the Data Controller until 
January 2014.  

Risk/Issue 20 
Moderate 

The School’s administration computer system had not been 
backed up since 11 November 2011 due to system failure 
messages being ignored. Although central ICT has now 
rectified this, the School needs to ensure that this does not 
happen again so that it protects the information held on its 
computer systems. 

Risk/Issue 21 
Moderate 

The Council’s IT security regulations have been breached 
by: 

• employees not changing their SIMS passwords on a 
regular basis to minimise the risk of unauthorised access 
to confidential information; and  

• the Deputy Headteacher using the Headteacher’s 
computer log in and password. 

 
  

Tudalen 232



 

Page | 20 

 
 

Report Recipients

• Corporate Director: Customers

• Head of Education  

• Head of Customers and Education Support

• School Effectiveness Performance Officer 

• Education Planning and Resource Manager

• School Business & Finance Manager

• Head of Finance and Assets 

• Headteacher 

• Chair of Governors 

• Lead Member for Education

• Chair - Performance Scrutiny 

• Performance Scrutiny Member

• Lead Member for Finance & Assets

• Corporate Governance Committee

• Ward Member for Prestatyn South West 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Key Dates 

 

Review commenced 

Review completed 

Escalation meeting 

Reported to Corporate Governance Committee

Proposed date for 1st follow up review

 

 
 

Report Recipients 

Corporate Director: Customers 

Head of Customers and Education Support 

School Effectiveness Performance Officer  

Education Planning and Resource Manager 

Business & Finance Manager 

Head of Finance and Assets  

Lead Member for Education 

Performance Scrutiny Committee 

Performance Scrutiny Member 

Lead Member for Finance & Assets 

Corporate Governance Committee 

Prestatyn South West  

January 2013 

March 2013 

7 June 2013 

Reported to Corporate Governance Committee 3 July 2013 

follow up review October 2013 

 

 

Tudalen 233



Tudalen 234

Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



PWYLLGOR LLYWODRAETHU CORFFORAETHOL: RHAGLEN GWAITH I’R DYFODOL 

 

DYDDIAD Y 
CYFARFOD 

ADRODDIAD AWDUR 

 
27 Medi 2013 
(Cyfarfod Arbennig) 
 

 
Cymeradwyo’r Datganiad Cyfrifon. 
 

 
Pennaeth Cyllid ac Asedau 
 

 
6 Tachwedd 2013 

 
Eitemau Sefydlog 
 
Materion a gyfeiriwyd gan y Pwyllgorau Archwilio 
Adroddiadau Rheoleiddio Allanol Diweddar a Dderbyniwyd 
Adroddiad Cynnydd Archwilio Mewnol 
Adborth ar Gyfarfod Cydraddoldeb Corfforaethol – adroddiad 
ar lafar. 
 
Adroddiadau 
 
Cynllun Gweithredu Fframwaith Llywodraethu Corfforaethol 
Deddfwriaeth Gwybodaeth  
Diweddariad Cyllideb 
Protocol ar gyfer Cynrychiolwyr Aelodau ar Gyrff Allanol i 
adrodd yn ôl ynghylch eu gweithgareddau 
 
 

 
 
 
Cydlynydd Archwilio 
Rheolwr Gwella Corfforaethol 
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Archwilio 
Mewnol 
Y Cyng. Martyn Holland 
 
 
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Archwilio 
Mewnol 
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a 
Democrataidd 
Pennaeth Cyllid ac Asedau 
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a 
Democrataidd 

 
18 Rhagfyr 2013 

 
Eitemau Sefydlog 
 
Materion a gyfeiriwyd gan y Pwyllgorau Archwilio 

 
 
 
Cydlynydd Archwilio 

E
item

 A
genda 15

T
udalen 235



Adroddiadau Rheoleiddio Allanol Diweddar a Dderbyniwyd 
Adroddiad Cynnydd Archwilio Mewnol 
Adborth ar Gyfarfod Cydraddoldeb Corfforaethol – adroddiad 
ar lafar. 
 
Adroddiadau 
 
 

Rheolwr Gwella Corfforaethol 
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Archwilio 
Mewnol 
Y Cyng. Martyn Holland 
 

 
29 Ionawr 2014 

 
Eitemau Sefydlog 
 
Materion a gyfeiriwyd gan y Pwyllgorau Archwilio 
Adroddiadau Rheoleiddio Allanol Diweddar a Dderbyniwyd 
Adroddiad Cynnydd Archwilio Mewnol 
Adborth ar Gyfarfod Cydraddoldeb Corfforaethol – adroddiad 
ar lafar. 
 
Adroddiadau 
 
Deddf Rheoleiddio Pwerau Ymchwilio 2000  
Cynllun Gweithredu Fframwaith Llywodraethu Corfforaethol 
Diweddariad Rheoli Trysorlys 
Datganiad Strategaeth Rheoli Trysorlys 2014/15 
 
 

 
 
 
Y Cydlynydd Archwilio 
Rheolwr Gwella Corfforaethol 
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Archwilio 
Mewnol 
Y Cyng. Martyn Holland 
 
 
 
 
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a 
Democrataidd 
 
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Archwilio 
Mewnol 
Pennaeth Cyllid ac Asedau 
Pennaeth Cyllid ac Asedau 

 
26 Mawrth 2014 

 
Eitemau Sefydlog 
 
Materion a gyfeiriwyd gan y Pwyllgorau Archwilio 

 
 
 
Y Cydlynydd Archwilio 

T
udalen 236



Adroddiadau Rheoleiddio Allanol Diweddar a Dderbyniwyd 
Adroddiad Cynnydd Archwilio Mewnol 
Adborth ar Gyfarfod Cydraddoldeb Corfforaethol – adroddiad 
ar lafar 
 
 
 
 
Adroddiadau  
 
Cynllun Sicrwydd Archwilio Mewnol 2014/15 
 
 
 
 

Rheolwr Gwella Corfforaethol 
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Archwilio 
Mewnol 
Y Cyng. Martyn Holland 
 
 
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Archwilio 
Mewnol 
 

 
21 Mai 2014 

 
Eitemau Sefydlog 
 
Materion a gyfeiriwyd gan y Pwyllgorau Archwilio 
Adroddiadau Rheoleiddio Allanol Diweddar a Dderbyniwyd 
Adroddiad Cynnydd Archwilio Mewnol 
Adborth ar Gyfarfod Cydraddoldeb Corfforaethol – adroddiad 
ar lafar 
 
Adroddiadau 
 
Cynllun Gweithredu Fframwaith Llywodraethu Corfforaethol 
Adroddiad Blynyddol Archwilio Mewnol 2013/14 
 
 

 
 
 
Y Cydlynydd Archwilio 
Rheolwr Gwella Corfforaethol 
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Archwilio 
Mewnol 
Y Cyng. Martyn Holland 
 
 
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Archwilio 
Mewnol 
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Archwilio 
Mewnol 
 

 

T
udalen 237



DS Ni wyddys union ddyddiad cyhoeddi adroddiadau achlysurol gan er enghraifft Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru neu 
Adroddiadau Blynyddol gan yr Ombwdsmon ar hyn y bryd. Byddant yn cael dyddiad cyfarfod cyn gynted a bo modd. 
 

T
udalen 238


	Rhaglen
	4 COFNODION
	5 HUNANASESIAD Y PWYLLGOR LLYWODRAETHU CORFFORAETHOL
	Corp Gov Ctte Self-Assess Presentation

	6 DIWEDDARIAD CYLLIDEB
	Budget Update DCC Report
	Budget Update App 1
	Budget Update App 2

	7 ADOLYGIAD/DIWEDDARIAD RHEOLI TRYSORLYS 2012/13
	Treas Man App 1
	Treas Man App 2

	8 ADRODDIAD CWYNION BLYNYDDOL
	Complaints App 1
	Complaints App 2
	Complaints App 3
	Complaints App 4

	9 POLISI A PHANEL DIOGELU CORFFORAETHOL ARFAETHEDIG
	Safeguard Policy App 1
	Safeguard Policy EIA

	10 CYNLLUN GWEITHREDU FFRAMWAITH LLYWODRAETHU CORFFORAETHOL
	Corp Gov Frame Act Plan App 1

	11 ADRODDIAD ARCHWILIO MEWNOL ADNODDAU DYNOL STRATEGOL
	Strategic HR App 1

	12 ADRODDIAD CYNNYDD ARCHWILIO MEWNOL
	Int Audit Prog App 1
	Int Audit Prog App 2

	13 ADRODDIAD ARCHWILIO MEWNOL YSGOL CLAWDD OFFA
	Int Audit Clawdd Offa Report

	15 RHAGLEN WAITH Y PWYLLGOR LLYWODRAETHU CORFFORAETHOL

